
SUGGESTED AGENDA 
 

AMENDED 
 

TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
PERRY, FLORIDA 

 
TUESDAY, MAY 1, 2012 

5:30 P.M. 
 

201 E. GREEN STREET 
TAYLOR COUNTY COURTHOUSE ANNEX 

OLD POST OFFICE COMPLEX 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 
286.0105, THAT ANY PERSONS DECIDING TO APPEAL ANY MATTER 
CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE 
MEETING AND MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE 
TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE 
BASED. 
 
1.  Prayer 
 
2.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3.  Approval of agenda 
 
2010/2011 FY AUDIT PRESENTATION: 
 
4. RICHARD POWELL, POWELL & JONES, CPA’S, TO APPEAR TO 

PRESENT THE AUDIT FOR FY 2010/2011. 
 
AWARDS/RECOGNITION: 
 
5. THE BOARD TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF A RESOLUTION 

PROCLAIMING THE MONTH OF MAY, 2012, AS CIVILITY MONTH 
IN TAYLOR COUNTY.  

 
 
COMMENTS AND CONCERNS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR NON-AGENDAED AND 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
CONSENT ITEMS: 
 
ITEMS ON THE CONSENT AGENDA ARE ROUTINE OR TECHNICAL IN 
NATURE, HAVE BEEN PREVIOUSLY DISCUSSED BY THE BOARD, 
RESOLUTIONS OF A ROUTINE NATURE, AUTHORIZATION TO ADVERTISE 
ORDINANCES, PUBLIC HEARINGS, AND BID SPECIFICATIONS, ITEMS 
THAT HAVE A UNANIMOUS RECOMMENDATION OF THE PLANNING BOARD 
AND STAFF FOR APPROVAL, AND OTHER ITEMS AS AUTHORIZED BY 
THE BOARD (TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
RULES OF PROCEDURE, SECTION II, 14:(2)(c)) 
 
 
6. THE BOARD TO CONSIDER APPROVAL OF A CERTIFICATE OF 

PARTICIPATION TO SUBMIT A GRANT APPLICATION FOR THE 
2012-2013 FDLE EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE 
ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) PROGRAM, AS AGENDAED BY MELODY 
COX, GRANTS COORDINATOR.  

 
7. THE BOARD TO CONSIDER RATIFICATION OF THE COUNTY 

ADMINISTRATOR’S SIGNATURE ON SUBCONTRACT TO D & L 
CONTRACTING, LLC, FOR THE FWC-11225 REEF CONSTRUCTION 
GRANT CONTRACT, AS AGENDAED BY FRED VOSE, COUNTY 
MARINE AGENT.  

 
8. THE BOARD TO CONSIDER RATIFICATION OF THE COUNTY 

ADMINISTRATOR’S SIGNATURE ON QUARTERLY GRANT REPORTS 
FOR THE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE GRANT 
PROGRAM, EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PREPAREDNESS AND 
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, FY 2009 STATE HOMELAND SECURITY 
GRANT PROGRAM, AND FY 2010 STATE HOMELAND SECURITY 
GRANT PROGRAM, AS AGENDAED BY DUSTIN HINKEL, EM 
DIRECTOR. 

 
9. THE BOARD TO REVIEW 2ND QUARTER VARIANCE REPORTS AND 

AMENDMENTS TO THE COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT’S (TCHD) 
CORE CONTRACT, AS AGENDAED BY STEPHEN TULLOS, 
ADMINISTRATOR.  

 
10. THE BOARD TO CONSIDER PAYMENT OF INVOICE, IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $25,000, FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
(EMS) FOR THE MONTH OF APRIL, 2012, AS REQUESTED BY 
DOCTORS’ MEMORIAL HOSPITAL (DMH). 

 
 



 
 
BIDS/PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
11. THE BOARD TO HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING, SET FOR THIS DATE 

AT 6:10 P.M., OR AS SOON THEREAFTER AS POSSIBLE, TO 
UPDATE THE PUBLIC AND RECEIVE INPUT AS TO THE STATUS 
OF THE LOCAL TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED PROGRAM. 

 
12. THE BOARD TO RECEIVE BIDS FOR FREQUENTIS PROJECT I3 

NG9-1-1 SOLUTION FOR THE TAYLOR COUNTY 911 
INFRASTRUCTURE, SET FOR THIS DATE AT 6:15 P.M., OR AS 
SOON THEREAFTER AS POSSIBLE. 

 
HOSPITAL ITEMS: 
 
13. RICHARD HUTH, CEO, DMH, TO REQUEST, ON BEHALF OF THE 

DMH BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD TO CONSIDER DRAFTING 
A PROPOSED ORDINANCE, PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 
212.055, SUBPARAGRAPH 7, DEALING WITH HEALTH CARE, 
SPECIFICALLY TO IMPOSE A ONE-HALF (½) CENT SALES TAX. 

 
14. THE BOARD TO REVIEW APPLICATIONS AND CONSIDER 

APPOINTING ONE (1) APPLICANT TO FILL THE VACANCY ON 
THE DMH BOARD OF DIRECTORS. 

 
PUBLIC REQUESTS: 
 
15. JORDAN GREEN, FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

(FDOT), TO APPEAR TO DISCUSS THE TENTATIVE FIVE (5) 
YEAR WORK PROGRAM, AS AGENDAED BY AMY TUCKER-BAULDREE, 
FDOT. 

 
COUNTY STAFF ITEMS: 
 
16. THE BOARD TO REVIEW AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT 

NUMBER ONE (1), TO EXTEND THE FLORIDA BOATING 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (FBIP) GRANT CONTRACT, WHICH 
PROVIDES FUNDING ASSISTANCE FOR CONSTRUCTION OF A 
PARKING FACILITY AT KEATON BEACH COASTAL PARK, TO JUNE 
30, 2013, AS AGENDAED BY THE GRANTS COORDINATOR.  

 
17. THE BOARD TO REVIEW AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF SECTION 

306A PROJECT CHECKLIST AND STATEMENT OF REAL PROPERTY 
OWNERSHIP FORM, IN CONNECTION WITH THE 2012-2013 
COASTAL PARTNERSHIP INITIATIVE (CPI) GRANT, FOR 



FUNDING ASSISTANCE FOR THE IDEAL BOAT RAMP PROJECT IN 
STEINHATCHEE, AS AGENDAED BY THE GRANTS COORDINATOR. 

 
18. THE BOARD TO CONSIDER AUTHORIZING “PIGGY-BACKING” ON A 

COMPETITIVELY PROCURED CONTRACT FROM JACKSON COUNTY, 
TO PURCHASE A SUPPLEMENTAL ALI DATABASE, AS AGENDAED 
BY RENA COURTNEY, E911 COORDINATOR. 

 
18A. THE BOARD TO REVIEW AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF A GRANT 

APPLICATION TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
AND CONSUMER SERVICES, DIVISION OF FORESTRY, VOLUNTEER 
FIRE ASSISTANCE GRANT PROGRAM, AS AGENDAED BY MELODY 
COX, GRANTS COORDINATOR. 

 
GENERAL BUSINESS: 
 
19. THE BOARD TO CONSIDER APPOINTING A REPRESENTATIVE 

(CURRENTLY COMMISSIONER PAGE) TO THE SUWANNEE RIVER 
ECONOMIC COUNCIL, INC. BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AS 
REQUESTED BY FRANCES TERRY, EXECTUVE DIRECTOR. 

 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR ITEMS: 
 
20. THE BOARD TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF A RESOLUTION 

ELECTING TO WITHDRAW AS A MEMBER OF PUBLIC RISK 
MANAGEMENT (PRM) OF FLORIDA (PRM) GROUP HEALTH TRUST 
EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 1, 2012. 

 
21. THE BOARD TO CONSIDER APPROVAL OF A TRANSFER OF FUNDS, 

IN THE AMOUNT OF $70,949, FROM MSTU FUND RESERVES FOR 
EQUIPMENT TO TAYLOR COUNTY FIRE RESCUE, FOR THE 
ACQUISITION OF SLERS RADIOS FOR THE VOLUNTEER FIRE 
DEPARTMENT (AS DISCUSSED AT THE 4/24/12 WORKSHOP).  

 
22. THE BOARD TO CONSIDER APPROVAL OF A TRANSFER OF FUNDS, 

IN THE AMOUNT OF $19,540, FROM GENERAL FUND RESERVES 
FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS TO TAYLOR COUNTY EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT, TO MOVE THE COUNTY’S DISPATCH AND 911 
CENTER FROM THE COUNTY JAIL TO THE COUNTY EMERGENCY 
OPERATIONS CENTER (EOC) (AS DISCUSSED AT THE 4/24/12 
WORKSHOP). 

 
23. THE BOARD TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF A RESOLUTION TO 

ACCEPT AN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT TRANSPORTATION FUND 
(EDTF) GRANT FOR $1,400,000, TO PAVE A ROAD AND TO 
ACCEPT FUTURE MAINTENANCE OF THE ROAD, CONTINGENT UPON 



THE ENTITY KNOWN AS PROJECT PHOENIX CLOSING ON THE 
PROPERTY.  

 
24. THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO DISCUSS INFORMATIONAL 

ITEMS. 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS AND CONCERNS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR  
NON-AGENDAED ITEMS: 
 
BOARD INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
    Examination and approval of invoices 
 
    Motion to adjourn 
 
 
 
FOR YOUR INFORMATION: 
 
THE AGENDA AND ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTATION, IF APPLICABLE, IS AVAILABLE TO 
THE PUBLIC ON THE FOLLOWING WEBSITE: 
 

www.taylorcountygov.com 
 
IF YOU ARE A PERSON WITH A DISABILITY WHO NEEDS ANY ACCOMODATION IN 
ORDER TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCEEDING, YOU ARE ENTITLED, AT NO COST 
TO YOU, TO THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN ASSISTANCE.  PLEASE CONTACT DUSTIN 
HINKEL, 201 E. GREEN STREET, PERRY, FLORIDA, 850-838-3500, EXT. 7, 
WITHIN TWO (2) WORKING DAYS OF THIS PROCEEDING. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Board of County Cornmissioners 
and Constitutional Officers 
Taylor County, Florida 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Taylor County, Florida (the County), as of and for the year ended September 30, 201 1, which 
collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the County. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe 
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Taylor County, Florida, as of 
September 30, 201 1, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where 
applicable, thereof, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated 
February 19, 2012, on our consideration of the County's internal control over financial reporting 
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing 
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or compliance. That 



report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results. of our 
audit. 

The budgetary comparison information presented for the general fund and the other major 
governmental funds is not a required part of the basic financial statements of the County, but is 
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the 
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no 
opinion on it. 

The Management's Discussion ar~d Analysis on pages 10 through 16 is also not a required part 
of the basic financial statements of the County but is supplementary information required by 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied 
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the 
methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did 
not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. The combining nonmajor governmental fund financial statements listed in the 
table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part 
of the basic financial statements of the County. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is 
fairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

POWELL & JONES V 

Certified Public Accountants 
February 19, 2012 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

The Taylor County, Florida's (County) management's discussion and analysis presents an 
overview of the County's financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 201 1. The 
analysis provides summary financial information for the County and should be read in 
conjunction with the County's financial statements. 

The County has implemented Governmental Accounting Standards County (GASB) Statement 
34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and 
Local Governments. This statement requires governmental entities to report finances in 
accordance with specific guidelines. Among those guidelines are the components of this 
section dealing with management's discussion and analysis. 

Its intent is to provide a brief, objective, and easily readable analysis of the County's financial 
performance for the year and its financial position at fiscal year end September 30,201 1. 

One of the key changes in financial presentation is the requirement to capitalize infrastructure 
assets and record depreciation. Consequently, significant changes have resulted in the 
reporting of fixed assets, long term liabilities, and fund balances. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County's basic 
financial statements. The County's basic financial statements consist of : 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The 
Government-wide financial statements present an overall picture of the County's financial 
position and results of operations. The Fund financial statements present financial 
information for the County's major funds. The Notes to the financial statements provide 
additional information concerning the County's finances that are not disclosed in the 
government-wide or fund financial statements. 

Government-wide financial statements 

The government-wide financial statements consist of the statement of net assets and the 
statement of activities, and are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
County's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. Emphasis is placed on the 
net assets of governmental activities and business-type activities and the change in net assets. 
Governmental activities are primarily supported by property taxes, sales and use taxes, federal 
and state grants, and state shared revenues. Business-type activities are supported by charges 
to the users of those activities. 



The statement of net assets presents information on all assets and liabilities of the County, 
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases 
in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is 
improving or deteriorating. Net assets are reported in three categories: 1) invested in capital 
assets, net of related debt, 2) restricted, and 3) unrestricted. Assets, liabilities, and net assets 
are reported for all Governmental Acti81ities separate from those of business-type activities. 

The statement of activities presents information on all revenues and expenses of the County 
and the change in net assets. Expenses are reported by major function and program revenues 
relating to those functions are reported, providing the net cost of all functions provided by the 
County. To assist in understanding the County's operations, expenses have been reported as 
governmental activities or business-type activities. Governmental activities financed by the 
County include public safety, physical environment, transportation, economic environment, 
human services, culture and recreation, and general government services. Business-type 
activities financed by user charges include the airport fuel operation. 

Fund financial statements 

A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, and is used to 
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives in 
accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations. All of the funds of the County 
can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental fund financial statements provide information on the current assets and liabilities 
of the funds, changes in current financial resources (revenues and expenditures), and current 
available resources. 

Proprietary fund financial statements provide information on all assets and liabilities of the fund, 
changes in the economic resources (revenues and expenses), and total economic resources. 

Fund financial statements include a balance sheet and a statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for all governmental funds. A statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances - budget and actual, is provided for 
the County's general fund and major special revenue, capital projects, and debt service funds. 
For the proprietary fund, which includes business-type activities, specifically the Airport 
Enterprise fund, a statement of net assets; a statement of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in fund net assets; and a statement of cash flows are presented. A combined 
statement of fiduciary net assets is presented for the County's agency funds. 

Fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the County's activities. 
Individual funds are established by the County to track revenues that are restricted to certain 
uses, comply with legal requirements, or account for the use of state and federal grants. 



The government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements provide different 
pictures of the County. The government-wide financial statements provide an overall picture of 
the County's financial standing, split between governmental activities and business-type 
activities. These staterr~ents are comparable to private-sector companies and give a good 
understanding of the County's overall financial health and how the County paid for the various 
activities, or functions, provided by the County. All assets of the County, including buildings, 
land, roads, and bridges are reported in the statement of net assets. All liabilities, including 
principal outstanding on bonds, landfill closure liabilities, and future employee benefits obligated 
but not paid by the County are included. The statement of activities includes depreciation on 
all long lived assets of the County, but transactions between the different functions of the 
County have been eliminated in order to avoid "doubling up" the revenues and expenses. 

The fund financial statements provide a picture of the major funds of the County and a column 
for all non-major funds. In the case of governmental activities, outlays for long lived assets are 
reported as expenditures, and long-term liabilities are not ir~cluded in the fund financial 
statements. To provide a link from the fund financial statements to the government-wide 
financial statements, a reconciliation is provided from the fund financial statements to the 
government wide financial statements. 

Notes to the financial statements 

The Notes to the financial statements provide additional detail concerning the financial 
activities and financial balances of the County. Additional information about the accounting 
practices of the County, investments of the County, long-term debt, and pension plan are some 
of the items included in the notes to the financial statements. 

FINANCIAL HIGHI-IGHTS 

Total assets of the County exceeded total liabilities by $102,724,608 (net assets). Unrestricted 
net assets for governmental activities were $6,979,235, and for business-type activities were 
$90,021. Governmental Activities restricted net assets were $1 3,067,121, and were $0- for 
Business-type Activities. 

Total net assets increased by $3,039,375. Of that amount, $3,040,297 is attributable to 
Governmental Activities and $(922) is attributable to Business-type Activities. This increase is 
primarily due to the grant funded road construction. 

Governmental Activities revenues increased $ to $27,714,457. This 16% net increase in 
revenue was primarily attributable to an increase in grant revenue over the prior year. 
Governmental Activities expenses decreased by $608,864 to $24,674,160. This decrease in 
expenses of 2.4% was primarily due to budgetary financial management. 

Business-type activities operating revenues increased 28% to $165,207, while business-type 
expenses increased 16.5% to $1 66,129. The fund experienced a net income of $5,165 prior to 
an operating transfer to the General Revenue Fund in the amount of $6,087. The net loss 
subsequent to the transfer out was $(922), representing a 93% increase from 2010 loss of 
$(13,838). 



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's 
financial position. At September 30. 201 1, the assets of the County exceed liabilities by 
$1 02,724,608. I 
The following schedule provides a summary of the assets, liabilities, and net assets of the 
County. I 

September 30, 201 1 and 201 0 

Governmental Business-type Total Government 
Activities ~ctivit ies 201 1 2010 

Assets 
Current assets $ 21,598,608 $ 109,543 $ 21,708,151 $ 23,178,141 
Restricted assets 708,137 708,137 722,297 
Non-current assets 96,051,475 1 1,938 96,063,413 92,922,430 
Total assets 11 8,358,220 121,481 118,479,701 11 6,822,868 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities (payable from 
current assets) 1,200,674 1 9,462 1,220,136 1,998,504 

Current liabilities (payable from 
restricted assets) 536,376 536.376 530.841 

Noncurrent liabilities 13,9981581 13,998,581 14,608,290 
Total liabilities 15,735,631 1 9,462 15,755,093 17,137,635 

Net Assets 
Net assets invested in capital 
assets, net of related debt 82,576,233 1 1,998 82,588,231 78,830,124 

Net assets, restricted 12,934,475 12,934,475 10,391,727 
Net assets, unrestricted 7,111,881 90,021 7,201,902 10,463,382 

Total Net Assets $ 102,622,589 $ 102,019 $1 02,724,608 $ 99,685,233 

80% of the County's net assets reflect its investment in capital assets (land, buildings and 
equipment), less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The County uses 
these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available 
for future spending. Although the County's investment in its capital assets is reported net of 
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided 
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these 
liabilities. 
An additional 12.7% of the County's net assets represent resources that are dedicated or 
subject to restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net 
assets $7,201,902 may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and 
creditors. 

The following schedule provides a summary of the changes in net assets. The increase in net 
assets is due primarily to prudent budget administration. 



Revenues: 
Program Revenues 
Charges for services 
Operating grantslcontributions 
Capital grantslcontributions 

General Revenues 
Property taxes 
Sales and use taxes 
Franchise fees 
Com munications surtax 
State shared revenues 
Other 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 
General government 
Public safety 
Physical environment 
Transportation 
Economic environment 
Human services 
Culturelrecreation 
Court-related 
Interest on long-term debt 
Total expenses 

Changes in Net Assets 
Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 201 1 and 2010 

Governmental Business-type Total Government 
Activities Activities 201 1 201 0 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 3,040,297 (922) 3,039,375 (1,351,726) 

Beginning net assets 99,582,292 102.941 99,685,233 101,036,959 
Ending net assets $102622589 , , $ 102,019 $ 1 0 2 / 2 4 6 0 8  , , $ 

Property taxes provide 37% of the revenues for Governmental Activities, while state shared 
revenues provide 15%, and sales and use taxes provide 11 %. Most of the Governmental 
Activities resources are spent for Public Safety (32%), General Government (lgOh), Human 
Services (4.75%), Transportation (26%), and Physical Environment (7%). 



FUND FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Governmental Funds 

General Fund 

The County's General Fund is the main operating fund of the County. It is used to account for 
all financial resources that are not restricted by State or Federal laws, County ordinances or 
other externally imposed requirements. As of September 30, 201 1, total assets were 
$9,738,989 and total liabilities were $452,220. The ending fund balance was $9,286,769. 
$1,074,577 of the ending fund balance is assigned or restricted for specific identified purposes. 
$8,212,192 is reflected as unassigned in the financial statements, but is included in the budget 
for the next fiscal year to fund reserves and various capital projects. 

As of September 30, 2011, total revenue, $13,643,753, exceeded total expenditures of 
$7,911,921, by $5,731,832. In addition, $6,992,855 was also transferred to constitutional 
officers to fund their budgets and $148,317 to other funds for operational costs. Total transfers 
in from other funds was $140,000. The net decrease in the fund balance in the General Fund 
was, $(1,269,339). 

During the fiscal year, the County amended the General Fund budget by $1,931,827, primarily 
due to changes in on-going capital projects. The County budgeted ad valorem taxes at 95% of 
the total tax levy, as allowed by State law; actual collections were 96.35%. 

Other Governmental Funds 

Financial highlights of selected other County funds follow: 

The Hospital Sales Tax Revenue Fund accounts for the local one-cent discretionary small 
county sales surtax. County voters approved the one-cent sales tax in October 1999, for a 
period of 30 years, beginning January 1, 2000. The proceeds from the sales tax are used to 
pay the principal and interest payments on the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, that were issued to 
provide funds to acquire, construct, and equip a hospital facility located in the County. The 
sales tax generated $2,053,471 in the 201 1 fiscal year, reflecting a 1.7% increase from the prior 
fiscal year's $2,017,798. 

The Municipal Services Taxing Unit (MSTU) Fund is used to account for the provision of fire 
services, building and planning services, animal control, code enforcement and the County's 
allocation of City recreation. The primary source of funds, 83%, is ad valorem taxes. 66% of 
the total expenditures incurred in the MSTU fund are for fire services provided in the 
unincorporated area of the County. 

The Road and Bridge (Transportation) Fund accounts for motor fuel taxes designated for the 
annual maintenance of roads, bridges, right-of-way, drainage systems, etc. The County has the 
legal authority to levy ad valorem taxes for the Transportation Fund, but has elected not to do 



so. As of September 30, 201 1, revenues exceeded expenditures in the amount of $256,749. 
Operational costs of the County Road Department decreased by $172,522, while capital 
expenditures increased by 297%, $1 7,442. Gas tax revenue increased at a rate of 4%, $32,723 
and intergovernmental revenue increased by .I%, $1,388. Secondary road paving funds are 
utilized for funding shortfalls in the road and bridge operations fund. $700,614 was transferred 
in the 201 1 fiscal year which would otherwise been available for road paving. 

The Secondary Road Projects (Paving) Fund accounts for the use of gas taxes restricted for 
transportation improvements, such as roads, bridges, and right-of-way acquisition. This gas tax 
revenue decreased by.053% ($28,029). $246,451 was expended for road paving projects in 
201 1 as compared to $544,844 in 2010. $242,727 was also transferred to the SCRAP Paving 
Project Fund for Pisgah Road. This fund had a fund balance of $2,422,067 at the end of the 
201 1 fiscal year. These funds have been committed for on-going road-paving projects. 

The Sheriff General Fund is the operating fund of the Sheriff, a constitutional officer. The 
primary source of funds are transfers from the Board of County Commissioners General Fund. 
Expenditures represent 22% of total expenditures of the governmental activities. Expenditures 
total $5,578,418 for the year. By law this fund has no ending fund balance. 

Proprietarv Fund 

The Airport Enterprise Fund is used to account for the revenues, expenses, assets, and 
liabilities associated with the County operated aviation fuel sales at the County airport facility. 
This is operated like a business, where the rates established by the County should generate 
sufficient funds to pay the costs of current operations and provide for the accumulation of 
funding for capital asset acquisition. Total assets as of September 30, 201 1, were $121,481 
total liabilities were $19,462, and net assets were $102,019. Operating revenue was $165,207. 
Operating expenses were $1 59,050. Subsequent to an operating transfer out of $(6,087) to the 
Airport Special Revenue Fund, the net loss was $(922). 

CAPITAL ASSETS ACTIVITY 

The County's capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September 
30, 201 1, is $96,063,413 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets 
includes land, buildings, equipment, infrastructure, and construction in progress, net of 
depreciation. 



Capital Assets 
Governmental 

Activities 

Capital assets 

Land and improvements S 19,511,701 

Construction in progress 1,500,428 

Infrastructure 76,343,931 

Buildings 27,599,033 

Equipment 16,414,851 

Total  capital assets 141,369,944 

Activities 

Tota l  Government 

2011 20 10 

Less accumulated depreciation (45,318,469) (61,771) (45,380,240) (39,060,432) 

The decrease of $(11,938) from the prior year is primarily attributable to depreciation. 
DEBT MANAGEMENT 

On July 11, 2000, the County issued $17,205,000 of revenue bonds to acquire, construct, and 
equip a hospital facility located in the County. The Series 2000 Bonds and the interest thereon 
are payable solely from and secured by a pledge of the proceeds derived by the County from 
the levy and collection of the one-cent discretionary small county sales surtax. On May 5, 2005, 
the County advance refunded these bonds with an equivalent refunding, in order to reduce the 
debt service payments over the next 25 years to obtain econorr~ic gain. Principal payments of 
$450,000 were made during the year and as of September 30, 201 1, $13,245,000 is still 
outstanding. The bonds are rated AAA, which is the highest rating given by the rating agencies. 

The County also owed $135,242 on a capital lease for outdoor sports and $95,000 on a bank 
loan used for park capital improvements. 

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget 

The unemployment rate for the County for 201 1 was 10.4%. Although this represents an decrease 
from the prior fiscal year, the rate for the County was higher than the statewide rate of 9.76%. 

The per capita income for the County in 201 1 was $25,898, 25% less than the statewide average 
of $38,965. 

The County-wide ad valorem tax millage rate for the County remained at 7.01 13 for 201 1. Due to 
the decrease in property values county-wide, this created a revenue decrease of $(730,567). As 
a fiscally constrained county, Taylor County received a distribution of $494,408 from the State to 
help offset this reduction in property tax revenue. It is hopeful that the "offset" will continue for 
201 2, as a further reduction in property values is anticipated. 

The Florida Legislature has enacted legislation that will require the County to significantly increase 
its medicaid related expenditures beginning in 2012 on both a retroactive and ongoing basis. 



REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to present users with a general overview of the County's 
finances and to demonstrate the County's accountability. Questions concerning this report or 
requests for additional information should be addressed to the County Finance Director, 108 N. 
Jefferson Street, Suite 102, Perry, Florida, 32347, or by calling 850-838-3506, extension 122. 





TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
September 30,201 1 

Governmental Business - type 
Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,976,209 $ 82,262 $ 7,058,471 
Accounts r e c e i ~ b l e  - net 86,516 86,516 
Due from agency funds 11 0,235 1 10,235 
Due from other governmental units 1,501,459 1,501,459 
Inventories 160,256 27,281 187,537 
Investments 12,251,657 12,251,657 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Restricted assets: 
Investments 

Total restricted assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Capital assets - net 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities (payable from 

current assets): 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Deferred rewnues 
Accrued compensated absences 
Capital leases - current portion 
Note payable - current portion 
Other current liabilities 

Total current liabilities (payable from 
current assets) 

Current liabilities (payable from 
restricted assets) 
Accrued interest payable 667 667 
Landfill postclosure costs 70,709 70,709 
Bonds payable - current portion 465,000 465,000 

Total current liabilities ( payable from 
restricted assets) 536,376 536,376 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Accrued compensated absences 878,745 878,745 
Landfill post-closure costs 282,836 282,836 
Note payable 57,000 57,000 
Bonds payable 12,780,000 12,780,000 

Total long-term liabilities 13,998,581 13,998,581 
Total liabilities 15,735,631 19,462 15,755,093 
(Continued) 



TAYLOR COUNIY, FLORIDA I 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

September 30,201 1 

Governmental Business - type 
ActiLities ActiLities Total 

NET ASSETS (Continued) 
Invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt $ 82,576,233 $ 11,998 $ 82,588,231 

Restricted: 12,934,475 - 12,934,475 

Unrestricted 7,111,881 90,021 7,201,902 
Total net assets $ 102,622,589 $ 102,019 $ 102,724,608 

See notes to financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Net (Gcpenses) Revenues and 
Program Services Changes in Net Assets 

Operating Capital Business 
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Type 

Gcpenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total 
FunctionslPrograms 
Governmental Activities 
General government 
Public safety 
Physical environment 
Transportation 
Economic environment 
Hum an services 
Culturelrecreation 
Court-related 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total governmental activities 
Business -type activities 
Transportation 
Airport 

Total government 

See notes to financial statements. 

General revenues 
Ad valorem taxes 
Sales and use taxes 
Communications service tax 
Franchise fees 
Federal and state shared revenue 
State payments in lieu of taxes 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 
Transfers in (out) 

Total general revenue 
Change in net assets 
Net assets beginning of year 
Net assets end of year 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

BALANCE SHEET 
September 30,2011 

Capltal  

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash 
Accounts recelvable 
Due f r o m  other funds 
Due f r o m  other 

governmental unl ts 
lnventor les 
Investments 
Prepald expenses 

To ta l  assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND 
BALANCES 
LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Accrued wages 
Accrued compensated 

absences 
Due t o  other funds 
Due t o  other govern- 

mental unl ts 
Revenues col lected I n  

advance 
Other current l lab l l l t les  

To ta l  l iab l l l t les  

Speclal Revenue Debt  Servlce Projects 
M u n l c l ~ a l  Tax Secondarv Other Tota l  

Road and Servlces Hosp l ta l  S herlff Co l lec tor  Road Governmental Governmental 
General B r l dge  Taxlng Unl t  Sales Tax So l ld  Waste Operat lng Operat lng Hospltal  Projects Funds Funds 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable - inventories 160.256 160.256 
Restricted 6 4 0 , 2 2 3  704,548 2 ,290,674 3 , 6 3 5 , 4 4 5  
Asslgned 461.964 1,130,385 3,298.761 637.733 758.489 2 ,422,067 589.631 9 . 2 9 9 . 0 3 0  
Unassigned 8.184.582 8,184,582 

Tota l  fund balances 9.286.769 864.804 1.130.385 3.298.761 637.733 758.488 2 .422.067 2 .880.305 21.279.313 - - ~~ . . . . . . . . . . 
To ta l  I lab l l l t les  and fund 

balances 1 9 , 7 3 8 , 9 8 9  S 1,022,283 1 1 , 2 2 8 , 0 7 6  S 3 , 2 9 8 . 7 6 1  1 7 2 8 , 2 9 5  S 2 8 8 . 9 5 7  S 78 ,634 1 7 5 8 , 4 8 9  5 2 , 8 5 4 , 8 0 9  5 4 , 2 0 0 , 2 8 6  

See notes t o  flnancial statements. 

Amounts repor ted f o r  governmental ac t lv l t l les  I n  the statement o f  
net assets are d i f fe rent  because: 
Capl ta l  assets used I n  governmental ac t lv l t les  are  not  financial 

resources and, therefore, are not  repor ted I n  the funds. 
Long-term I labl l l t les, lncludlng bonds  payable of(Sl3.245.000),  

capital  leases and notes payable of (S230,242) ,  compensated absences o f  
($878,745),  landf i l l  pos tc losure  costs  o f  (S353,545),and accrued 
Interest o f  ($667) are not  due and payable I n  the current per lod 
and therefore are not  repor ted In  t he  funds. 

Net assets o f  governmental ac t lv l t les  



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Special Revenue 
Munic ipa l  

Road and Servlces Hospital  
B r i dge  Taxlng Unit  Sales Tax So l ld  Waste 

Debt Service 
Capltal  

ProJecls 
Secondary 

Road 
Prolects 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

Tota l  
Governmental 

Funds 

I ax 
Sheri f f  Co l lec tor  

Operat ing Operating General Hospital  
REVENUES 

Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges f o r  services 
Fines and for fe i tu res  
M lscellaneous 
Special assessments 
Interest 

Tota l  revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current expenditures 

General government 
Publ ic safety 
Physlcal environment 
Transpor ta t ion  
Economic environment 
Human services 
Culture I recreat lon 
Cour t - re la ted 

Capi ta l  out lay 
General government 
Publ ic safety 
Physlcal envlronment 
Transpor ta t ion  
Economic envlronment 
Culture I recreat ion 
Cour t - re la ted 

Debt  service 
Principal  
Interest 

Tota l  expenditures 
Excess o f  revenues over 

(under) expenditures 
OTHER FINANCING 

SOURCES (USES) 
Interfund transfers I n  
Interfund transfers out (7,14 1,171) (31 ,446)  (1 ,060 ,404)  ( 8 2 , 2 0 4 )  (1,183,341) 

Tota l  other financing sources 
(uses) (7,001,171) 757,155 3 0 , 3 5 0  (1 ,060 ,404)  ( 7 3 , 2 4 4 )  5 , 4 8 9 , 0 6 6  7 3 , 4 6 3  1 ,060 ,404  (1,118,689) 

Net change I n  fund balances (1.16- 2 5 6 , m  (33.4771 9 9 6 , 6 9 4  6 0 , 9 4 4  6.5T3 (487,- 
Fund balances beglnning o f  

year 10,556,108 608 ,056  1,163.862 2 , 3 0 2 , 0 6 7  576,789 751,916 2 ,909 .253  
Fund balances end o f  year S 9 , 2 8 6 , 7 6 9  S 8 6 4 , 8 0 4  S 1,130,385 S 3 ,298 ,761  S 637 .733  S t - S 758 ,489  S 2 ,422 ,067  

See notes  t o  financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

RECONCII-IATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (698,920) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of activities are different because: 

Goemmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. 
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those 
assets is allocated over their estimated useful l i es  as 
depreciation expense. 

Capital outlay $ 9,565,670 
Less current year depreciation (6,415,859) 3,149,811 

The net effect of dispositions of fixed assets (8,591) 

Repayments of debt principal are expenditures in the 
goemmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term 
liabilities in the statement of net assets. 

Payment for revenue bonds 
Payments for capital leases and notes 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not 
require the use of current financial resources, therefore, are 
not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 

Net change in compensated absences (95,743) 
Net change in landfill postclosure liability 66,509 
Net change in accrued interest 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

See notes to financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
PROPRIETARY FUND 
September 30,201 1 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash 
Inventories 

Total current assets 

Fixed assets: 
Equipment 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

Total fixed assets 
Total assets 

Airport 
Enterprise - 

LIABILI'TIES 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Accrued wages 

Total current liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets 
Unrestricted 
Total net assets 
Total liabilities and net assets 

See notes to  f inancial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Air~ort Enterprise 
OPERATING REVENUES 
Transportation 

Airports 
Airport fuel sales 
Interest 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Airport fuel operations 

Personal sedces 
Regular salaries 
Employee benefits 

Total personal semices 

Operating expenses 
Communications 
Utility semices 
Insurance 
Repair and maintenance 
Petroleum products 
Supplies 
Depreciation 
Other current charges 

Total operating expenses 
Total operating expenses 
Operating income 

Nonoperating expense 
Loss on disposition of equipment 

Net income before operating transfers 
Operating transfers out 
Net loss after operating transfers 
Retained eamings, beginning of year 
Retained eamings, end of year 

See notes to financial statements 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVI'I'IES 
Cash received from customers 
Cash payments to employees 
Cash payments for employee benefits 
Cash payments for suppliers 
Interest income 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPI'I'AL FINANCING ACllVlTIES 
Transfers to other funds ( 6,087) 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 16,067 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET 
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income 

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to 
net cash used in operating activities 
Depreciation 
Changes in assets and liabilities 
Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued wages 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

See notes to financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

AGENCY FUNDS 
September 30,201 1 

Proper ty  

Armraiser Clerk o f  C o u r t s  Sher i f f  Tax Co l lec to r  

General  

T rus t  

Ch i ld  Regist ry  Cash  

B o n d  

Individual Inmate 

Support  o f  C o u r t  T rus t  D e p o s i t o r y  Trus t  Tax  Tag Totals 

ASSETS 

C a s h  $171,580 

Accounts  receivable 531 

Due f r o m  individuals 

Investments 

T o t a l  asse ts  

LIABILITIES 

Due t o  individuals 

Accounts  payable 

Due t o  o t h e r  funds 

Due t o  o t h e r  governmental  

uni ts  

C a s h  bonds  payable 

Interest  payable 

Other current  l labl l l t les 

Taxer  and fees payable 

Depos i ts  payable 

T o t a l  l iabi l i t ies 

NET ASSETS 

T o t a l  net  assets 

See no tes  t o  f inancia l  s tatements.  



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30,201 1 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Taylor County, Florida, (the "County") is a political subdivision of the State pursuant to Article 
VIII, Section l(a) of the Constitution of the State of Florida. The County is governed by the 
Board of County Commissioners and five elected constitutional officers (Clerk of the Circuit 
Court, Property Appraiser, Sheriff, Supervisor of Elections, and Tax Collector) in accordance 
with State statutes and regulations. The constitutional officers maintain separate accounting 
records and budgets from the Board of County Commissioners. The Constitution of the State of 
Florida, Article VIII, Section 1 (d) created the constitutional officers and Article VIII, Section 1 (e), 
created the Board of County Commissioners. 

The financial statements of the County have been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards County (GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental accounting 
and financial reporting principles. Pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards 
Cour~ty (FASB) issued after November 30, 1989, are not applied in the preparation of the 
financial statements of the proprietary fund types in accordance with GASB Statement 20. The 
GASB periodically updates its codification of the existing Governmental Accounting and 
Financial Reporting Standards which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements 
(Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units. 

In June, 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) ur~animously approved 
Statement 34-Basic Financial Statement and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State 
and Local Governments. This Statement provides for the most significant change in financial 
reporting in over twenty years and schedules phased irnplementation (based on the size of 
government) starting with the fiscal year ending 2002. As part of this statement, there is a new 
reporting requirement regarding the local government's infrastructure (roads, bridges, traffic 
signals, etc.). This requirement permitted an optional four-year further delay for implementation 
of the infrastructure related portion to the fiscal year ending in 2007. The County implemented 
the basic model in the FY 2002-2003, and fully implemented the infrastructure related portion in 
2007. 



A. Reporting Entity 

The concept underlying the definition of the reporting entity is that elected officials are 
accountable to their constituents for their actions. The reporting entity's financial statements 
should allow users to distinguish between the primary government (the County) and its 
component units. However, some component units, because of the closeness of their 
relationships with the County, should be blended as though they are part of the County. 
Otherwise, most component units should be discretely presented. As required by generally 
accepted accounting principles, the financial reporting entity consists of (1) the primary 
government (the County), (2) organizations for which the County is financially accountable, and 
(3) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the County 
are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading 
or incomplete. The County is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the 
organization's governing body and (a) it is able to impose its will on that organization or (b) there 
is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific 
financial burdens on, the County. The County may be financially accountable if an organization 
is fiscally dependent on the County regardless of whether the organization has (a) a separately 
elected governing board, (b) a governing board appointed by a higher level of government, or 
(c) a jointly appointed board. Based on these criteria, County management examined all 
organizations which are legally separate in order to determine which organizations, if any, 
should be included in the County's special purpose financial statements. Management 
determined that there are no organizations that should be included in the County's financial 
statements as component units, except for the constitutional officer component units described 
above. 

6. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

The basic financial statements of the County are comprised of the following: 

Government-wide financial statements 
Fund financial statements 
Notes to the financial statements 
Required supplementary information 

1. Government-wide Financial Statements 

Government-wide financial statements display information about the reporting government as a 
whole, except for its fiduciary activities. These statements include separate columns for the 
governmental and business-type activities of the primary government (including its blended 
component units), as well as its discreetly presented component unit. For the most part, the 
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, 
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported 
separately frorn business-type activities, which rely, to a significant exterrt, on fees and charges 
for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from the legally separate 
component unit for which the primary government is financially accountable. 



Government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and agency 
fund financial statements. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues, expenses, gains, 
losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are 
recognized when the exchange takes place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and 
liabilities resulting from nonexchange transactions are recognized in accordance with the 
requirements of GASB Statement 33 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange 
Transactions. 

Program revenues include charges for services, special assessments, and payments made by 
parties outside of the reporting government's citizenry if that money is restricted to a particular 
program. Program revenues are netted with program expenses in the statement of activities to 
present the net cost of each program. 

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the government-wide 
financial statements, rather than reported as an expenditure. Proceeds of long-term debt are 
recorded as liabilities in the government-wide financial statements, rather than as an other 
financing source. Amounts paid to reduce long-term indebtedness of the reporting government 
are reported as a reduction of the related liability, rather than as an expenditure. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. As applicable, the County also chooses to eliminate the indirect costs 
between governmental activities to avoid a "doubling up" effect. 

2. Fund Financial Statements 

The underlying accounting system of the County is organized and operated on the basis of 
separate funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations 
of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its 
assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. 
Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the 
purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are 
controlled. 

Fund financial statements for the primary government's governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary 
funds are presented after the government-wide financial statements. These statements display 
information about major funds, individually and nonmajor funds in the aggregate for 
governmental and enterprise funds. The fiduciary statement includes financial information for 
the agency funds. The agency funds of the County primarily represent assets held by the 
County in a custodial capacity for other individuals or governments. 



3. Governmental Funds 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available 
when they are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of 
the current period. For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be available if they are 
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. Franchise fees, licenses, 
sales taxes, gas taxes, operating and capital grants, and interest associated with the current 
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as 
revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable 
only when cash is received by the County. 

Under the current financial resources measurement focus, only current assets and current 
liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. The reported fund balance is considered 
to be the measure of "available spendable resources." Governmental funds operating 
statements present increases (revenue and other financing sources) and decreases 
(expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to 
present a summary of sources and uses of "available spendable resources" during a period. 

Any non-current portions of long-term receivables due to governmental funds are reported on 
their balance sheets in spite of their spending measurement focus. 

Non-current portions of other long-term receivables are offset by fund balance reserve 
accounts. 

Because of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for governmental fund 
types excludes amounts represented by noncurrent liabilities. Since they do not affect net 
current assets, such long-term amounts are not recognized as governmental fund type 
expenditures or fund liabilities. 

Amounts expended to acquire capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the year that 
resources were expended, rather than as fund assets. The proceeds of long-term debt are 
recorded as an other financing source rather than as a fund liability. However, debt service 
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and 
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

4. Proprietarv Funds 

The County's Airport Enterprise Fund is a proprietary fund. In the fund financial statements, 
proprietary funds are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 



recognized when they are earned and expenses are recognized when the related goods and 
services are delivered. In the fund financial statements, proprietary funds are presented using 
the economic resources measurement focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities 
(whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activity are included on their balance 
sheets. Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (revenues) and 
decreases (expenses) in total net assets. The County applies all GASB 
pronouncements as well as all FASB Statemerrts and Interpretations, APB Opinions and 
Accounting Research Bulletins, issued on or before November 30, 1989, which do not conflict 
with or contradict GASB pronouncements. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange 
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those 
in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, 
such as subsidies, taxes, and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or 
ancillary activities. 

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the fund financial 
statements, rather than reported as an expenditure. Proceeds of long-term debt are recorded 
as a liability in the fund financial statements, rather than as an other financing source. Amounts 
paid to reduce long-term indebtedness are reported as a reduction of the related liabilities, 
rather than as an expense. 

C. Basis of Presentation 

GASB Statement 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues 
or expenditureslexpenses of either fund category and the governmental and enterprise 
combined) for the determination of major funds. The County has used GASB 34 minimum 
criteria for major fund determination and has also electively disclosed funds which either had 
debt outstanding or specific community focus as major funds. The non-major funds are 
combined in a column in the fund financial statements and detailed in the combining section. 

1 .Governmental Maior Funds: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. It is used to 
account for all financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Hospital Sales Tax Fund - The Hospital Sales Tax Fund accounts for revenues generated by 
the local option one cent Small County Surtax which is pledged as security for the Sales Tax 
Revenue Bonds Series 2005. Any excess revenue for the surtax is restricted for debt reduction 
or capital expenditures at the hospital facilities. 

Municipal Services Taxing Unit Fund (Municipal Services) - The Municipal Services Fund 
accounts for fire control and other services which primarily benefit residents in the 



unincorporated area of the County. Financing is provided by ad valorem taxes levied in the 
unincorporated area as well as other revenues primarily attributable to the unincorporated area. 

Road and Bridge Fund - The Road and Bridge Fund accounts for expenditures incurred for the 
maintenance and repairs of County roads. Financing is provided by local option fuel taxes and 
distributions of state shared fuel taxes. 

Solid Waste Fund - The Solid Waste Fund accounts for expenditures related to the collection 
and disposal of solid waste within the unincorporated area of the County. Financing is 
substantially provided by non-ad valorem assessments levied on benefited property. 

Sheriff Operating Fund - The Sheriff Operating Fund is the general operating fund of the 
Sheriff, a Constitutional Officer. It is used to account for all financial resources and 
expenditures of the Sheriff, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Tax Collector Operating Fund - The Tax Collector Operating Fund is the general operating 
fund of the Tax Collector. It is used to account for all financial resources and expenditures of 
the Tax Collector except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Hospital Debt Service Fund - The Hospital Debt Service Fund accounts for the debt service 
activities associated with the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Series 2005, which was issued to 
finance the construction of the hospital facility operated by Doctors Memorial Hospital, Inc. 

Secondary Road Projects Fund - The Secondary Roads Projects Fund accounts for the 
expenditures of road and bridge construction. Financing is provided by collections of the sth and 
6'h cent state shared gas taxes. 

2. Proprietarv Maior Fund: 

Airport Enterprise Fund - The Airport Enterprise Fund accounts for the revenues, expenses, 
assets and liabilities associated with the County operated aviation fuel sales at the County 
airport facility. 

Noncurrent Governmental AssetslLiabilities: 

GASB Statement 34 requires non-current governmental assets, such as land and buildings, and 
non-current governmental liabilities, such as general obligation bonds and capital leases, to be 
reported in the governmental activities column in the government-wide statement of net assets. 

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The County maintains a cash pool that is available for use by all funds. Earnings from the 
pooled cash are allocated to the respective funds based on applicable cash participation by 



each fund. The cash pool is managed such that all participating funds have the ability to deposit 
and withdraw cash as if they were dernand deposit accounts. Therefore, all balances 
representing participants' equity in the cash pools are classified as cash and cash equivalents 
for financial statement purposes, including the statement of cash flows. In addition, longer-term 
investments are held by certain of the County's funds and are reported as investments on these 
statemer~ts. 

2. Investments 

lnvestments consist of participation in the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund 
lnvestment Pool (Pool) and the Florida Local Government lnvestment Trust Fund (Trust) and 
local investments. Fair value of the Pool and the Trust are based on the fair value per share of 
the underlying portfolio. Due to its utilization as a daily cash investrr~ent account, a portion of 
the Pool balance in the General Fund is classified with the cash balance on the financial 
statements. 

3. Receivables and Payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lendinglborrowing arrangements outstanding at 
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as "due tolfrom other funds." Any residual balances 
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the 
government-wide financial statements as "internal balances." 

All receivables are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Any receivables in excess 
of 180 days would comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for doubtful accounts. At 
September 30, 201 1, there was no allowance for doubtful accounts. 

4. lnventories 

lnventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the "first-in, first-out" method 
of accounting. Supplies inventories of certain governmental funds are recorded as expenditures 
when consumed rather than when purchased. 

5. Restricted Assets 

Certain r~et assets of the County are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net 
assets because their use is limited either by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation; or by restrictions imposed externally by creditors, grantors, contributions, or laws or 
regulations of other governments. In a fund with both restricted and unrestricted assets, 
qualified expenses are considered to be paid first from restricted net assets and then from 
unrestricted net assets. 



6. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, 
bridges, right-of-ways, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or 
business-type activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are 
defined by the County as assets with an initial, individual cost of $1,000 or more and an 
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Except for roads and bridges constructed prior to 
October 1, 1981, assets are recorded at historical ccst. Roads and bridges constructed prior to 
October 1, 1981 are reported at estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded 
at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend its useful life are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 
lnterest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is 
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. 

The Board of County Commissioners holds legal title to the capital assets used in the operations 
of the County, Clerk of the Circuit Court, Property Appraiser, Supervisor of Elections and Tax 
Collector, as is accountable for them under Florida Law. 

The Sheriff is accountable for and thus maintains capital asset records pertaining only to 
equipment used in his operations. These assets have been combined with the Board's 
governmental activities capital assets in the statement of net assets. 

Property, plant, and equipment of the County, as well as component units, are depreciated 
using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Assets Years 
Building and improvements 7 - 40 
Machinery and equipment 
Road and bridge infrastructure 

7. Capitalization of lnterest 

lnterest costs related to bond issues are capitalized during the construction period. These costs 
are netted against applicable interest earnings on construction fund investments. During the 
current year, the County did not have any capitalized interest. 

8. Deferred Revenues 

Deferred revenues reported in government-wide financial statements represent unearned 
revenues. The deferred revenues will be recognized as revenue in the fiscal year they are 
earned in accordance with the accrual basis of accounting. Deferred revenues reported in 



governmer~tal fund financial statements represent unearned revenues or revenues which are 
rr~easurable but not available and, in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
are reported as deferred revenues. 

9. Accrued Compensated Absences 

The County accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave when earned by the 
employee. The current portion is the amount estimated to be used in the following year. The 
non-current portion is the amount estimated to be used in subsequent fiscal years. Both the 
current and non-current estimated accrued compensated absences amounts for governmental 
funds are maintained separately and represent a reconciling item between the fund and 
government-wide presentation. 

10. Obligation for Bond Arbitrage Rebate 

Pursuant to Section 148(f) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, the County must rebate to the 
United States Government the excess of interest earned from the investment of certain debt 
proceeds and pledged revenues over the yield rate of the applicable debt. The County uses the 
"revenue reduction" approach in accounting to rebatable arbitrage. This approach treats excess 
earnings as a reduction of revenue. The County has no arbitrage liability outstanding as of 
September 30, 201 1. 

11. Landfill Closure Costs 

Under the terms of current state and federal regulations, the County was required to place a 
final cover on closed landfill areas, and to perform certain monitoring and maintenance functions 
for a period of twenty years after closure. The County recognizes these costs of post-closure 
maintenance annually. Required obligations for closure and post-closure costs are recognized 
in the Landfill Fund. 

NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

A. Explanation of Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the 
Government-wide Statement of Net Assets. 

"Total fund balances" of the County's governmental funds ($21,279,313) differs from "net 
assets" of governmental activities ($1 02,622,589) reported in the statement of net assets. This 
difference primarily results from the long-term economical focus of the statement of net assets 
versus the current financial resources focus of the governmental fund balance sheet. 

Capital related items 

When capital assets (property, plant, equipment) that are to be used in governmental activities 
are purchased or constructed, the cost of these assets are reported as expenditures in 



governmental funds. However, the statement of net assets included those capital assets among 
the assets of the County as a whole. 

Cost of capital assets 
Accumulated depreciation 

Total 

Lons-term debt transactions 

Long-term liabilities applicable to the County's governmental activities are not due and payable 
in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. All liabilities (both 
current and long-term) are reported in the statement of net assets. Balances at September 30, 
201 1, were: 
Accrued interest payable $ 667 
Sales Tax Rewnue Bonds, Series 2005 13,245,000 
Landfill closure/Long-term care 353,545 
Capital leases and note payable 230,242 
Compensated absences 878,745 
Total $ 14,708,199 

Elimination of interfund receivableslpavable 

lnterfund receivables and payables in the amount of $ 1,890,634 between governmental funds 
must be eliminated for the statement of net assets. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
A. Explanation of Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets 

NOTE2. RBCONCILIATION OF GOVWNMBCT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATBHacTS 

A. Explanation o f  Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

Capital 
Re late d 
Items 

Long-Term 
Debt 

Transactions 

Reclassifications 
and 

Riminations 

Statement 
of 

Net Assets 
ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable - net  
Due from other funds 
Due from other governmental units 
Inventories 
Investments 
Prepaid expenses 
Capital assets - net  

Total assets 

LlABlLlTlS AN) NM) BALANCB 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued wages 
Accrued compensated absences 
Accrued interest payable 
Due to  other funds 
h e  to  other governmental units 
Deferred revenues 
Other current liabilities 
Accrued compensated absences 
Landfill postclosure liability 
Capital leases and notes payable 
Revenue bonds payable 

Total liabilities 

Fund balanceslnet assets 

Total liabilities and fund balancelnet assets $ 24,197,379 $ 96,051,475 S (14,708,199) 6 (1,890,634) $ 118,358,220 



B. Explanation of Differences Between Governmental Fund Operating Statements 
and the Statement of Activities 

The "net change in fund balances" for governmental funds $(698,920) differs from the "change 
in net assets" for governmental activities $3,040,296 reported in the statement of activities. 
The differences arise primarily from the long-term economic focus of the statement of activities 
versus the current financial resources focus of the governmental funds. The effect of the 
differences is illustrated below. 

Capital related items 

When capital assets that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased or 
constructed, the resources expended for those assets are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. However, in the statement of activities, the costs of those assets is 
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. As a result, 
fund balances decrease by the amount of financial resources expended, whereas net assets 
decrease by the amount of depreciation expense charges for the year. 

Capital outlay $ 9,565,670 
Depreciation expense (6,415,859) 
Net loss on dispostion of fixed assets (8,591 ) 

Difference $ 3.141.220 

Repayments of debt principal are reported as an expenditure in the governmental funds and, 
thus, have the effect of reducing fund balance because current financial resources have been 
used. However, the principal payments reduce the liabilities in the statement of net assets and 
do not result in an expense in the statement of activities. 

Principal payments made 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial 
resources, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 

Net change in accrued interest $ 10,166 
Net change in compensated absences $ (95,743) 

Net change in landfill postclosure liability $ 66,509 
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TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
B. Explanation of Difference Between Government Fund Operating Statements and the Statement of Activities 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Llcenses and permits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges f o r  services 
Fines and for fe l tu res  
Special  assessments 
lnterest 
M isceilaneous 

Tota l  revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current Expenditures 

General government 
Publ ic safety 
Physical environment 
Transpor ta t ion  
Economic environment 
Human services 
Culturelrecreat lon 
Cou r t  re la ted 

cap l t a l  out lay 
General government 
pub l ic  safety 
Physical environment 
Transpor ta t ion  
Economic environment 
~ u l t u r e l r e c r e a t i o n  
Cour t  related 

Debt Service 
Principal  
Interest 

Tota l  expenditures 

Excess o f  revenues over -~~ ~ - .  -~ ~~ ~ - 

(under) expendltures 

To ta l  Cap i ta l  Long- term 
Governmental Related Debt Compensated 

Funds Items Transactions Absences 

Landf i l l  Reclassi f lcat lons Statement 
Accrued Postclosure and o f 
Interest L iab l l l t v  Elimlnatlons Act iv i t ies  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers i n  3,577,349 
Transfers out (9,571,262) 9,571,262 

Tota l  other financing sources (uses) 6,U87 6 ,087 
Net change I n  fund balance ( 6 9 8 . m )  617.064 (95.743) 10,166 66.509 
Fund balances at beginning o f  year 21,978,235 92,910,255 (14,092,308)  (783.002)  (10 ,833)  (420.054)  99,582,293 

Fund balances at end o f  year S 21,279,313 S 96,051,475 $ (13,475,242) S (878,745) S (667)  $ (353,545) S - $ 102,622,589 



NOTE 3. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILI'W 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The County uses the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
financial statements. 

1. Prior to July 15, the Clerk of the Circuit Court serving as Budget Officer submits to the Board of 
County Commissioners a tentative budget for the fiscal year commencing October 1. 

2. Public hearings are conducted by the Board of County Commissioners to obtain taxpayer comments. 

3. Prior to September 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution by the Board of 
County Commissioners. 

4. The Board of County Commissioners is authorized to amend fixed appropriations by motion to the 
extent that appropriations do not exceed the total approved budget of the fund; or appropriate for the 
special purpose intended, reserves or unanticipated receipts. Appropriations lapse at year end. No 
supplemental appropriations were necessary during the year. Various such amendments were made 
during the year. 

5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device in all governmental funds. 

6. Governmental fund budgets are initially adopted on the modified accrual basis. The legally amended 
budgetary data presented in the accompanying financial statements for the fiscal year ending 
September 30, 201 1, are shown on this basis of accounting. Therefore, the actual and budgetary 
data are on a comparable basis. The Enterprise Fund budget is adopted on the accrual basis. 

7. Legal control of the budget is exercised pursuant to applicable provisions of Florida Statutes. 

8. Appropriations for the County lapse at the close of the fiscal year. 

9. The following is a comparison of the appropriations to total expenses for the proprietary fund for the 
fiscal year ended September 30,201 1. 

Variance 
Appropriations Expenses Positie 

Primary Goemment 
Enterprise Funds: 
Airport Enterprise $ 195,601 $ 166,129 $ 29,472 

NOTE 4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

The County maintains a cash pool that is available for use by all funds except those whose cash 
and investments must be segregated due to bond covenants or other legal restrictions. 



A. Deposits 

At September 30, 201 1, the carrying amount of the County's bank deposits was $7,058,471. All 
deposits with financial institutions were 100% insured by federal depository insurance or by 
collateral provided by qualified public depositories to the State Treasurer pursuant to the Public 
Depository Security Act of the State of Florida. The Act established a Trust Fund, maintained 
by the State Treasurer, which is a multiple financial institution pool with the ability to assess its 
member financial institutions for collateral shortfalls if a member fails. 

B. lnvestments 

Florida Statutes, and various bond covenants authorize investments in certificates of deposit, 
money market accounts, savings accounts, repurchase agreements, the Local Government 
Surplus Funds Trust Fund, obligations by the Florida State Board of Administration, Florida 
Local Government lnvestment Trust Fund, obligations of the U.S. Government, obligations of 
government agencies unconditionally guaranteed by the U.S. Government, obligations of the 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, including Federal Home Mortgage Corporation 
participation certificates, obligations of the Federal Home Loan Bank, obligations of the 
Government National Mortgage Association, obligatior~s of the Federal National Mortgage 
Association and Securities of any management type investment company or investment trust 
registered under the lnvestment Company Act of 1940, 15 U.S.C. ss. 80a-1 et seq., provided 
the portfolio is limited to U.S. Government obligations and to repurchase agreements fully 
collateralized by U.S. Government obligations. The Board invested in only these types of 
instruments during the fiscal year. 

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the County's investments are 
categorized in the following schedule to give an indication of the level of custodial credit risk 
assumed at year end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered, or for 
which the securities are held by the County or its agent in the County's name. lnvestments in 
the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund, the Florida Local Government lnvestment 
Trust Fund, money market accounts and guaranteed investment contracts are not categorized 
since the investments are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. 

lnvestments consist of amounts placed with the State Board of Administration for participation in 
the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund and the Fund B Surplus Fund Trust Fund 
investment pools created by Sections 21 8.405, Florida Statutes, the Florida Local Government 
Trust Fund, and those made locally. On December 4, 2007, the State Board of Administration 
restructured the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (Pool) to also establish the Fund 
B Surplus Funds Trust Fund. The local investrnents operate under the guidelines established 
by Section 218.415, Florida Statutes. The County's investments in the Pool, which the State 
Board of Administration indicates is a Securities ar~d Exchange Commission Rule 2a7-like 
external investment pool, as of September 30, 201 1, are similar to money market funds in which 
shares are reported at fair value, which is amortized cost. 



The County's investments in the Fund B. Surplus Funds Trust Fund, are accour~ted ior as a 
fluctuating net asset value pool, with a fair value factor of 0.78965331 at September 30, 201 1. 
The Fund B is not subject to participant withdrawal requests. Distributions from Fund B, as 
determined by the State Board of Administration, are effected by transferring eligible cash or 
securities to the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund, consistent with the pro rata 
allocation of Pool Shareholders of record at the creation of Fund B. One hundred percent of 
such distributions from Fund B are available as a liquid balance within the Local Government 
Surplus Funds Trust Fund. 

The Florida Local Goverrlrnent lnvestment Trust Fund (Trust) is a professionally managed fund 
available only to public entities in Florida. The investment policy of the trust restricts investments 
to direct obligations of or securities fully guaranteed by the United States; obligations of certain 
federal agencies, including collateralized mortgage obligations; repurchase agreements; 
corporate bonds; and commercial paper. As of September 30, 201 1, the Trust had investments, 
at fair value, of approximately $ 733 million. Of the total investments in the Trust, 13% was 
invested in asset backed securities, 44% was invested in federal Treasury and agency 
securities, 37% was invested in Corporate securities. The Florida Trust Day to Day Fund (the 
Fund) is a money market fund of the Florida Local Government lnvestment Trust. As of 
September 30, 2011, the fund had investments of $546.9 million of which 37% were in 
repurchase agreements and 18% were in government related securities. 

Schedule of Investments at September 30,2011 
Fair Value1 

Investment Maturities Carrying Amount 
State Board of Administration Local Govemment 
Surplus Funds Trust Fund Investment Pool 38 Day Amrage $ 6,894,490 
Fund 8.  Surplus Funds Trust fund 4.82 Year Amrage 281,430 
Florida Local Government Investment Pool 2.08 Year Amrage 1,172,708 
Florida Local Gommment Day to Day Fund 50 Day Amrage 4,611,166 
Total inmstments $ 12,959,794 

Interest Rate Risk 

Section 21 8.41 5(17), Florida Statutes, limits investment maturities to provide sufficient 
liquidity to pay obligations as they come due. 

The maturity of the State Board of Administration Local Government lnvestment Pool is 
based on the weighted average of days to maturity (WAM). A portfolio's WAM reflects 
the average maturity in days based on final maturity or reset date, in the case of floating 
rate instruments. WAM measures the sensitivity of the portfolio to interest rate changes. 
The maturity of the State Board of Administration Fund B Surplus Funds Trust Fund is 
based on the weighted average life (WAL). A portfolio's WAL is the dollar weighted 
average length of time until securities held reach maturity. WAL is based on legal final 



maturity dates as of September 30,201 1. 

Credit Risk 

Section 218.415(17), Florida Statutes, limits investments to the State Board of 
Administration Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund lnvestment Pool, or any 
intergovernmental investment pool authorized pursuant to the Florida Interlocal 
Cooperation Act as provided in Section 163.01, Florida Statutes; Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC) registered money market funds with the highest credit 
quality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency, interest-bearing time deposits 
in qualified public depositories, as defined in Section 280.02, Florida Statutes, and direct 
obligations to the United States Treasury. The County's investment policy limits 
investments to these types of securities. 

As of September 30, 201 1, the County's investment in the Local Government Surplus 
Funds Trust Fund lnvestment Pool and Trust is rated AAAm by Standard & Poors. The 
Fund B Surplus Trust Fund is unrated. 

The County's investments in Certificates of Deposit and money market funds are in 
qualified public depositories. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Section 21 8.41 5(18), Florida Statutes, requires the County to earmark all investments 
and 1)if registered with the issuer or its agents, the investment must be immediately 
placed for safekeeping in a location that protects the governing body's interest in the 
security; 2) if in book entry form, the investment must be held for the credit of the 
governing body by a depository chartered by the Federal Government, the State, or any 
other state or territory of the United States which has a branch or principal place of 
business in this State, or by a national association organized and existing under the laws 
of the United States which is authorized to accept and execute trusts and which is doing 
business in this State, and must be kept by the depository in an account separate and 
apart from the assets of the financial institution; or 3) if physically issued to the holder 
but not registered with the issuer or its agents, must be immediately placed for 
safekeeping in a secured vault. All County investments complied with this provision of 
law. 

There were no legal or contractual provisions regarding deposits and investments at year end, 
except as described in Note 12. 

NOTE 5. PROPERTY TAX REVENUES 

Taxable values for all property are established as of January 1, which is the date of lien, for the 
fiscal year starting October 1. Property tax revenues recognized for the 2010-201 1 fiscal year 
were levied in October 2010. All taxes are due and payable on November 1 or as soon as the 



assessment roll is certified and delivered to the Tax Collector. Discounts are allowed for early 
payment at the rate of 4% in November, 3% in December, 2% in January, and 1% in February. 
Taxes paid in March are without discount. All unpaid taxes become delinquent as of April 1. 
Virtually all unpaid taxes are collected via the sale of tax certificates on or prior to June 1; 
therefore, there were no material taxes receivable at fiscal year end. 

NOTE 6. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 201 1, was as follows: 

Primary Government 

Beginning 

Balance 

Governmental Act iv i t ies 

Capital assets 

Land and improvements S H),725,237 

Construction in  progress 3,099,479 

Infrastructure 76,084,890 

Buildings 26,464,242 

Equipment 13,314,313 

Sheriff equipment 2,282,526 

Total capital assets 131,970,687 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Board o f  County Commissioners (37,590,421) 

Sheriff (1,470,011) 

Total accumulated depreciation (39,060,432) 

Governmental act iv i t ies 

capital assets, net 

Business type activities: 

Equipment S 73,709 

Less accumulated depreciation (61.533) 

Business act iv i t ies 

capital assets, net  S 12,176 

Reclassif ications Ending 

Addit ions Deletions Balance 



Depreciation expense was charged to functionslprograms of the County as follows: 
Governmental activities: 

General Government $ 487,522 
Public Safety 537,731 
Physical Environment 104,764 
Transportation 4,506,445 
Economic Environment 398 
Human Services 474,624 
CultureIRecreation 293,722 
Court-related and other 

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Airport Enterprise 

Total depreciation expense-business-type activities 

NOTE 7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLESIPAYABLES 

Balances at September 30, 201 1, were: 
lnterfund 

FUND Receivables 
General $ 1,334,457 
Airport 
CDBG 
Landfill 
Municipal Services 
Road and Bridge 491,817 
Small County Outreach Project 
Small County Road Assistance Project 
Secondary Road Projects 64,652 
Solid Waste 
Clerk Information Technology 109,943 
Clerk Board of County Corrrnssioners 
Clerk Trust 
Property Appraiser Operating 
Sheriff Operating 
Sheriff Inmate Trust 
Supervisor Operating 
Tax Collector Operating 
Total 

lnterfund 
Pdyables 

$ 104,957 
1,234 
1,943 

63,527 
7,458 

674,362 
64,652 

350,307 
27,861 

192,237 
109,943 
74,656 

249,772 
292 

3,455 
74,213 

5 2oiRl-Er . . 

All balances are anticipated to be liquidated within the next fiscal year. 



NOTE 8. INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

Interfund transfers for the year ended September 30,201 1, consisted of the following: 
Transfers from General Fund to: 
Airport Fund $ 7,493 
Municipal Services Taxing Unit Fund 61,796 
Road and Bridge Fund 56,542 
Clerk Operating Fund 598,074 
Property Appraiser Operating Fund 637,397 
Sheriff Operating Fund 5,489,066 
Supervisor Operating Fund 323,531 
Tax Collector Operating Fund (32,727) 

Transfers from Secondary Road Project to: 
General Fund 140,000 
Road and Bridge Fund 700,614 
Small County Road Assistance Program 342,727 

Transfers from Municipal Services Taxing Unit Fund to: 
Solid Waste Fund 8,960 
Tax Collector Operating Fund 22,486 

Transfers from Sales Tax Revenue FundlHospital to: 
Debt Payment 1,060,404 

Transfer from Airport Enterprise Fund to: 
Airport Fund 6,087 

Transfers from Small County Outreach Program to : 
Secondary Roads Fund 64,652 

Transfers from Landfill Fund to : 
Tax Collector Operating Fund 82,204 

Transfer from Clerk CSEReimbursement Fund to: 
Clerk Public Records Modernization Trust Fund 6,544 

Transfer from MSBU to : 
Tax Collector Operating Fund 

TOTAL TRANSFERS 

Transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund that state law requires to collect them to 
the fund that state law requires to expend them, 2) provide matching funds for grants, and 3) 
use unrestricted general fund revenues to finance transportation activities which must be 
accounted for in another fund. 

NOTE 9. RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE BALANCES 

Receivables 

Receivables at September 30, 201 1, were as follows: 



Governmental Activities: 
General 
Hospital Sales Tax 
Municipal Services 
Road and Bridge 
Solid Waste 
Secondary Road Projects 
Sheriff Operating 
Other governmental 

Total governmental activities 

Accounts 
Receivable 

h e  from 
Other 

Governments 
Total 

Receivables 

Business-type Activities: 
Airport Wterprise S b - $ 

Total business-type activities f 86,516 $ 1,501,459 $ 1,587,975 

Payables 

Payables at September 30, 201 1, were as follows: 

Gowsmmental Activities: 
General 
Municipal Senices 
Road and Bridge 
Secondary Road Projects 
Solid Waste 
Sheriff Operating 
Other go~mmental 

Total go~mmental actiities 

Accrued 
Wages and 

Vendors Benefits Total 

$ 267,583 $ 41,527 $ 309,110 
29,590 26,696 56,286 
81,945 29,344 111,289 
82,235 82,235 
33,463 11,193 44,656 
38,566 38,566 

235,261 1,605 236,866 
$ 768,643 $ 110,365 $ 879,008 

Business-type Actiwties: 
Airport Enterprise $ 19,186 $ 276 $ 19,462 

Total business-type activities $ 19,186 $ 276 $ 19,462 

NOTE 10. CAPITAL LEASES 

A. Capital Lease Musco Finance 
The Board entered into a lease with Musco Finance,LLC. on December 22, 2008. The lease in 
the amount of $529,200 was used to finance a light structure green system. The lease is being 
paid over four years at an interest rate of 4.73%. The following is a schedule of the future 
minimum lease payments under this capital lease: 



Year Ending 
September 30 

2012 
Total minimum lease payments 
Less: amount representing 

interest 
Total minimum lease payments 

NOTE 1 1. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

A. Governmental Activities 

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Series 2005 

On November 15, 1999, the County adopted Ordinance 99-1 1, levying the Small County Surtax 
approved by the Special Referendum for a period of thirty (30) years, beginning January 1, 
2000. 
Pursuant to the resolutions adopted by the County of County Commissioners, on March 21, 
2000 and June 19, 2000, Taylor County issued Series 2000 Bonds in the amount of 
$17,205,000 to provide funds to (1) acquire, construct and equip a hospital facility located in the 
County; (2) fund the special subaccount in the Reserve Account created for the benefit of the 
Series 2000 Bonds in an amount equal to the Reserve Account Requirement on the Series 
2000 Bonds, and (3) pay certain costs and expenses of issuing and delivering the Series 2000 
Bonds, including the municipal bond insurance premium. 

The Series 2000 Bonds and the interest thereon are payable solely from and secured by a 
pledge of (1) the proceeds derived by the County from the levy and collection of a one-cent 
discretionary small county sales surtax pursuant to Chapter 21 2, Florida Statutes, and (2) until 
applied in accordance with the provisions of the Resolution, all moneys, including investments 
thereof, in certain funds and accounts created pursuant to the Resolution. 

The Series 2000 Bonds shall not be or constitute general obligations or indebtedness of the 
County or the State of Florida or any political subdivision thereof within the meaning of the 
Constitution of the State, but shall be payable solely from and secured by a lien upon and a 
pledge of the Pledged Funds. No registered owner shall ever have the right to compel the 
exercise of the ad valorem taxing power of the County or taxation in any form on any property to 
pay the principal of or interest on the Series 2000 Bonds, nor shall such registered owner be 
entitled to payment of such principal and interest from any other funds of the County except the 
Pledged Funds. 

On May 5, 2005, the County advance refunded these bonds with an equivalent refunding. The 
County issued $15,760,000 in revenue refunding bonds to provide resources to purchase U.S. 



government securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of generating 
resources for all future debt service payments of the refunded debt. As a result, the refunded 
bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed from the statement of 
net assets. This advance refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over 
the next 25 years by $4.37 million and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the 
present value of the debt service payments of the refunded bonds) of approximately $2.82 
million. 

The refinanced bonds carry the same pledge and substantially the same provisions as the 
Series 2000 refunded bonds described above. 

The scheduled payment of the principal and interest on the Series 2005 Bonds, are as follows: 

September 30 
201 2 
2013 
2014 
2015 
201 6 

20 1 7-202 1 
2022-2026 
2027-2029 

Total 

Principal 
$ 465,000 

480,000 
495,000 
520,000 
535,000 

3,050,000 
3,875,000 
3,825,000 

$ 13,245,000 

lnterest 
$ 586,575 

568,975 
549,794 
528,994 
506,925 

2,141,525 
1,267,375 

267,525 
$ 6,417,688 

Total 
$ 1,051,575 

1,048,975 
1,044,794 
1,048,994 
1,041,925 
5,191,525 
5,142,375 
4,092,525 

$ 19,662,688 

B. Note Payable Citizens State Bank 

The Board entered into a note payable with the Citizens State Bank during 2009. The proceeds 
of the note were used to finance capital improvements at the Old Armory Forest Ca ital State 
Park. The loan for $190,000 is be~n re aid over five years at 4.21% interest. T e note is W 9 R 
secured by a pledge of one cent of t e ourist Development Tax proceeds, which is also the 
source of repayment. A schedule of interest and principal payments under the agreement is as 
follows: 

Year Ending 
September 30 Principal Interest Total 

201 2 $ 38,000 $ 3,600 $ 41,600 

Total $ 95,000 $ 6,000 $ 101,000 

C. Changes in Long-term Liabilities 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 201 1, was as follows: 



Balance at Balance at Due Within 

10-01-10 Additions Deletions 09-30-11 One Year 

Governmental Activlties: 

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Series 2005 

$15.76 million bonds payable, due In semi-annual 

installments ranging from S405,000 due October 2005 to 

S 1,020,000 due October 2029; payments are scheduled as 

interest payments in April and October at 3.0% in 2006 to 

4.5% in 2029,collateralized by pledging Small County 

Surtax (Sales Tax) Revenues. S l3,695,000 S - S 450,000 Sl3,245,000 S 465,000 

Note payable - Citizens Bank l33,OOO 38,000 95,000 38,000 

Capital Lease - M usco Finance 264,306 129,064 l35,242 l35,242 
Other liabilities - 

Landfill Closure Long-Term Care determined under GASB, 

Post Closure $69,316 for 6 remaining years, estimate per 

Jones Edmunds and Associates, Inc. 420,054 66,509 353,545 70,709 
Compensated absences payable 783,002 95,743 878,745 

S 15,295,362 S 95,743 S 683,573 S 14,707,532 S 708,951 

NOTE 12. PROVISIONS FOR CLOSURE COSTS 

The Board closed the Taylor County Landfill on April 1, 1996. 

The Taylor County Board of County Commissioners has established two interest bearing 
accounts with the State Board of Administration (SBA), agency account number 281096, and 
the Florida Local Government Investment Trust (FLGIT) account number 5900879. The 
beneficiaries of these accounts are (1) Taylor County Board of County Commissioners and (2) 
Secretary, Florida Department of Environmental Protection. The trustee of these accounts is 
the Taylor County Clerk of the Circuit Cdurt. 

Balances Balances 
91301 1 0 Receipts Disbursements 9130111 

These accounts are accumulative accounts maintained for the sole purpose of long-term care of 
the Taylor County Landfill according to Rule 62-701.630(5)(d), FAC. The total amount of money 
kept on deposit is to be determined by a Registered Professional Er~gir~eer with the State of 
Florida and approved by the Department of Environmer~tal Protection. 

Pursuant to an agreernent dated August 4, 1997, between the County and the Department of 
Enviror~mental Protection, the County must demonstrate financial assurance for the Taylor 
County Landfill Closure. Under Rule 62-701-630, Florida Administrative Code (FAC) the above 



information is required regarding the transactions for the fiscal year in the landfill escrow 
accounts. 

Aucilla Area Solid Waste Administration (AASWA) collects a per ton surcharge of waste 
generated from Taylor County in accordance with a request from the Taylor County Board of 
County Commissioners. This surcharge revenue finances the long-term care costs of the Taylor 
County Landfill. The County is required to monitor the landfill for 20 years after closure. The 
surcharge revenue has exceeded the annual cost of maintenance as projected by the 
engineers. The excess revenue is reserved for future costs associated with the landfill. 

NOTE 13. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

A. Florida Retirement System 

Plan Description - The County employees participate in the Florida Retirement System (FRS), 
a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system, administered by the 
Florida Department of Administration. The FRS is employee noncontributory through June 30, 
201 1. Effective July 1, 201 1, employees are required to contribute 3% of their gross wages. The 
FRS provides for vesting of benefits after six years of creditable service. Normal retirement 
benefits are available to employees who retire at or after age 62 with six or more years of 
service. Early retirement is available after six years of service with a five percent reduction in 
benefits for each year prior to the normal retirement age. Retirement benefits are based on 
age, average compensation, and years-of-service credit where average compensation is 
computed as the average of an individual's five highest years of earnings. 

Florida Statutes Chapter 121, as may be amended from time to time by the state legislature, 
determines contribution rates for the various membership classes of the FRS. The FRS issues 
a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements, ten-year historical trend 
information and other required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by 
writing to the Department of Administration, Division of Retirement, Cedars Executive Center, 
Building C, 2639 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1 560. 

Funding Policy - The FRS has the following classes of membership applicable to the County 
with descriptions and contribution rates in effect during the period ended September 30, 2011, 
as follows (contribution rates are in agreement with the actuarially determined rates): 



Regular Class - 
h k h e r s  not qualaying for other classes 

Senior Mnagement Service Class - 
h k h e r s  of senior management w ho do not 
elect the optional annuity management system 

Special Risk Class - 
h k h e r s  employed as law enforcement 
officers, firefighters, or correctional officers 
and meet the criteria set to qualify for this class 

Bected County Officer's Class - 
Certain elected county officials. 

Deferred Retirement Option Rograrn - 
& h e r s  who are eligible for normal retirement 
that have elected to participate in the deferred 
retirement option program 

Contributions to the FRS for the fiscal year ended September 30, 201 1, were equal to 14.39% 
of the annual covered payroll. Contributions to the FRS for the fiscal years ended September 
30, 2009, 201 0, and 201 1, were $1,085,730, $1 ,I 02,137 and $1,031,911 respectively, which 
are equal to 100% of the required contribution for each year. 

NOTE 14. FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
As of September 30, 201 1, fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows: 

Nonspendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form 
or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional 
provisions, charter requirements or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are 
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, cor~tributors, or the laws or regulations of other 
governments. 

Committed - amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal 
action of the Board of County Commissioners(BCC). The BCC is the highest level of decision 
making authority for the County. Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only 
through resolutions approved by the BCC. 

Assigned - amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed, but 
that are intended to be used for specific purposes. Under current practices, the assignment of 
amounts for specific purposes is approved by the Board of County Commissioners. 

Unassigned - all other spendable amounts. 



General Fund: 
State Aid to Libraries Reserve 
Mosquito Control Reserve 
Emergency 91 1 Reserve 
Sheriffs Designated Reserves 
Traffic Surcharge Reserve 
Court Related Reserves 
Heritage Pavilion 
Divorce Parent Education Reserve 
Childhood Development Services Reserve 
Tax Deed Excess Bid Reserve 
91 1 Wireless Supplemental 
91 1 Wireless /State 
Sports Complex Donations Reserve 
Boat Ramp Reserve 
Jail Maintenance Fund 
Traffic and SHIP Education 

Total 

Special Revenue Funds: 
Solid Waste Fund 
Municipal Services Taxing Unit 
Road and Bridge Fund - Transportation 
Landfill Fund 
Landfill postclosure reserve 

Hospital Sales Tax Fund 
Hospital related debt service and capital 
expenditures 

Local Housing Assistance Fund 
Total 

Debt Service Fund: 
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 

Capital Projects Funds: 
Road projects 

Other Governmental Funds: 

Restricted Assigned 
$ 30,661 $ 

NOTE 15. CONTINGENT LIABII-ITIES 

Grants - Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and 
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the state and federal government. Any disallowed 
claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. 
The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be 
determined at this time although the County expects such amounts, if any, to be material. 

Litigation - The County is defendant in various pending or threatened litigation. Although the 
outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the County Attorney, 
the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition 
of the County. 



NOTE 16. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The County participates in various public entity risk pools for certain of its insurance coverages. 
Under these insurance risk pools, the County's entity risk pool pays annual premiums to the 
pools for its insurance coverages. The agreements for formation of the pools provide that the 
pools will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial 
companies for claims in excess of specific amounts. 

The County continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss. Settled claims 
resultirlg from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past 
three fiscal years. 

Certain of the pooling agreements allow for the pools to make additional assessments to make 
the pools self-sustaining. It is not possible to estimate the amount of such additional 
assessments, which might have to be paid by the County. 

NOTE 17. CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS 

During the year, the County had in progress several cor~struction projects including road 
improvements and facilities renovations. At year end, the significant portion of these related 
construction commitments were completed and existing funds had been earmarked for any 
incomplete projects. 

NOTE 18. JOINT VENTURES - AUCILLA AREA SOLID WASTE ADMINISTRATION 

The Aucilla Area Solid Waste Administration is a separate entity created by an interlocal 
agreement between the following counties in Florida: 

County 
Dixie 
Jefferson 
Madison 
Taylor 

Share 
15.8% 
18.9% 
31.8% 
33.4% 

The shares for the counties were based on their respective population and solid waste 
management use. The governing board for this entity is made up of one representative from 
each County. Each County Commission appoints one of its members as its representative to 
the Board of Aucilla Area Solid Waste Administration. The Board is responsible for oversight 
and administration of this entity. The joint venture started solid waste disposal operations in 
December 1992. 

The County's share in Aucilla Area Solid Waste Administration's assets, liabilities and equity as 
of September 30, 201 0, is as follows: 



Assets 
Liabilities 
Fund Balance 

During the fiscal year, the County paid $ 315,256 to Aucilla Area Solid Waste Administration 
and as of September 30, 2011, owed the landfill $ 22,487. Financial information including 
separately issued financial statements concerning this joint venture can be obtained from the 
Aucilla Area Solid Waste Administration. 
In order to equalize transportation costs in transporting waste to the Aucilla Area Solid Waste 
Administration landfill, participating counties agreed to reimburse Dixie County for its additional 
mileage. The interlocal agreement provides that Dixie County will be compensated from the 
time the landfill opened. The County's share of the reimbursement cost, according to the 
agreement, is not to exceed $44,000 per year. Effective September 1, 1997, the County 
contributes money to Dixie County at the end of each fiscal year pursuant to the formula in the 
amended agreement dated July 17, 1995. These transportation costs are paid with landfill 
surcharge fees paid by the County residents and are reflected as a liability on the 
accompanying financial statements. 

NOTE 19. OPERATING LEASES 

The Clerk of the Circuit Court and Supervisor of Elections have operating lease agreements for 
equipment with Pitney Bowes. The future minimum lease payments under these agreements at 
September 30, 201 1, are as follows: 

September 30, 
201 0 

Minimum Lease Payment 
$ 3,276 

NOTE 21. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN (OPEB) 

The County is legally required to include any retirees for whom it provides health insurance 
coverage in the same insurance pool as its active employees, whether the premiums are paid 
by the County or the retiree. Participating retirees are considered to receive a secondary 
benefit known as an "implicit rate subsidy." This benefit relates to the assumption that the 
retiree is receiving a more favorable premium rate than they would otherwise be able to obtain if 
purchasing insurance on their own, due to being included in the same pool with the county 
younger and statistically healthier active employees. GASB Statement 45 requires 
governments to report this cost and related liability in its financial statements. 

Due to the fact that only one retiree participated in the plan during the year and that it is 
anticipated that this situation will continue in the future because most employees work until they 
are eligible for Medicare benefits, management had determined that the County's OPEB 
obligation at year end would be of a de minimis amount. Management will monitor this situation 
in the future and take appropriate steps to properly comply with this GASB Statement. 



NOTE 22. FUND EQUITY DEFICITS 

The following governmental funds had deficit fund balances at September 30, 201 1: 
Community Development Block Grant $ (2,064) 
Small County Road Assistance Program (1,042) 
Small County Outreach Program (507) 

(3,613) 

The deficits of these funds will be funded by grant revenues or interfund transfers received in 
the ensuing year. 





TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

Budgeted Amounts 
Or~g~nal  hnal 

Actual 
Amounts 

F W m E  
Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeitures 
Miscellaneous 
Special assessments 
lnterest 

Total revenues 

MPWMTURES 
Current expenditures 
General government 
Public safety 
Physical environment 
Transportation 
Economic environment 
Human services 
Culture I recreation 
Court-related 

Capital outlay 
General government 
Public safety 
Physical environment 
Human services 
Culture I recreation 
Court-related 

Debt service 
Principal 
lnterest 

Total expenditures 
Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 

O T W  FINANCING SOURCB 
(us=) 
lnterfund transfers in 
lnterfund transfers out 

Total other financing sources 
(uses) 

Net change in  fund balance 
Fund balance at beginning of 
year 

Fund balance at end of year 

See notes to  financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

Actual 
(Negative) Amounts 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental 704,000 704,000 
Miscellaneous 2,000 2,000 
Interest 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current expenditures 
Physical environment 
Transportation 

Capital outlay 
Physical environment 
Transportation 

Total expenditures 
Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

(USES) 
Interfund transfers in 

Total other financing sources 
(uses) 

Net change in fund balance 
Fund balance at beginning of 
year 

Fund balance at end of year 

See notes to financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
MUNICIPAL SERVICES FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Variance with 
Rnal Budget 

Pos i t i i  
(Negative) 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 
Amounts Original Final 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ 1,189,621 $ 1,189,621 
Licenses and permits 162,886 162,886 
Charges for services 74,227 74,227 
Rnes and forfeitures 
Miscellaneous 5,000 8,725 
Interest 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current expenditures 
General government 
Public safety 
Human services 
Culture I recreation 

Capital outlay 
General government 
Public safety 91 1,899 81 5,605 

Total ex~enditures 2,332,982 2.354.559 . . . . 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures (898,248) (91 6,100) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

(USES) 
lnterfund transfers in 52,530 
lnterfund transfers out (97,486) (97,486) 

Total other financing sources 
(uses) (97,486) (44,956) 

Net change in fund balance (995,734) (961,056) 
Fund balance at beginning of 
year 1 ,I 63,862 1 , I  63,862 

Fund balance at end of year $ 168,128 $ 202,806 

See notes to financial statements. 



EXPENDITURES 
Debt service 

TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

HOSPITAL SALES TAX FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Budgeted Amounts 
- - 

O G i n a l  Final 

Principal $ 450,000 8 450,000 
Interest 

Total ex~enditures . . . . 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures (1,053,831) (1,053,831) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

Interfund transfers in 1,060,404 1,060,404 
Total other financing sources 
(uses) 1,060,404 1,060,404 

Net change in fund balance 6,573 6,573 
Fund balance at beginning of 
Year 751,916 751,916 

Fund balance at end of year $ 758,489 $ 758,489 

See notes to financial statements. 

Actual 
Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Pos i t i i  
(Negative) 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SOLID WASTE FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDI'I'URES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 
Variance with 
final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original final 

Actual 
Amounts 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Miscellaneous 
Special assessments 
Interest 

Total revenues 

MPENDI'TURES 
Current expenditures 
Physical environment 

Capital outlay 
Physical environment 

Total expenditures 
Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

(USES) 
lnterfund transfers in 
lnterfund transfers out 

Total other financing sources 
(uses) 

Net change in fund balance 
Fund balance at beginning of 
year 

Fund balance at end of year 

See notes to financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SHERIFF 

OPERATING FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDI'TURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2011 

F F J m  
Intergovernmental revenue 
Federal grants 
Public safety 

Total intergovernmental revenue 

Charges for services 
Public safety 

Miscellaneous 
Interest earnings 
Other 

Total miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

MPBWTWZS 
Public safety 
Law enforcement 
Personal services 
Operating expenses 
Capital outlay 

Total law enforcement 

Detention and correction 
Personal services 
Operating expenses 
Capital outlay 

Total detention and correction 
Total expenditures 

6ccess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

OTI-ER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers from Board of County 
Commissioners 

Net change in fund balance 
Fund balance at beginning of year 
Fund balance at end of year 

Variance 
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 

Or~ginal hnal Amounts (Negative) 

#VALUEI #VALUE! W A L M  WALLR 

#VALM #V ALUEI #VALUEI WALLR 
#VALUE #VALUB #VALUE! WALLR 
#VALUEI #VALUE! #VALUE! W ALLR 

#VALUEI #VALUb WALUU v 

#VALUE! #VALUE! #VALE! W ALLR 
#VALUEI #VALUE! #VALLEI WALLR 
#VALUE! #VALUE! #VALM #VALLEI 

#VALLR37wxma-#VALUEI- 
# V A L [ R v # V A C U E ! # V A L U E I  

See notes to financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

TAX COLLECTOR 
OPERATING FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTIJAL 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

REV- 
Charges for services 
County Officer fees 
Tax rol l  commissions 

Board of County Commissioners 
SRWM D 

Advertising 
Advertising delinquent 
Fees FWCC 
Board of County Commissioners 
postage 

DMV fees 
Fees sales tax 
Fees miscellaneous 
Fees drivers l icenses 
Tax certificate fees 
EComm fees 

Total charges for  services 

Miscellaneous 
Interest earnings 
Other 

Total miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

MPBSOITURE 
General government 

Personal services 
Executive salaries 
Regular salaries 
Special pay 
Temporary salaries 
FICA 
Retirement 
Life and health insurance 

Total personal services 
(Continued) 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Orig~nal i-~nal Amounts (Negative) 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIIIA 
TAX COLLECTOR 
OPERATING FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Operating expenses 
Mucation 
Legal ads 
Professional services 
Other contractual services 
Travel and per diem 
Communications 
Transportation 
Rentals and leases 
Insurance 
Repairs and maintenance 
Office supplies 
Books, publications and 
subscriptions 

Other current charges 
Total operating expenses 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (US=) 
Transfers from Board of County 
Commissioners 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
Net change in fund balance 
Fund balance at beginning of 
year 

Fund balance at end of year 

Budgeted Amounts Actual POS itive 
Or~g~nal  hnal Amounts (Negative) 

See notes to financial statements. 
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TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SECONDARY ROAD PROJECTS FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 
Amounts Original 

REVENUES 
Final 

Intergovernmental 
Interest 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current expenditures 
Transportation 400 

Capital outlay 
Transportation 2,794,689 

Total expenditures 2,795,089 
Excess of revenues over 
expenditures (1,909,313) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
(USES) 
lnterfund transfers out (890,687) 

Total other financing sources 
(uses) (890,687) 

Net change in fund balance (2,800,000) 
Fund balance at beginning of 
year 3,434,427 

Fund balance at end of year $ 634,427 

See notes to financial statements. 





TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

September 30 201 1 

Clerk of the Circuit Court 
Clerk of 

Courts Clerk Clerk CSE Clerk CSE Information 

Operating Court Incentive Reimbursment Technology 

ASSETS 

Current assets 

Cash 

Accounts receivable 

Due from other funds 

Due from other governmental units 

Investments 

Total assets 

LlABlLlTlB AND FUND BALANCES 

LlABlLITlS 

Current liablilties 

Accounts payable 

Due to other funds 

Due to other governmental units 

Accrued wages 

Revenues collected in advance 

Other current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 

Restricted 

Assigned 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilites and fund balances 

See notes to financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

September 30,201 1 
Revenue Funds 

Property 
Appraiser Sheriff 

Public Local Law Special Law 

Records State Teen h u g  Task Nongrant Inmate Enforcement Enforcement 

Modernization Court Court Operating Force Grant Forfeiture Welfare Block Grant Trust 



ASSETS 

Cash 

TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

September 30,291 1 

of Elections 
Community Local 

Development Housing 

Operating Block Grant Airport Grants 2005-2010 

$ 10,304 S - S 8,256 S - S 413,991 
Accounts receivable 208 

Due from other funds 
Due from other governmental units 

Investments 

Total assets 

LIABILITIB AND FUND BALANCES 

LlABlLlTlE 

Current liablilties 

Accounts payable 

Due to other funds 

Due to other governmental units 

Accrued wages 

Revenues collected in advance 
Other current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

FUND BALANCB 

Restricted 

Assigned 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilites and fund balances 

See notes to financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

September 30,201 1 
Revenue Funds Capital Projects Funds 

Board of County Commissioners Total 

Tourist Florida Tourist Small Small Small Nonmajor 
Development Boating Tax lnfra- Courthouse County Road County governmental 

MSBU Trust Landfill lmprovemenl structure Facilities Assistance Outreach Funds 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND 

BALANCES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Special 

Clerk of the Circuit Court 
Clerk of 
courts 

Operating 
Clerk 
Court 

Clerk CSE Clerk CSE Information 
Incentive Reimbursrnent Technology 

PUDllC 
Records 

Modernization 
REVBJUS 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental revenue 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeitures 
Miscellaneous 
Special assessments 
Interest 

Total revenues 

MPBJDITIRZeS 
Current Expenditures 
General government 
Public safety 
Physical environment 
Transportation 
konomic environment 
Culturelrecreation 
Court-related 

Capital outlay 
General government 
Public safety 
Physical environment 
Transportation 
konomic environment 
Culturelrecreation 
Court-related 

Debt service 
Principal 
lnterest 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures (598,074) 

O T H  FINANCING SOURCES 
(us=) 
Interfund transfers in 598,074 
lnterfund transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 598,074 
Net change in fund balances 
Fund balances beginning of year 
Fund balances end of year 5 
See notes to financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND 

BALANCES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

FaevenueFunds 
Property 

Appraiser Sheriff 
Local Law Speclal Law 

State Teen Drug Task Nongrant Inmate bforcement Gforcement 
Court Court Operating Force Grant Forfeitures Welfare Block Grant Trust 

f - f - f - f - s - f - f - f 
136,681 85,839 1 1 

10,159 14,447 861 
500 

11 26,231 

5 0 
136,681 10,170 85,844 - 40,679 861 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA I 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND 
BALANCES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 
Special Revenue Funds 

Supervls or 
of Elections Board of County 

Community Local 
Development Housing 

Operating Block Grant Airport Grants 2005-201 0 MSW 

I 
RWEMJeS 
Taxes S - S - S - S - S - S 
Intergovernmental revenue 4,169 162,293 
Charges for services 56,026 

I 
Fines and forfeitures 
Miscellaneous 72 
Special assessments 54,027 I 
lnterest 

Total revenues 

MPBYDITUm 
Current Expenditures 
General government 
Public safety 
Physical environment 
Transportation 
Economic environment 
Culturelrecreation 
Court-related 

Capital outlay 
General government 
Public safety 
Physical environment 
Trans portation 
Economic environment 
Culturelrecreation 
Court-related 

Debt Service 
Principal 
lnterest 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures (323,531) 

O T m  FINANCING SOURCES 
(us=) 
lnterfund transfers in 323,531 
lnterfund transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 323,531 
Net change in fund balances 
Fund balances beginning of year 
Fund balances end of vear S 

See  notes to financial statements 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND 

BALANCES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 I 

Capital Projects Funds 

Commissioners 
Tour~st klor~da T o m  Small County Small Small Total Nonmajol 

Development Boating Tax Infra- Courthouse County Road County Governmental 
Trust Landfill Improvement structure Facility Assistance Outreach Funds 





INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of County Commissioners 
and Constitutional Officers 
Taylor County, Florida 

We have audited the basic financial statements of Taylor County, Florida (the County), as of 
and for the year ended September 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated 
February 19, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Re~ortinq - In planning and performing our audit, we considered 
Taylor County, Florida's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Taylor County, Florida's, 
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the County's internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies 
in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or 
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

Compliance and Other Matters - As part of obtaining reasonable assurarlce about whether 
Taylor County, Florida's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct ar~d material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 



This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Taylor County 
Board of County Commissioners and Constitutional Officers, federal and state awarding 
agencies and pass-through entities, and the Auditor General of Florida, and is not intended to 
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

POWELL & JONES 
Certified Public Accountants 
February 19, 2012 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR 

STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROJECT 

Honorable Board of County Commissioners 
and Constitutional Officers 
Taylor County, Florida 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of Taylor County, Florida with the types of compliar~ce 
requirements described in the Executive Ofice of the Governor's State Projects Compliance 
Supplement, that are applicable to each of its major state financial assistance projects for the 
year ended September 30, 201 1. Taylor County, Florida's state financial assistance projects 
are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of 
Findings. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants 
applicable to each of its major state financial assistance projects is the responsibility of Taylor 
County, Florida's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Taylor County, 
Florida's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; 
and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Those standards and Chapter 10.550, Rules 
of the Auditor General, require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal awards program or state 
financial assistance project occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
about Taylor County, Florida's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstarices. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of 
Taylor County, Florida's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, Taylor County, Florida complied, in all material respects, with the requirements 
referred to above that are applicable to each of its major state financial assistar~ce projects for 
the year ended September 30, 201 1. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of Taylor County, Florida is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants applicable to state financial assistance projects. In planning and performing our audit, 



we considered Taylor County, Florida's internal control over compliance with requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on a major state financial assistance project to determine 
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test 
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the 
Auditor General, 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all 
matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a 
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal and control components 
does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable 
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a 
major federal awards program or state financial assistance project being audited may occur and 
not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its 
operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance 

We have audited the basic financial statements of Taylor County, Florida as of and for the year 
ended September 30, 201 1, and have issued our report thereon dated February 19, 2012. Our 
audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state 
financial assistance is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Chapter 
10.550, Rules of the Auditor General and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements, and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

This report it intended solely for the information and use of the Board of County Commissioners, 
Constitutional Officers, management, and federal and state awarding agencies, pass-through 
entities, and the Auditor General of the State of Florida, and is not intended to be and should not 
be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

w 
POWELL & JONES 
Certified Public Accountants 
February 19,2012 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Reserved 
Program Reported In Deferred In Deferred 

Federal  and S ta te  G r a n t o r l P a s s  T h r o u g h  Gran to r  o r  Award P r i o r  P r lo r  Revenues Revenues 
Program T i t l e  CFDAU Grant A m o u n t  Years Year  Received Expenditures 913012010 

F E D E R A L  AWARDS 
N O N M A J O R  P R O G R A M S  
US D E P A R T M E N T  O F  JUSTICE 
passed  th rough  Flor ida Department  o f  Law Enfo rcement  
Byrne Formu la  Grant Program 16.579 2010-JAGC-TAYL-I-4x-09! $ 88,165 $ - S - $ 88,165 $ 88,165 S 

88,165 88,165 88,165 
US D E P A R T M E N T  O F  TRANSPORTATION 
Federa l  A v i a t i o n  Admln-A i rpor t  Improvement  P r o g r a m  
passed  th rough  the  F lo r ida  Department  o f  T ranspor ta t ion  20.106 3-12-0064-009-2009 188,914 115,185 188,9l4 

20.M6 3-12-0064-008-2009 131.665 8.770 8.770 144.021 

US ELECTION ASSISTANCE COMMISSION 
passed  th rough  F lo r ida  Department  o f  S ta te  
He lp  Amer ica  V o t e  
Help Amer ica  V o t e  

F E D E R A L  OFFICE OF CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT 
passed  th rough  the F lo r lda  Depar tment  o f  Revenue 

T i t l e  IV-D 
CSE Incent ive 93.563 
CSE Reimbursement  93.563 

F E D E R A L  D E P A R T M E N T  OF H O M E L A N D  SECURITY 
passed  th rough  Flor ida D l v l s i o n  o f  Emergency Management  

Emergency Management  Preparedness and Ass is tance  97.067 08-DS-60-03-72-01-305 69,848 28,000 
Emergency Management  Preparedness and Ass is tance  97.067 lo-DS-51-03.72-01-197 29,000 
Emergency Management  Preparedness and A s s i s t a n c e  97.067 lo-BG-25-03-71-01-132 22,571 22,522 22,522 

12 1,4 19 28,000 93,370 93,370 
T o t a l  federal awards $ 606,886 $ 159,665 $ 3.629 $ 366,228 $ 438,931 $ 4,655 

See no tes  t o  schedule o f  expenditures o f  federal awards and s t a t e  f inancia l  ass ls tance.  



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Program Repor ted i n  
o r  Award Pr ior  

G ~ U A R  w a n t   mount years  

Deferred I n  
P r l o r  Revenues 
T ear nece~veo  

Reserved 
Deferred 
Revenues 

txpenol tures  YISUIZUIU 
Federal and State Grantor lPass Through Grantor 
r r o g r a m  I l r ie  

MAJOR PROGRAMS 
D e p a r l m n t  0 f Environmental Pro tec t ion 
Small County So l ld  Waste Grant Agreement 

Sta le  Housing ln l t ia t iver  Program 
SHlP Funds 2 0 0 7  
SHlP Funds 2 0 0 8  
SHlP Funds 2 0 0 9  

N I  A 
N I A  
N I  A 

SHlP Funds 2010 

Department o f  Transportat ion 

N I A  350.000 2 0 8 , 4 2 2  141.940 25 ,281 3 2 5 , 0 8 1  
1 ,400,000 591.483 6 8 0 , c  154,128 190,373- 644,514 

smal l  County 0utrea;h Program 
Robe r t s  Aman Road 
W o o d s  Creek Road 
Puckett Road 

Small County Road Assistance PrograWSCRAP 
Pisgah Road 
East Red Padgett  Road 
Foley Road 

Av ia t ion  DeveloDment Grants 

To ta l  malor programs 

NONMAJOR PROGRAMS: 
Of f lce  o f  Sta le  Cour ts  Admln ls t ra t lon  
Small County Courthouse Facl l l t les Grant 2 0 0 7 - 2 0 0 8  

Department o f  Environmental P ro  t ec l i on  
F lo r l da  Recreat ion Development P r o g r a d F R D A P  
Stelnhatchee Community Center lmprovemcnts 

Department o f  Agriculture and Consumer Servlces 
A r th ropod  M osqu l to  Con t ro l  S ta te  A l d  N I A  42.338 

Department o f  Sta te  
Sta te  A i d  t o  Librar ies 

Department o f  Transpor ta t lon  
commlss lon f o r  the Transportat lon Dlradvantaged 

Transpor ta t lon  Dlsadvantaged Grant 

Department o f  Community Af fa l rs  
Emergency Management Program 

FEMA- t rop i ca l  S to rm  Fay 

See notes  t o  schedule o f  expenditures o f  federal  awards and s l a te  flnanclal assistance. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Reserved 

Federal and State GrantorlPass Through Grantor 

Program Reported In Deferred In 

o r  Award Pr io r  Pr io r  Revenues 

Deferred 

Revenues 

Program Tit le C F D A t  Grant Amount Years Year Received Expenditures 9/30/2010 

Florida F ish  and Wlldlife Conservat ion Commission 

Florida Boat ing Improvement Program Grant 77.006 

Department o f  Management Services 

Wireless 911Board 

911 Wireless State Funds 

Small County Supplemental Grant 

Rural County Grant Spring Program 

Rural County Grant Fal l  Program 

Tota l  nonmajor programs 

Tota l  state financial assistance 

NIA 

N /A 

N /A 

N I A  

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state flnanclal assistance. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
and State Financial Assistance 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies and presentation of the Single Audit Report of Taylor, County, Florida, 
(the "County") have been designed to conform to generally accepted accounting principles as 
applicable to governmental units, including the reporting and cornpliar~ce requirements of the 
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and Office of Management 
and Budget Circular A-1 33. 

A. Reporting Entity 

The reporting entity consists of Taylor County, the primary government, and each of its 
component units. The County includes a Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and 
State Financial Assistance in the Compliance Section 

B. Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recogrrized in 
the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting related to the timing 
of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus. 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards and State Financial Assistance. Under the modified accrual basis, revenues are 
recognized when they become measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be 
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay 
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be available 
if they are collected within 60 days after the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures 
generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued 

lntemal control over financial reporting 
*Material weakness identified? 
'Reportable condition identified not considered 

to be a material weakness? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements 

lntemal control over major programs: 
' Material weakness identified? 

Reportable conditions identified that are not 
considered to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance 
for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to 
be reported in accordance with rule 10.656, 
Rules of the Auditor General? 

CSFA Number 
52.901 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A and Type B programs: 

Financial Statement Findings 

None 

State Financial Assistance Findings and 
Questioned Costs 

None 

Unqualified 

No 

None reported 

No 

No 

None reported 

Unqualified 

Name of State Program 
State Housing Initiatives Program 

Department of Transportation 
Small County Outreach Program 



MANAGEMENT LETTER 

Honorable Board of County Commissioners 
and Constitutional Officers 
Taylor County, Florida 

We have audited the financial statements of Taylor County, Florida (the County), as of and for 
the year ended September 30, 201 1, and have issued our report thereon dated February 19, 
2012. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. We have issued 
our lndependent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, lndependent Auditor's Report on Compliance 
and Internal Control over Compliance Applicable to each Major Federal Awards Program and 
State Financial Assistance Project, and Schedule of Findings. Disclosures in those reports and 
schedule, which are dated February 19, 2012, should be considered in conjunction with this 
management letter. Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with Chapter 10.550, 
Rules of the Auditor General, which govern the conduct of local governmental entity audits 
performed in the State of Florida and require that the following items be addressed in this letter. 

BOARD OF COUNlY COMMISSIONERS 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the prior year. 

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the current year. 

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the prior year. 

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the current year. 



PROPERTY APPRAISER 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the prior year. 

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 
Cash Receipts - From our tests of selected cash receipts we found that the receipts issued, 
generally were not deposited on a regular basis and we also could not trace specific receipts to 
corresponding bank deposits. 
To strengthen internal control over cash receipts we recommend the following: 
1. Deposits should be made as frequently as feasible, but always on a monthly basis. 
2. When a deposit is made, the covered receipts should be totaled and the calculator 

tape attached to the duplicate receipts totaled. 
3. A separate employee should verify that the tape and bank deposit are in agreement. 

SHERIFF 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the prior year. 

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the current year. 

SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS 

PRIOR YEAR FlNDlNGS 

There were no reportable findings in the prior year. 

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the current year. 

TAX COLLECTOR 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the prior year. 



CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the current year. 

AUDITOR GENERAL COMPLIANCE MAlTERS 

Annual Local Government Financial Report - The Financial Report filed with the Department of 
Financial Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the 
accompanying financial report of Taylor County, Florida, for the year ended September 30, 
201 1. 

Investment of Public Funds - The County complied with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, 
regarding the investment of public funds during the fiscal year. 

Financial Emeraencv Status - Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the 
County had met any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, that 
might result in a financial emergency. 

Financial Condition Assessment - As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Sections 
10.554(g)(6)c. and 10.556), we applied financial condition assessment procedures. It is 
management's responsibility to monitor the entity's financial condition, and our financial 
condition assessment was based in part on representations made by management and the 
review of financial information they provided. 

Requirements of Section 28.35. Florida Statutes - For the fiscal year ended September 30, 
201 1, the Clerk of the Circuit Court complied with the following: 

1. The budget certified by the Florida Clerk of Courts Operations Corporation. 
2. The performance standards developed and certified to Section 28.35, Florida Statutes. 

Our audit did not disclose any further items that would be required to be reported under the 
Rules of the Auditor General, Chapter 10.554(1)(f). 

CONCLUSION 

We have reviewed information regarding our audit with appropriate County officials and 
management and have provided them with appropriate documentation as requested. We very 
much enjoyed the challenges and experiences associated with this audit of the County. We 
look forward to a long and mutually beneficial relationship with the Board of County 
Commissioners and other County Officials and employees. We also appreciate the helpful 
assistance and courtesy afforded us by all County employees. 
n r 

POWELL & JONES 
Certified Public Accountants 
February 19, 201 2 



CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Clerk of the Circuit Court 
Taylor County, Florida 

We have audited the accompanying special purpose fund financial statements of the Taylor County Clerk 
of the Circuit Court (the Clerk) as of and for the year ended September 30, 201 1, as listed in the table of 
contents. These special purpose fund financial statements are the responsibility of the Clerk. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the special purpose fund financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the special purpose fund financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the Clerk, as well as 
evaluating the overall special purpose fund financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

The accompanying special purpose fund financial statements were prepared for the purpose of complying 
with Section 21 8.39(8), Florida Statutes, and Rule 10.557(5), of Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor 
General - Local Governmental Entity Audits. As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Clerk 
of the Circuit Court is part of the reporting entity, Taylor County, Florida. Accordingly, these special 
purpose fund financial statements are not a complete presentation of the reporting entity's basic financial 
statements. 

In our opinion, the special purpose fund financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Taylor County Clerk of the Circuit Court, as of September 
30, 201 1, the results of its operations and budgetary comparisons for the year then ended in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated February 12, 
2012, on our consideration of the Clerk's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 



accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of 
our audit. 
Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the special purpose fund financial 
statements taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund financial statements listed in the table of 
contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the special 
purpose fund financial statements of the Clerk of the Circuit Court. Such information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the special purpose fund financial statements and, in our 
opinion, is fairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the special purpose fund financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

?en;,-a OP---l 

POWELL &JONES 

February 12, 201 2 

'i, 
Certified Public Accountants 





ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other funds 
Investments 

Total assets 

TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUNDS 

September 30,2011 

Fiduciary 
Governmental Funds Funds 

Tota Is 
Special Agency (Memorandum 

General Fund Revenue Funds Funds Onlvl 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 
LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 7,389 $ - $ - $ 7,389 
Due to individuals 90,687 90,687 
Due to other funds 109,943 109,943 
Due to other governmental units 192,237 8,491 12,174 212,902 
Accrued interest payable 4,017 4,OI 7 
Cash bonds liability 31,612 31,612 
Other current liabilities 200 36,049 36,249 

Total liabilities 199,826 8,491 284,482 492,799 

FUND EQUITY 
Restricted fund balance - 742,023 742,023 

Total liabilities and fund equity $ 199,826 $ 750,514 $ 284,482 $ 1,234,822 

See notes to financial statements 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 
Special 
Revenue 

General Fund Funds Totals 

REVENUES 
lntergovernmenta l revenue $ - $ 646,158 $ 646,158 
Charges for services 80,856 45,934 126,790 
Miscellaneous 129 514 643 

Total revenues 80,985 692,606 773,591 

EXPENDITURES 
Current expenditures 

General government 
Court-related 

Capital outlay 
General government 
Court-related 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures (598,074) 82,071 (516,003) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers from Board of County 

Commissioners 598,074 598,074 

Net change in fund balances 82,071 82,071 
Fund balances at beginning of year 659,952 659,952 
Fund balances at end of year 8 - $ 742,023 $ 742,023 

See notes to financial statements 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND 

1 
ACTUAL 

GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 1 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 t 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental revenue 
Charges for services 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current expenditures 

General government 
Courtgela ted 

Capital outlay 
General government 
Courtgelated 

Total expenditures 

General Fund Special Revenue Funds 
Variance Variance 

Final Positive Final Positive 
Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative) 1 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (772,234) (598,074) 174,160 (498,205) 82,071 580,2761 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers from the Board of 
County Commissioners 772,234 598,074 (1 74,160) 

Net change in fund balances - (498,205) 82,071 580,276 
Fund balances at beginning of year 659,952 659,952 
Fund balances at end of year $ $ $ 161,747 

See notes to financial statements. I 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 201 1 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies of the Taylor County Clerk of the 
Circuit Court (Clerk). 

A. Reporting Entity - The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in its Statement No. 
14, "The Financial Reporting Entity," establishes standards for defining the financial reporting entity. In 
developing these standards, the GAS6 assumed that all governmental organizations are responsible to 
elected officials at the federal, state, or local level. Financial reporting by a state or local government 
should report the elected officials' accountability for those organizations. 

The Clerk, as established by Article Vlll of the Constitution of the State of Florida, is an elected official of 
the County. Although the Clerk's Office is operationally autonomous from the Board of County 
Commissioners, it does not hold sufficient corporate powers of its own to be considered a legally separate 
entity for financial reporting purposes. Therefore, the Clerk is reported as a part of the primary 
government of Taylor County, Florida. The Clerk's financial statements do not purport to reflect the 
financial position or the results of operations of Taylor County, Florida, taken as a whole. 

These special purpose financial statements of the Clerk are issued separately to comply with Section 
10.557(4), Rules of the Auditor General for Local Governmental Entity Audits, pursuant to Section 
1 1.45(3), Florida Statutes. 

B. Fund Accounting - Accounts are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a 
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self- 
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund entity, revenues, and expenditures. 
Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes 
for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The funds 
utilized by the Clerk are as follows: 

(1) Governmental Funds 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Clerk of 
the Circuit Court. It is used to account for all financial resources not properly accounted 
for in any other fund. 

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for the 
proceeds of specific revenue sources which are legally restricted to expenditures for 
specified purposes. As of September 30, 2011, the Clerk maintained the following 
Special revenue funds: 

Court Fund 
Child Support Enforcement Incentive 
Child Support Enforcement Reimbursement 
Information Technology 
Public Records Modernization Trust 
State Court 
Teen Court Grants 



2) Fiduciary Funds 

Agency Funds - Agency funds are required and used by the Clerk to account for 
resources received from and disbursed to other governmental units, other funds of Taylor 

County and individuals. The Clerk functions purely as an agent for others in the 
maintenance of these funds. The following agency funds are maintained: 

General Trust 
Child Support 
Registry of Court 
Cash Bond 

C. Basis of Accounting - The "Basis of Accounting" refers to when revenues and expenditures and 
the related assets and liabilities are recognized in the accounting records and reported in the financial 
statements. The Clerk of the Circuit Court currently maintains the accounting records for all funds on the 
cash basis. However, for financial statement purposes appropriate adjustments are made to report 
governmental and fiduciary fund types using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the 
modified accrual basis, revenues are generally recognized when they become measurable and available 
as net current assets. Expenditures are reported when incurred with the exception of prepaid expenses 
and principal and interest on general long-term obligations. 

D. Budget - Chapter 129, Florida Statutes, requires that budgets be adopted for all funds as may be 
required by law, sound financial practices, and generally accepted accounting principles and that budgets 
be adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Pursuant to this 
requirement, the County adopts an annual comprehensive appropriated budget, which includes 
appropriations to the General Fund of the Clerk of the Circuit Court. 

In the budgetary comparisons included in these financial statements, both the amounts budgeted and the 
actual amounts reported are presented on the GAAP basis. Budgetary comparisons present the 
appropriated budget of the Clerk of the Circuit Court. 

E. Cash and Investments - Deposits are carried at cost which approximates market value. The 
carrying amount of deposits is separately displayed on the balance sheet as "Cash." At September 30, 
201 1, the book balance of the Clerk's deposits was $ 742,879. This bank balance was covered by 
federal depository insurance and collateral held at various qualified public depositories. Chapter 280, 
Florida Statutes, defines the eligible collateral for these qualified public depositories. 

The collateral for the Clerk's deposits is categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by 
the Clerk at year end. Category 1 includes deposits that are insured or registered or for which the 
securities are held by the Clerk or her agent in the Clerk's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and 
unregistered deposits for which the securities are held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in 
the Clerk's name. Category 3 includes uninsured or unregistered deposits for which the securities are 
held by the counterparty's trust department or agent, but not in the Clerk's name. All of the collateral 
covering the Clerk's deposits was Category 1. 

F. Inventories - It is the policy of the Clerk to record the acquisition of supplies as expenditures at 
the time of purchase. The amount of supplies on hand at any one time would be a nominal amount and 
considered to be immaterial. 

G. Fixed Assets - Fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations are accounted for in the 
General Capital Assets Accounts. All fixed assets acquired by purchase are recorded at historical cost. 
Donated assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date donated. Depreciation expense 
has been recorded on the County's general fixed assets. Assets purchased by the Clerk are reported in 
the County's Governmental Capital Assets Accounts. 

H. Compensated Absences - Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be 
paid, such as vacation and sick leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to 
services already rendered and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the 
government and its employees is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated 
absences that relate to future services or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control 
of the government and its employees are accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered 
or such events take place. 



In the governmental funds, compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated with expendable 
available financial resources are reported as an expenditure and fund liability in the fund of the Board of 
County Commissioners that will pay for them. The remainder of the compensated absences liability 
totaling $78,731 is reported in the General Long-Term Debt Accounts of Taylor County, Florida. 

1. Total Column on the Combined Statements - The total column on the combined statements is 
captioned "Memorandum Only" to indicate that it is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in 
this column does not present financial position, results of operations, or changes in cash flows in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, nor is such data comparable to a consolidation. 
lnterfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. 

J. Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

K. Risk Management - The Clerk is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, 
damage to and destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees and the public; or 
damage to property of others. The Clerk directly purchases insurance and participates in the risk 
management program through the Taylor County Board of County Commissioners which uses 
commercial insurance and a public entity risk pool to cover certain risks from loss. 

NOTE 2. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

Plan Description - The Clerk contributes to the Florida Retirement System ("System'), a cost sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit plan administered by the State of Florida, Department of Administration, 
Division of Retirement. The System provides retirement, disability or death benefits to retirees or their 
designated beneficiaries. Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, establishes the authority for benefit provisions. 
Changes to the law can only occur through an act of the Florida Legislature. The System issues a 
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the Florida Retirement System, 
2639 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida, or by calling (850) 488-5706. 

Funding Policy - The System was employee noncontributory through June 30, 201 1. Effective July 1, 
201 1, all employees are required to contribute 3% to the System. The Clerk is required to contribute at 
an actuarially determined rate. The rates at September 30, 201 1 were as follows: Regular Employees 
4.91%; Senior Management 6.27%; Elected Officials 11.14% and Employees electing the DROP Program 
4.42%. The contribution requirements of plan members and the Clerk are established and may be 
amended by the Florida Legislature. The Clerk's contributions to the System for the years ending 
September 30, 201 1, 2010 and 2009 were $76,955, $86,041 and $80,539, respectively, equal to the 
required contributions for each year 

NOTE 3. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

Balances at September 30, 201 1, were: 

Interfund Interfund 
Fund Receiwbles Payables 

Public Records Modernization $ 109,943 $ 
Clerk Trust 







ASSETS 
Current assets 
Cash 

Total assets 

TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 

BALANCESHEET 

GENERAL FUND 

September 30,201 1 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 
LIABII-IT1 ES 
Current liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 7,389 
Due to Board of County Commissioners 192,237 
Other current liabilities 200 

Total liabilities and fund equity $ 199,826 

See notes to financial statements 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 

GENERAL FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2011 

Original Rnal 
Budget Budget Actual 

REvw5 
Charges for services 
General government 
Recording of legal instruments $ 40,000 
Other general government charges 24,789 

Total charges for services 64,789 

Miscellaneous 
Interest earnings 

Total miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

UPBJDITURB 
General government 
County financial and administrative 

Personal services 336,546 336,546 307,734 
Operating expenses 12,450 16,625 14,520 
Capital outlay 2,000 2,000 

Total County financial and administrativ 350,996 355,11:1 322,254 

Clerk BCC recording 
Personal services 283,657 253,661 201,303 
Operating expenses 84,650 52,886 31,441 
Capital outlay 5,000 7,720 2,720 

Total Clerk BCC recording 373,307 314,26ir 235,464 

BCC recording 
Personal services 
Operating expenses 
Capital outlay 

Total BCC recording 

BCC Clerical 
Personal services 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures (772.234) (772,234) (598,074) 

O T B  FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers from Board of County 
Commissioners 772,234 772,234 598,074 

Net change in fund balance 
Fund balance at beginning of year 
Fund balance at end of year 6 6 5 

See notes to financial statements. 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 





SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

September 30,201 1 

Child Support 
Enforcement 

Public 
Records Teen 

ASSETS 
Cash 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other funds 
Investments 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND 
BALANCES 
LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 

Total liabilties 
FUNDBALANCES 

Restricted 

Total liabilities and 
fund balances 

- 

Court Reim- Information Modernization State Court 
Fund Incentive bursement Technology Trust Court Grants Totals 

See notes to financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2011 

Child Support Public 
Enforce me n t  Records Teen 

Court Reim- Information Modernization State Court 
Fund Incentive bursement Technology Trust Court Grants Tota Is 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental revenue $ 407,114 $ - $102,363 $ - $ - $ 136,681 $ - $ 646,158 
Charges for services - 22,397 13,382 10,155 45,934 
Miscellaneous 8 475 13 7 11 51 4 
Total revenues 407,114 8 102,838 22,410 13,389 136,681 10,166 692,606 

EXPENDITURES 
Court-related 

Current expenses 
Capital outlay 28,036 - - 28,036 

Total expenditures 407,114 25,046 45,782 8,491 121,357 2,745 610,535 

Excess o f  revenues 
over (under) expenditures 8 77,792 (23,372) 4,898 15,324 7,421 82,071 

Other financing uses 
Transfers to other funds 

Fund balances a t  beginning 
of  year 14,743 455,315 162,887 7,062 19,945 659,952 

Fund balances a t  end of  
year $ - $ 14,751 $526,563 $ 139,515 $ 18,504 $ 15,324 $ 27,366 $ 742,023 

See notes to financial statements 
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TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 
AGENCY FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILI'I'IES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2011 

Balance Balance 
October 1,2010 Additions Deductions September 30,2011 

GeWAL  TRUST 
Assets 

Cash and investments $ 156,370 $ 1,910,497 $ 1,895,287 $ 171,580 
Accounts receivable 2,011 10,859 12,339 531 

Total assets 6 156,387- 6 1,9L1, 5 I /Z,III 
Liabilities 

h e  to  State $ - $ 1,496,521 $ 1,496,521 $ 
b e  to individuals and others 16,232 31,523 32,926 14,829 
Due to  other funds 138,289 5,939 34,285 109,943 
Due to  other governmental units 3,001 205,932 196,759 12,174 
Other current liabilities 859 573,927 539,621 35,165 

Total liabilities 6 158,- $ 6 6 172,111 

CHlLD SUPPORT 
Assets 

Cash 
~ o t a l  assets 
Liabilities 

Due to  other funds 
Other current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

REGISTRY OF COURT 
Assets 

Cas h 
Total assets 
Liabilities 

h e  to  individuals 
Total liabilities 

CASH BOND 
Assets 

Cash 
Total assets 
Liabilities 

Cash bonds payable $ 11,648 $ 93,064 $ 73,100 $ 31,612 
Interest payable 

Total liabilities 

TOTAL ALL AGEWY F W  
Assets 

Cash 
Accounts receivable 

Total assets 
Liabilities 

h e  to  other funds 
Due to individuals 
Due to State 
Due to other governmental units 
Cash bonds payable 
Interest payable 
Other current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

See notes to  financial statements. 





INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MAlTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Clerk of the Circuit Court 
Taylor County, Florida 

We have audited the special urpose financial statements of the Taylor Count Clerk of the Circuit Court, 
as of and for the year ended 8eptember 30,201 I. and have issued our report {hereon dated February 12. 
2012. Our report included a paragraph stating that the Clerk of the Circuit Court is an integral part of 
Taylor County, the prima government for financial reportin urposes. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with aud~ting sxndards generally accepted in the Lfnikd States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contamed in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reportinq - In planning and performing our audit, we considered the 
laylor County Clerk's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Taylor County Clerk's 

f inLrnal control over inancial reporting. 
re orting. Accordin ly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Taylor County Clerk's 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the desi n or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of pe 4 orming their assi ned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct m~sstatements on a timely bass. A material wea a ness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibilit that a material 

timely basis. 
d misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected an corrected on a 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reportin was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to i 3 entify. all deficiencies in internal control. over 
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, signlf~cant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We d ~ d  not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 

Com~liance and Other Matters - As part of obtainin reasonable assurance about whether the Taylor 7 County Clerk's financial statements are free of materia misstatement, we performed test of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Clerk of the Circuit Court of 
Ta lor County, the Board of County Commissioners, and the Auditor General of Florida. This restriction is 
no I intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matter of public record. 

POWELL & JONES w 
Certified Public Accountants 
February 12,2012 



MANAGEMENT LElTER 

Honorable Clerk of the Circuit Court 
Taylor County, Florida 

We have audited the financial statements of the Taylor County Clerk of the Circuit Court (Clerk), as of and 
for the year ended September 30, 201 1, and have issued our report thereon dated February 12, 2012. 
We have also issued our report on compliance and on internal control over financial reporting. That 
report should be considered in conjunction with this management letter. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Additionally our audit was conducted in 
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, which govern the 
conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in the State of Florida and require that certain items 
be addressed in this letter. 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the prior year. 

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the current year. 

AUDITOR GENERAL COMPLIANCE MATTERS 

Annual Local Government Financial Report - The Financial Report filed with the Department of Financial 
Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1), Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the accompanying financial 
statements of Taylor County, Florida, for the year ended September 30, 201 1. The financial statements 
of the Clerk of Circuit Court are combined with other County agencies in that report. 

Investment of Public Funds - The Clerk complied with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding the 
investment of public funds during the fiscal year. 

Financial Emer~encv Status - Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Clerk had 
met any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, that might result in a financial 
emergency. 

Financial Condition Assessment - As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Sections 
10.554(g)(6)c. and 10.556), we applied financial condition assessment procedures. It is management's 
responsibility to monitor the entity's financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based 
in part on representations made by management and the review of financial information they provided. 

Reauirements of Section 28.35, Florida Statutes - For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, the 
Clerk complied with the following: 

1. The budget certified by the Florida Clerk of Courts Operations Corporation 



2. The performance standards developed and certified to Section 28.35, Florida Statutes 

Our audit did not disclose any further items that would be required to be reported under Rules of the 
Auditor General, Chapter 10.55491 )(f). 

CONCLUSION 

We have reviewed information regarding our audit with the Clerk and have provided her with appropriate 
documentation as requested. We very much enjoyed the challenges and experiences associated with 
this audit of the Office. We appreciate the overall high quality of the financial records and personnel in 
the Clerk's Office. We also appreciate the helpful assistance and courtesy afforded us by these 
employees. 

n 

V 
POWELL & JONES 
Certified Public Accountants 
February 12,2012 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Property Appraiser 
Taylor County, Florida 

We have audited the accompanying special purpose fund financial statements of the Taylor County 
Property Appraiser (the Property Appraiser), as of and for the year ended September 30, 201 1, as listed 
in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Property Appraiser. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the special purpose fund financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the special purpose financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the Property 
Appraiser, as well as evaluating the overall special purpose fund financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

The accompanying special purpose fund financial statements were prepared for the purpose of complying 
with Section 218.39(8), Florida Statutes, and Rule 10.557(5), of Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor 
General - Local Governmental Entity Audits. As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the 
Property Appraiser is part of the reporting entity, Taylor County, Florida. Accordingly, these special 
purpose fund financial statements are not a complete presentation of the reporting entity's basic financial 
statements. 

In our opinion, the special purpose fund financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Taylor County Property Appraiser, as of September 30, 
2011, and the results of its operations for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 10, 
2012, on our consideration of the Property Appraiser's internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the result of our 
audit. 

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the special purpose fund financial 
statements taken as a whole. The individual fund financial statements listed in the table of contents are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the special purpose fund 
financial statements of the Property Appraiser. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the special purpose fund financial statements and, in our opinion, is 
fairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the special purpose fund financial statements taken 

,*a whole. 

POWELL &JONES 
Certified Public 
February 10, 2012 





ASS ETS 
Current Assets 

Cash 

LIABI I-IT1 ES 
Current Liabilities 

TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

PROPERTY APPRAISER 
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUNDS 

BALANCE SHEET 
September 30,201 1 

Governmental Fiduciary 
Fund Fund 

General Fund Agency Fund 

Accounts payable $ 311 $ - 
Due to Board of County Commissioners 74,656 
Due to other governmental units 16 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

See notes to financial statements. 

Totals 
(Memorandum 

Only) 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

PROPERTY APPRAISER 
GOVERNMENTAL FUND 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

General Fund 
EXPENDITURES 
Current expenditures 

General government 
Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCE 
Transfers from Board of County Commissioners 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance at beginning of year 
Fund balance at end of year 

See notes to financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

PROPERTY APPRAISER 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 20 1 1 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies of the Taylor County Property 
Appraiser (Property Appraiser). 

A. Reporting Entity 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in its Statement No. 14, "The Financial 
Reporting Entity," establishes standards for defining the financial reporting entity. In developing these 
standards, the GASB assumed that all governmental organizations are responsible to elected officials at 
the federal, state, or local level. Financial reporting by a state or local government should report the 
elected officials' accountability for those organizations. 

The Property Appraiser, as established by Article Vlll of the Constitution of the State of Florida, is an 
elected official of the County. Although the Property Appraiser's Office is operationally autonomous from 
the Board of County Commissioners, it does not hold sufficient corporate powers of its own to be 
considered a legally separate entity for financial reporting purposes. Therefore, the Property Appraiser is 
reported as a part of the primary government of Taylor County, Florida. The Ptoperty Appraiser's 
financial statements do not purport to reflect the financial position or the results of operations of Taylor 
County, Florida, taken as a whole. 

These special purpose financial statements of the Property Appraiser are issued separately to comply 
with Section 10.557(4), Rules of the Auditor General for Local Governmental Entity Audits, pursuant to 
Section 1 1.45(3), Florida Statutes. 

B. Fund Accounting 

Accounts are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is considered a 
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self- 
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund entity, revenues, and expenditures. 
Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes 
for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The funds and 
account group utilized by the Property Appraiser are as follows: 

(i) Governmental Fund 
General Fund - The General Fund of the Property Appraiser is used to account 

for all financial resources, which are generated from operations of the office or any other 
resources not required to be accounted for in another fund. 

(ii) Fiduciary Fund 
Agency Fund - Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the 

Property Appraiser as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, 
andlor other funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do 
not involve measurement of results of operations. 



C. Basis of Accounting 

The "Basis of Accounting" refers to when revenues and expenditures and the related assets and liabilities 
are recognized in the accounting records and reported in the financial statements. The Property 
Appraiser currently maintains his accounting records on the cash basis. However, for financial statement 
purposes appropriate adjustments are made to report the governmental fund type using the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis, revenues are generally recognized when 
they become measurable and available as net current assets. Expenditures are reported when incurred 
with the exception of prepaid expenses and principal and interest on general long-term obligations. 

D. Budget 

Chapter 129, Florida Statutes, requires that budgets be adopted for all funds as may be required by law, 
sound financial practices, and generally accepted accounting principles and that budgets be adopted on a 
basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Pursuant to this requirement, the 
County adopts an annual comprehensive appropriated budget, which includes the operating budget of the 
Property Appraiser. The Property Appraiser's budget is also subject to approval by the Florida 
Department of Revenue. 

In the budgetary comparisons included in these financial statements, both the amounts budgeted and the 
actual amounts reported are presented on the GAAP basis. Budgetary comparisons present the 
appropriated budget of the Property Appraiser. 

E. Cash and Investments 

Deposits are carried at cost which equals market value. The carrying amount of deposits is separately 
displayed on the balance sheet as "Cash." At September 30, 201 1, the book balance of the Property 
Appraiser's deposits was $83,191. The total bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance 
and pledged collateral. 

F. Inventories 

It is the policy of the Property Appraiser to record the acquisition of supplies as expenditures at the time 
of purchase. The amount of supplies on hand at any one time would be a nominal amount and 
considered to be immaterial. 

G. Fixed Assets 

Fixed assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for in the General Fixed Asset Group 
of Accounts. All fixed assets acquired by purchase are recorded at historical cost. Donated assets are 
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date donated. Property and equipment are depreciated 
using the straight-line method. Assets purchased by the Property Appraiser are reported in the Board of 
County Commissioners' Governmental Capital Assets Accounts. 

H. Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation and sick leave. 
A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered and that are not 
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the government and its employees is accrued 
as employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services or that 
are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the government and its employees are 
accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or such events take place. 

In the governmental funds, compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated with expendable 
available financial resources are reported as an expenditure and fund liability in the fund of the Board of 



County Commissioners that will pay for them. The remainder of the compensated absences liability 
totaling $7,705 is reported in the General Long-Term Debt Accounts of Taylor County, Florida. 

1. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and 
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

J. Risk Management 

The Property Appraiser is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and 
destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees and the public; or damage to property of 
others. The Property Appraiser directly purchases insurance and participates in the risk management 
program through the Taylor County Board of County Commissioners which uses commercial insurance 

. and a public entity risk pool to cover certain risks from loss. 

K. Deferred Revenues 

Deferred revenues reported in the special purpose fund financial statements represent unearned 
revenues which are measurable but not available and, in accordance with the modified accrual basis of 
accounting, are reported as deferred revenues. 

NOTE 2. PENSION PLAN 

Plan Description - The Property Appraiser contributes to the Florida Retirement System ("System"), a 
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan administered by the State of Florida, Department of 
Administration, Division of Retirement. The System provides retirement, disability or death benefits to 
retirees or their designated beneficiaries. Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, establishes the authority for 
benefit provisions. Changes to the law can only occur through an act of the Florida Legislature. The 
System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the Florida 
Retirement System, 2639 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida, or by calling (850) 488-5706. 

Funding Policy - The System was employee noncontributory through June 30, 201 1. Subsequently, 
employees are required to contribute 3% of their salaries. The Property Appraiser is required to 
contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The rates at September 30, 201 1 were as follows: Regular 
Employees 4.91%; Senior Management 6.27%; Elected Officials 11.14%, and employees electing the 
DROP Program 4.42%. The contribution requirements of plan members and the Property Appraiser are 
established and may be amended by the Florida Legislature. The Property Appraiser's contributions to 
the System for the years ending September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were $42,027, $44,562 and 
$37,673, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 







TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

PROPERTY APPRAISER 
GENERAL FUND 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 
Property Appraiser 
Personal services 
Executive salaries 
Regular salaries 
RCA 
Retirement 
Life and health insurance 

Total personal services 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Operating expenses 
Education 
Legal ads 
Professional services 
Contractual services 
Travel and per diem 
Com m unications 
Transportation 
Rentals, repairs and maintenance 
Office supplies 
Books, publications, and 
subscriptions 

Total operating expenses 

Original Final 
Budget Budget Actual 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

Capital outlay 
Machinery and equipment 4,713 

Total expenditures 737,910 704,651 637,397 67,254 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures (737,910) (704,651 ) (637,397) (24,625) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCE 
Transfers from Board of County 
Commissioners 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance at beainnina of vear - .  
Fund balance at e n i  of vear L 5 S L 

See notes to financial statements. 





TRUST ACCOUNT 
ASSETS 

Cash 

TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

PROPERTY APPRAISER 
AGENCY FUND 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Balance Balance 
October 1, September 30, 

2010 Increases Decreases 201 1 

LIABILITIES 
Due to other governmental 

units $ 34 $ 20,862 $ 20,880 $ 16 
Deferred grant revenue 8,208 8,208 

Total liabilities $ 8,242 $ 20,862 $ 20,880 $ 8,224 

See notes to financial statements. 





INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Property Appraiser 
Taylor County, Florida 

We have audited the special purpose fund financial statements of the Taylor County Property Appraiser, as of and for 
the year ended September 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated February 10, 2012. Our report 
included a paragraph stating that the Property Appraiser is an integral part of Taylor County, the primary government 
for financial reporting purposes. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting - In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Taylor County 
Property Appraiser's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Taylor County Property Appraiser's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Office's intemal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting 
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

Com~liance and Other Matters - As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Taylor County 
Property Appraiser's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance and other matters with these provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Property Appraiser of Taylor County, the Board of 
County Commissioners, and the Auditor General of Florida, and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

T~uQ* PO LL& JONES 
Certified Public ~ c c o u n t h d  
February 10,2012 



MANAGEMENT LETTER 

Honorable Property Appraiser 
Taylor County, Florida 

We have audited the special purpose fund financial statements of the Taylor County Property Appraiser, as of and for 
the year ended September 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated February 10, 2012. We have also 
issued our report on compliance and on internal control over financial reporting. That report should be considered in 
conjunction with this management letter. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Additionally our audit was conducted in accordance with the provisions of 
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, which govern the conduct of local governmental entity audits 
performed in the State of Florida and require that certain items be addressed in this letter. 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the prior year. 

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 

Cash receipts - From our tests of selected cash receipts, we found that the receipts issued generally were not 
deposited on a regular basis and we also could not trace specific receipts to corresponding bank statements. To 
strengthen internal control over cash receipts we recommend the following: 

1. Deposits should be made as frequently as feasible, but always on a monthly basis. 

2. When a deposit is made, the covered receipts should be totaled and the calculator tape attached to the 
duplicate receipts totaled. 

3. A separate employee should verify that the tape and bank deposit are in agreement. 

AUDITOR GENERAL COMPLIANCE MATTERS 

Annual Report of Units of Local Government - The financial report filed with the Department of Banking and Finance 
pursuant to Section 218.32, Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the audited financial statements of Taylor County, 
Florida, for the year ended September 30, 201 1. The financial statements of the Property Appraiser are combined 
with other County agencies in that report. 

Investment of Public Funds - The Property Appraiser complied with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding the 
investment of public funds during the fiscal year. 

Financial Emeraencv Status - Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Property Appraiser had 
met any of the conditions of Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, that might result in a financial emergency. 

Financial Condition Assessment - As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Sections 10.554(g)(6)c. and 
10.556). we applied financial condition assessment procedures. It is management's responsibility to monitor the 
entity's financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by 
management and the review of financial information they provided. 

Our audit did not disclose any further items that would be required to be reported under the Rules of the Auditor 
General, Chapter 10.544(1)(f). 

CONCLUSION 

We have reviewed information regarding our audit with the Property Appraiser and have provided him with 
appropriate documentation as requested. We very much enjoyed the challenges and experiences associated with 

135 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Sheriff 
Taylor County, Florida 

We have audited the accompanying special purpose fund financial statements of the Taylor County 
Sheriff (the Sheriff), as of and for the year ended September 30, 201 1, as listed in the table of contents. 
These special purpose fund financial statements are the responsibility of the Office of the Sheriff. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these special purpose fund financial statements based on our 
audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the special purpose fund financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the special purpose fund financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall special purpose fund financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

The accompanying special purpose fund financial statements were prepared for the purpose of complying 
with Section 218.39(8), Florida Statutes, and Rule 10.557(5), of Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor 
General - Local Governmental Entity Audits. As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the 
Sheriff is part of the reporting entity, Taylor County, Florida. Accordingly, these special purpose fund 
financial statements are not a complete presentation of the reporting entity's basic financial statements. 

In our opinion, the Sheriffs special purpose fund financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 
all material respects, the financial position of the Taylor County Sheriff, as of September 30, 201 1, the 
results of its operations and budgetary comparisons for the year then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 9, 
201 1, on our consideration of the Sheriff's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 



Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the special purpose fund financial 
statements taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund financial statements listed in the table of 
contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the special 
purpose fund financial statements of the Sheriff. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the special purpose fund financial statements and, in our opinion, is 
fairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the special purpose fund financial statements taken 
as a whole. 

POWELL & JONES 
Certified Public Accountants 
December 9,201 1 





TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SHERIFF 

COMBINED BALANCE - ALL FUND TYPES 
September 30,201 1 

Fiduciary 
Governmental Fund Types Fund Types 

Special Totals 
General Revenue (Memorandum 

Fund Funds Agency Funds Only) 
ASSETS 
Current assets 
Cash $ 276,767 $ 123,059 $ 13,215 $ 413,041 
Accounts receivable 12,191 12,191 
Due from other governmental units 14,054 14.054 

Total assets $ 288,958 $ 137,113 $ 13,215 $ 439,286 -- 
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 38,567 $ - $ 3,860 $ 42,427 
Due to Board of County Commissioners 249,772 249,772 
Due to other governmental units 7,324 7,324 
Other current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted 137,113 137,113 

Total fund balances 1 37,113 137,113 
Total liabilities and fund balances $ - $ 137,113 $ 13,215 S 439,286 

See notes to financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SHERIFF 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 
Special 

General Revenue 
Fund Funds Totals 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental revenue 

Federal grants 
Public safety $ 4,430 $ 85,840 $ 90,270 

Total intergovernmental revenue 4,430 85,840 90,270 

Charges for services 
Public safety 

Fines and forfeitures 
Forfeitures 

Miscellaneous 
Interest earnings 
Other 

Total miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Public safety 

Law enforcement 
Personal services 
Operating expenses 
Capital outlay 

Total law enforcement 

Detention and correction 
Personal services 1,675,804 1,675,804 
Operating expenses 466,889 40,652 507,541 
Capital outlay 650 650 

Total detention and correction 2,143,343 40,652 2,183,995 
Total expenditures 5,578,419 135,501 5,713,920 

Excess of  revenues over (under) 
expenditures (5,489,066) (7,615) (5,496,681) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers (to) from Board o f  County 

Commissioners 5,489,066 5,489,066 

Net change in  fund balances (7,615) (7,615) 
Fund balances at beginning o f  year 144,728 144,728 
Fund balances at end o f  year $ - $ 137,113 $ 137,113 

See notes to financial statements. 



REVENUES 
Intergovernmental  revenue 

Federal  grants 
Publ ic  sa fe ty  

T o t a l  ln tergovernmental  revenue 

Charges f o r  serv ices 
Publ lc  sa fe ty  

Fines and fo r fe i tu res  
For fe i tu res  

M iscel laneous 
Interest  earnings 
Other  

T o t a l  mlscel laneous 
T o t a l  revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Publ lc  safety 

Law enforcement 
P e r s o n a l  serv lces 
Operat lng expenses 
Capi ta l  ou t lay  

T o t a l  law enforcement 

Deten t lon  and cor rec t ion  
Persona l  s e w l c e s  
Operat lng expenses 
Capi ta l  ou t lay  

T o t a l  de ten t lon  and cor rec t ion  
T o t a l  expenditures 

Excess o f  revenues o v e r  (under) 
expendltures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers ( to )  f rom B o a r d  o f  County  

Commlss loners  

N e t  change In fund  balances 
Fund balances a t  beglnnlng o f  year 
Fund balances a t  end o f  year 

TAYLOR COUNTY. FLORIDA 
SHERIFF 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

General Fund Specia l  Revenue Funds 
Variance Variance 
P o s i t l v e  P o s i t l v e  

Budget  A c t u a l  (Negatlve) Budget  Ac tua l  (Negatlve) 

See no tes  t o  f lnancla l  statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SHERIFF 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30,201 1 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies of the Taylor County Sheriff 
(Sheriff). 

A. Reporting Entity - The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in its Statement No. 
14, "The Financial Reporting Entity," establishes standards for defining the financial reporting entity. In 
developing these standards, the GASB assumed that all governmental organizations are responsible to 
elected officials at the federal, state, or local level. Financial reporting by a state or local government 
should report the elected officials' accountability for those organizations. 

The Sheriff, as established by Article Vlll of the Constitution of the State of Florida, is an elected official of 
the County. Although the Sheriffs Office is operationally autonomous from the Board of County 
Commissioners, it does not hold sufficient corporate powers of its own to be considered a legally separate 
entity for financial reporting purposes. Therefore, the Sheriff is reported as a part of the primary 
government of Taylor County, Florida. The Sheriffs financial statements do not purport to reflect the 
financial position or results of operations of Taylor County, Florida, taken as a whole. 

These special purpose financial statements of the Sheriff are issued separately to comply with Section 
10.557(4), Rules of the Auditor General for Local Governmental Entity Audits, pursuant to Section 
1 1.45(3), Florida Statutes. 

6. Fund Accounting - Accounts are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of 
which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a 
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund entity, revenues, and 
expenditures. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon 
the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. 
The funds utilized by the Sheriff are as follows: 

(i) Governmental Funds 

General Fund - The General Fund of the Sheriff is used to account for all financial 
resources, which are generated from operations of the Office or any other resources not 
required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds 
of specific revenue sources which are legally restricted to expenditures for specified 
purposes. During the fiscal year ended September 30, 201 1, the Sheriff maintained the 
following Special Revenue Funds: 

Drug Task Force Grant 
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 
Special Law Enforcement Trust 
Non Grant Forfeiture Fund 
Inmate Welfare 

(ii) Fiduciary Funds 

Agency Funds - Agency funds are required and used by the Sheriff to account for 
resources received from and disbursed to other governmental units, other funds of 
Taylor County and individuals. The Sheriff functions purely as an agent for others in the 
maintenance of these funds. The following Agency Funds are maintained: 



Individual Depository 
Inmate Trust 

C. Basis of Accounting - The "Basis of Accounting" refers to when revenues and expenditures, and 
the related assets and liabilities, are recognized in the accounting records and reported in the financial 
statements. The Sheriff currently maintains his accounting records for all funds on the cash basis. 
However, for financial statements purposes appropriate adjustments are made to report governmental 
and fiduciary fund types using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

D. Budget - Chapter 129, Florida Statutes, requires that budgets be adopted for all funds as may be 
required by law, sound financial practices, and generally accepted accounting principles and that budgets 
be adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles(GMP). Pursuant to this 
requirement, the County adopts an annual comprehensive appropriated budget, which includes the 
operating budget of the Sheriff. 

In the budget comparisons included in these financial statements, both the amounts budgeted and the 
actual amounts reported are presented on the G M P  basis. Budgetary comparisons present the amended 
budget of the Sheriff. 

E. Cash and Investments - Deposits are carried at cost which approximates market value. The 
carrying amount of deposits is separately displayed on the balance sheet as "Cash." At September 30, 
2011, the book balance of the Sheriffs deposits was $413,041. This balance was covered by federal 
depository insurance and collateral held at various qualified public depositories. Chapter 280, Florida 
Statutes, defines the eligible collateral for these qualified public depositories. 

The collateral for the Sheriffs deposits is categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by 
the Sheriff at year end. Category 1 includes deposits that are insured or registered or for which the 
securities are held by the Sheriff or his agent in the Sheriffs name. Category 2 includes uninsured and 
unregistered deposits for which the securities are held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in 
the Sheriff's name. Category 3 includes uninsured or unregistered deposits for which the securities are 
held by the counterparty's trust department or agent, but not in the Sheriffs name. All of the collateral 
covering the Sheriffs deposits was Category 1. 

F. Inventories - It is the policy of the Sheriff to record the acquisition of supplies as expenditures at 
the time of purchase. The amount of supplies on hand at any one time would be a nominal amount and 
considered to be immaterial. 

G. Fixed Assets - Fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations are accounted for in the 
Sheriffs Capital Assets Accounts, except for its infrastructure fixed assets which the County has elected 
not to report. All fixed assets acquired by purchase are recorded at historical cost. Donated assets are 
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date donated. No depreciation has been provided on the 
Sheriffs fixed assets. 

H. Compensated Absences - Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be 
paid, such as vacation and sick leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to 
services already rendered and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the 
government and its employees is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated 
absences that relate to future services or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control 
of the government and its employees are accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered 
or such events take place. 

In the governmental funds, compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated with expendable 
available financial resources are reported as an expenditure and fund liability in the fund of the Board of 
County Commissioners that will pay for them. The remainder of the compensated absences liability 
totaling $ 494,877 is reported in the General Long-Term Debt Accounts of the Board of County 
Commissioners. 

1. Total Column on the Combined Statements - The total column on the combined statements is 
captioned "Memorandum Only" to indicate that it is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in 
this column does not present financial position, results of operations, or changes in cash flows in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, nor is such data comparable to a consolidation. 



Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. 

J.  Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that effect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

NOTE 2. CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 

A summary of changes in general fixed assets follows: 

. . 

Balance Donations Balance 
10101110 Additions Deletions and Adjustments 0913011 1 

Equipment $2,282,526 $ 179,466 $ 136,890 $ 175,019 $ 2,500,121 

NOTE 3. PENSION PLAN 

Plan Description - The Sheriff contributes to the Florida Retirement System ("System"), a cost sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit plan administered by the State of Florida, Department of Administration, 
Division of Retirement. The System provides retirement, disability or death benefits to retirees or their 
designated beneficiaries. Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, establishes the authority for benefit provisions. 
Changes to the law can only occur through an act of the Florida Legislature. The System issues a 
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the Florida Retirement System, 
2639 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida, or by calling (850)488-5706. 

Funding Policy - The System was employee noncontributory through June 30, 201 1. Subsequently, 
employees contribute 3% of their salaries to the System. The Sheriff is required to contribute at an 
actuarially determined rate. The rates at September 30, 201 1, were as follows: Regular Employees 
4.91%; Special Risk Employees 14.10%; Senior Management 6.27%; Elected Officials 11.14% and 
employees electing the DROP Program 4.42%. The contribution requirements of plan members and the 
Sheriff are established and may be amended by the Florida Legislature. The Sheriffs contributions to the 
System for the years ending September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were $ 558,923, $560,182 and 
$558,109 respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 

NOTE 4. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Sheriff participates in various public entity risk pools for certain of its insurance coverages. Under 
these insurance risk pools, the Sheriff's entity risk pool pays annual premiums to the pools for its 
insurance coverages. The agreements for formation of the pools provide that the pools will be self- 
sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in 
excess of specific amounts. 

The Sheriff continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss. Settled claims resulting from 
these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

The pooling agreements allow for the pools to make additional assessments to make the pools self- 
sustaining. It is not possible to estimate the amount of such additional assessments, which might have to 
be paid by the Sheriff. 

The pooling agreements require the pool to be self-sustaining. It is not possible to estimate the amount of 
losses, which might have to be borne by the Sheriff. 



NOTE 5. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies, principally the State and Federal governments. Any disallowed claims, including amounts 
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount if any, of expenditures 
which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the Sheriff and Board 
of County Commissioners expect such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 





TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SHERIFF 

GENERAL FUND 
BALANCE SHEET 

September 30,201 1 

ASS ETS 
Current assets 

Cash 
Accounts receivable 

Total assets 

LIABILI'I'IES AND FUND BALANCE 
LlABl LIT1 ES 

Current liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 38,567 
Due to Board of County Commissioners 249,772 
Other current liabilities 61 9 

Total liabilities and fund balance $288,958 

See notes to financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SHERIFF 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

REVmeS 
Intergovernmental revenue 
Federal grants 
Public safety 

Total intergovernmental revenue 

Charges for services 
Public safety 

Miscellaneous 
Interest earnings 
Other 

Total miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

EXPBJDITURB 
Public safety 
Law enforcement 
Personal services 
Operating expenses 
Capital outlay 

Total law enforcement 

Detention and correction 
Personal services 
Operating expenses 
Capital outlay 

Total detention and correction 
Total expenditures 

Ecess  of revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

OTliER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers from Board of County 
Com m iss ione rs 

Net change in fund balance 
Fund balance at beginning of year 
Fund balance at end ot year 

Variance 
Budgeted Amounts Actual Pos Ywe 

Or~glnal hnal Amounts (Negative) 

See notes to financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash 
Due from other governmental 

units 
Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
FUND BALANCES 
Fund balances 
Restricted 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

See notes to financial statements. 

SHERIFF 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
September 30,201 1 

Local Law Special Law 
Drug Task Nongrant Inmate Enforcement Enforcement 

Force Grant Forfeitures Welfare Block Grant Trust Totals 



REVENUES 
lntergovernmental 

Federal grants 
Publlc safety 

Anti-drug abuse grant 
Tota l  Intergovernmental revenue 

Charges fo r  services 
Publlc safety 

Fines and forfeitures 
Court cases 

Confiscated property 

M iscellaneous 
Interest 
Other 

Tota l  miscellaneous 
Tota l  revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Public safety 

Law enforcement 
Operatlng expenses 
Capital outlay 

Tota l  law enforcement 

Corrections and detention 
Operatlng expenses 

Tota l  correct ions and detention 
Tota l  expenditures 

Excess o f  revenues over expenditures 

Other financing uses 
Transfers t o  the Board o f  County 

Commlssioners 
Net change In fund balances 

Fund balances at beginning o f  year 
Fund balances a t  end o f  year 

Local  Law Special Law 
Drug Task Nongrant Inmate Enforcement Enforcement 

Force Grant Forfeitures Welfare B lock  Grant Trust Totals 

See notes t o  f inancial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SHERIFF 
AGENCY FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
September 30,201 1 

lndlvidual Inmate 
Depository Trust Totals 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,248 $ 6,967 $ 13,215 

Total assets $ 6,248 $ 6,967 $ 13,215 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ - $ 3,860 $ 3,860 
Due to other governmental units 6,248 1,265 7.51 3 
Other current liabilities 1,842 1,842 

Total liabilities $ 6,248 $ 6,967 $ 13,215 

See notes to financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SHERIFF 
AGENCY FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Balance Balance 
October 1, 2010 Additions Deductions September 30, 2011 

INDIVIDUAL DEPOSITORY 
ASSETS 

Cash $ 4,133 $ 46,752 $ 44,637 $ 6,248 
Total assets $ 4,133 $ 46,752 $ 44,637 $ 6,248 

LIABILITIES 
Due toothergovernmentalunits $ 4,133 $ 40,063 $ 37,948 $ 6,248 

Total liabilities $ 4,133 $ 40,063 $ 37,948 $ 6,248 

INMATE TRUST 
ASSETS 

Cash 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and 

accrued liabilities 
Due to individuals 
Due to other funds 
Due to other governmental units 639 2,736 2,299 1,076 

Total liabilities $ 6,810 $ 99,872 $ 99,715 $ 6,967 

TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
ASSETS 

Cash $ 10,943 $ 145,538 $ 143,266 $ 13,215 
Total assets $ 10,943 $ 145,538 $ 143,266 $ 13,215 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued 

liabilities $ 2,214 $ 53,161 $ 51,515 $ 3,860 
Due to individuals 2,521 31,255 31,745 2,031 
Due to other funds 1,436 12,720 14,156 
Due to other governmental units 4,772 42,799 40,247 7,324 

Total liabilities $ 10,943 $139,935 $137,663 $ 13,215 

See notes to financial statements 





INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Sheriff 
Taylor County, Florida 

We have audited the special purpose financial statements of the Taylor County Sheriff, as of and for the 
year ended September 30, 201 1, and have issued our report thereon dated December 9, 201 1. Our 
report included a paragraph stating that the Sheriff is an integral part of Taylor County, the primary 
government for financial reporting purposes. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reportinq - In planning and performing our audit, we considered the 
Taylor County Sheriffs internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Taylor County Sheriffs internal control over financial 
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Office's internal control 
over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 

Compliance and Other Matters - As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Taylor 
County Sheriffs financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance and other matters with these provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Sheriff, the Board of 
County Commissioners, and the Auditor General of Florida. This restriction is not intended to limit the 
distribution of this report, which is a matter of public record. 
n 

POWELL & JONES 
Certified Public Accountants 
December 9,201 1 



MANAGEMENT LETTER 

Honorable Sheriff 
Taylor County, Florida 

We have audited the financial statements of the Taylor County Sheriff, as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 201 1, and have issued our report thereon dated December 9, 201 1. We have also 
issued our report on compliance and on internal control over financial reporting. That report should be 
considered in conjunction with this management letter. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Additionally our audit was conducted in 
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, which govern the 
conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in the State of Florida and require that certain items 
be addressed in this letter. 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the prior year. 

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the current year. 

AUDITOR GENERAL COMPLIANCE MATTERS 

Annual Re~ort of Units of Local Government - The financial report filed with the Department of Financial 
Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is an agreement with the audited financial 
statements of Taylor County, Florida, for the year ended September 30, 201 1. The financial statements 
of the Sheriff are combined with other County agencies in that report. 

Investment of Public Funds - The Sheriff complied with Section 218.41 5, Florida Statutes, regarding the 
investment of public funds during the fiscal year. 

Financial Emeraencv Status - Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Sheriff had 
met any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, that might result in a financial 
emergency. 

Financial Condition Assessment - As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Sections 10.544(7)(c). 
and 10.556(7), we applied financial condition assessment procedures. It is management's responsibility 



to monitor the entity's financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on 
representations made by management and the review of financial information they provided. 

Our audit did not disclose any further items that would be required to be reported under the Rules of the 
Audifor General, Chapter 10.550. 

CONCLUSION 

We have reviewed information regarding our audit with the Sheriff and have provided him with 
appropriate documentation as requested. We very much enjoyed the challenges and experiences 
associated with this audit of the Office. We appreciate the overall high quality of the financial records and 
personnel in the SheriWs Office. We also appreciate the helpful assistance, professionalism and courtesy 
afforded us by these employees. - 
POWELL 8 JONES (J 
Certified Public Accountants 
December 9,201 1 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Supervisor of Elections 

Taylor County, Florida 

We have audited the accompanying special purpose fund financial statements of the Taylor County 
Supervisor of Elections (the Supervisor of Elections), as of and for the year ended September 30, 201 1, 
as listed in the table of contents. These special purpose fund financial statements are the responsibility 
of the Supervisor of Elections. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the special purpose fund financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the special purpose fund financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the Supervisor of 
Elections, as well as evaluating the overall special purpose fund financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

The accompanying special purpose fund financial statements were prepared for the purpose of complying 
with Section 218.39(8), Florida Statutes, and Rule 10.557(5), of Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor 
General - Local Governmental Entity Audits. As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the 
Supervisor of Elections is part of the reporting entity, Taylor County, Florida. Accordingly, these special 
purpose fund financial statements are not a complete presentation of the reporting entity's basic financial 
statements. 

In our opinion, the special purpose fund financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Taylor County Supervisor of Elections, as of September 30, 
2011, and the results of its operations for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated February 12, 
2012, on our consideration of the Supervisor of Elections' internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing 
the results of our audit. 



Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the special purpose fund financial 
statements taken as a whole. The individual fund financial statement listed in the table of contents are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the special purpose fund 
financial statements of the Supervisor of Elections. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the special purpose fund financial statements and, in our opinion, is 
fairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the special purpose fund financial statements taken 
as a whole. 

POWELL & JONES 

Certified Public Accountants 

February 12, 2012 





TAYLOR COUNl'Y, FLORIDA 

SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS 

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET 

ALL FUNDS 

September 30,201 1 

Governmental 
Fund 

General Fund 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash 

LIABILI'I'I ES 
Current liabilities 

Due to Board of County Commissioners 8 3,454 
Deferred revenue 2,686 
Other current liabilities 4,164 

Total liabilities $ 10,304 

See notes to financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2011 

General 
Fund 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental revenue 

Federal grants and County match 8 4,169 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

Current operating expenditures 320,500 
Capital outlay 7,275 

Total expenditures 327,775 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (323,531) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers from Board of County Commissioners 323,531 

Net change in  fund balance 
Fund balance at beginning of year 
Fund balance at end of year $ 

See notes to financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30,201 I 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies of the Taylor County Supervisor of 
Elections (Supervisor of Elections). 

A. Reporting Entity - The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in its Statement No. 
14, "The Financial Reporting Entity," establishes standards for defining the financial reporting entity. In 
developing these standards, the GASB assumed that all governmental organizations are responsible to 
elected officials at the federal, state, or local level. Financial reporting by a state of local government 
should report the elected officials' accountability for those organizations. 

The Supervisor of Elections, as established by Article Vlll of the Constitution of the State of Florida, is an 
elected official of the County. Although the Supervisor of Elections' Office is operationally autonomous 
from the Board of County Commissioners, it does not hold sufficient corporate powers of its own to be 
considered a legally separate entity for financial reporting purposes. Therefore, the Supervisor of 
Elections is reported as a part of the primary government of Taylor County, Florida. The Supervisor of 
Elections' financial statements do not purport to reflect the financial position or the results of operations of 
a Taylor County, Florida, taken as a whole. 

These special purpose financial statements of the Supervisor of Elections are issued separately to 
comply with Section 10.557(4), Rules of the Auditor General for Local Governmental Entity Audits, 
pursuant to Section 11.45(3), Florida Statutes. 

B. Fund Accounting - Accounts are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a 
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self- 
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund entity, revenues, and expenditures. 
Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes 



for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The funds 
utilized by the Supervisor of Elections are as follows: 

(i) Governmental Fund 

General Fund - The General Fund of the Supervisor of Elections is used to account for 
all financial resources, which are generated from operations of the office or any other 
resources not required to be accounted for in another fund. 

C. Basis of Accounting - The "Basis of Accounting" refers to when revenues and expenditures and 
the related assets and liabilities are recognized in the accounting records and reported in the financial 
statements. The Supervisor of Elections currently maintains accounting records for all funds on the cash 
basis. However, for financial statement purposes appropriate adjustments are made to report 
governmental and fiduciary fund types using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified 
accrual basis, revenues are generally recognized when they become measurable and available as net 
current assets. Expenditures are reported when incurred with the exception of prepaid expenses and 
principal and interest on general long-term obligations. Encumbrance accounting is not utilized by the 
Supervisor of Elections. 

D. Budget - Chapter 129, Florida Statutes, requires that budgets be adopted for all funds as may be 
required by law, sound financial practices, and generally accepted accounting principles and that budgets 
be adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Pursuant to this 
requirement, the County adopts an annual comprehensive appropriations budget, which includes the 
operating budget of the Supervisor of Elections. 

In the budgetary comparisons included in these financial statements, both the amounts budgeted and the 
actual amounts reported are presented on the GAAP basis. Budgetary comparisons present the 
appropriated budget of the Supervisor of Elections, as amended by the Supervisor of Elections. 

E. Cash and Investments - Deposits are carried at cost which approximates market value. The 
carrying amount of deposits is separately displayed on the balance sheet as "Cash." At September 30, 
201 1, the book balance of the Supervisor of Elections' deposits was $10,304. 

F. Inventories - It is the policy of the Supervisor of Elections to record the acquisition of supplies as 
expenditures at the time of purchase. The amount of supplies on hand at any one time would be a 
nominal amount and considered to be immaterial. 



G. Fixed Assets - Fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations are accounted for in the 
Capital Assets Accounts. All fixed assets acquired by purchase are recorded at historical cost. Donated 
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date donated. No depreciation has been 
recorded using the straight-line method on the County's general fixed assets. Assets purchased by the 
Supervisor of Elections are reported in the Board of County Commissioners' Governmental Capital Assets 
Accounts. 

H. Compensated Absences - Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be 
paid, such as vacation and sick leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to 
services already rendered and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the 
government and its employees is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated 
absences that relate to future services or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control 
of the government and its employees are accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered 
or such events take place. 

In the governmental funds, compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated with expendable 
available financial resources are reported as an expenditure and fund liability in the fund of the Board of 
County Commissioners that will pay for them. The remainder of the compensated absences liability 
totaling $3,992 is reported in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group of Taylor County, Florida. 

1. Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

J. Risk Management - The Supervisor of Elections is exposed to various risks of loss related to 
torts: theft of, damage to and destruction of assets: errors or omissions: injuries to employees and the 
public: or damage to property of others. The Supervisor of Elections directly purchases insurance and 
participates in the risk management program through the Taylor County Board of County Commissioners 
which uses commercial insurance and a public entity risk pool to cover certain risks from losses. 

K. Deferred Revenues - Deferred revenues reported in the special purpose fund financial 
statements represent unearned revenues which are measurable but not available and, in accordance with 
the modified accrual basis of accounting, are reported as deferred revenues. 



NOTE 2. PENSION PLAN 

Plan Description - The Supervisor of Elections contributes to the Florida Retirement System ("System"), 
a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan administered by the State of Florida, Department of 
Administration, Division of Retirement. The System provides retirement, disability or death benefits to 
retirees or their designated beneficiaries. Chapter 121, Florida Sfafofes, establishes the authority for 
benefit provisions. Changes to the law can only occur through an act of the Florida Legislature. The 
System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the Florida 
Retirement System, 2639 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida; or by calling (850) 488-5706. 

Funding Policy - The System was employee noncontributory through June 30, 201 1. Subsequently, 
employees are required to contribute 3% to the System. The Supervisor of Elections is required to 
contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The rates at September 30, 201 1, were as follows: Regular 
Employees 4.91%; Senior Management 6.27%; Elected Officials 11.14%, and employees electing the 
DROP Program 4.42%.The contribution requirements of plan members and the Supervisor of Elections 
are established and may be amended by the Florida Legislature. The Supervisor of Elections' 
contributions to the System for the years ending September 30, 201 1, 2010 and 2009 were $ 19,632, 
$21 , I  03, and $1 8,383, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 







REVENUES 

TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS 

GENERAL FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Original Final 
Variance 
Positive 

Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

lntergovernmenta l revenue 
Federal grants and County match $ - $ - $ 4,169 $ 4,169 

~iscel laneous 
Total revenues 
Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

Supervisor of Elections 
Personal services 220,438 225,625 225,625 
Operating expenses 51,412 51,412 51,412 
Capital outlay 7,275 7,275 7,275 - 

Total Supervisor of Elections 279,125 284,312 284,312 - 
Elections 

Personal services 14,769 14,769 14,768 1 
Operating expenses 26,307 26,307 28,695 (2,388) 

Total Elections 41,076 41,076 43,463 (2,387) 
Total expenditures 320,201 325,388 327,775 (2,387) 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures (320,201) (325,388) (323,531) 1,857 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers from Board of County 

Commissioners (320,201) 325,388 323,531 (1,857) 
Net change i n  fund balance 
Fund balance at beginning of year - 
Fund balance at  end of year $ - $ $ 

See notes to financial statements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MAlTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS 

Honorable Supervisor of Elections 
Taylor County, Florida 

We have audited the special purpose fund financial statements of the Taylor County Supervisor of 
Elections, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated 
February 12, 201 1. Our report included a paragraph stating that the Supervisor of Elections is an integral 
part of Taylor County, the primary government for financial reporting purposes. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting - In planning and performing our audit, we considered the 
Taylor County Supervisor of Elections' internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Taylor County Supervisor of Elections' 
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Office's internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 

Com~liance and Other Matters - As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Taylor 
County Supervisor of Elections' financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance and other matters with these 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Taylor County Supervisor of Elections, the 
Board of Countv Commissioners. and the Florida Office of the Auditor General and is not intended to be 

other than those specified parties. 

Certified Public ~kdun tan ts  
February 12,2012 



MANAGEMENT LETTER 

Honorable Supervisor of Elections 
Taylor County, Florida 

We have audited the financial statements of the Supervisor of Elections, as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 201 1, and have issued our report thereon dated February 12,201 2. We have also issued 
our report on compliance and on internal control over financial reporting. That report should be 
considered in conjunction with this management letter. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Additionally our audit was conducted in 
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, which govern the 
conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in the State of Florida and require that certain items 
be addressed in this letter. 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the prior year. 

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the current year. 

AUDITOR GENERAL COMPLIANCE MATTERS 

Annual Report of Units of Local Government - The financial report filed with the Department of Financial 
Services pursuant to Section 218.32, Florida Statutes, is an agreement with the audited financial 
statements of Taylor County, Florida, for the year ended September 30, 201 1. The financial statements 
of the Supervisor of Elections are combined with other County agencies in that report. 

Investment of Public Funds - The Supervisor of Elections complied with Section 218.415, Florida 
Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds during the fiscal year. 

Financial Emerclencv Status - Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Supervisor 
of Elections had met any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, that might 
result in a financial emergency. 

Financial Condition Assessment - As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Sections 
10.544(g)(6)c. and 10.556), we applied financial condition assessment procedures. It is management's 
responsibility to monitor the entity's financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based 
in part on representations made by management and th" review of financial information they provided. 

Our audit did not disclose any further items that would be required to be reported under the Rules of the 
Auditor General, Chapter 10.554,1 (f). 



CONCLUSION 

We have reviewed information regarding our audit with the Supervisor of Elections and have provided her 
with appropriate documentation as requested. We very much enjoyed the challenges and experiences 
associated with this audit of the Supervisor of Elections Office. We appreciate the overall high quality of 
the financial records and personnel in the Supervisor of Elections. We also appreciate the helpful 
assistance, professionalism and courtesy afforded us by these employees. 
n 

POWELL &JONES u 
Certified Public Accountants 
February 12,2012 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Tax Collector 
Taylor County, Florida 

We have audited the accompanying special purpose fund financial statements of the Taylor County Tax 
Collector (the Tax Collector), as of and for the year ended September 30, 201 1, as listed in the table of 
contents. These special purpose fund financial statements are the responsibility of the Tax Collector. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the special purpose fund financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the special purpose fund financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the Tax Collector, 
as well as evaluating the overall special purpose fund financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

The accompanying special purpose fund financial statements were prepared for the purpose of complying 
with Section 218.39(8), Florida Statutes, and Rule 10.557(5), of Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor 
General - Local Governmental Entity Audits. As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Tax 
Collector is part of the reporting entity, Taylor County, Florida. Accordingly, these special purpose fund 
financial statements are not a complete presentation of the reporting entity's basic financial statements. 

In our opinion, the special purpose fund financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Tax Collector, as of September 30, 201 1, and the results of 
its operations for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 5, 
2012, on our consideration of the Tax Collector's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and other matters. The purpose 
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the special purpose fund financial 
statements taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund financial statements listed in the table of 
contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the special 



purpose fund financial statements of the Tax Collector. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the special purpose fund financial statements and, in our 
opinion, is fairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the special purpose fund financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

POWELL & JONES 
Certified Public Accountants 
February 5,201 2 





ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash 
Due from individuals 
Investments 

Total assets 

TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

TAX COLLECTOR 

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUNDS 
September 30,201 1 

Governmental 
Fund 

General 
Fund 

Fiduciary 
Funds Totals 

Agency (Memorandur 
Funds Only) 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
LIABII,ITI ES 

Current Liabilities 
Due to Board of County Commissioners $ 74,213 $ - $ 74,213 
Due to other governmental units 273 273 
Installments payable 413,017 413,017 
Payments held in escrow 543 543 
Other current liabilities 4,421 32,721 37,142 

Total liabilities $ 78,634 $ 446,554 $ 525,188 

See notes to financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

TAX COLLECTOR 

GENERAL FUND 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENIJES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

REVENIJES 
Charges for services 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDrrURES 
Current expenditures 
General government 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (73,463) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers from Board of County Commissioners 73,463 

Total other financing sources (uses) 73,463 

Net change i n  fund balance 

Fund balance at beginning of year 
Fund balance at end of year 

See notes to financial statements. 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

TAX COLLECTOR 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30,201 1 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies of the Taylor County Tax Collector 
(Tax Collector). 
A. Reporting Entity - The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in its Statement No. 
14, "The Financial Reporting Entity," establishes standards for defining the financial reporting entity. In 
developing these standards, the GAS6 assumed that all governmental organizations are responsible to 
elected officials at the federal, state, or local level. Financial reporting by a state or local government 
should report the elected officials' accountability for those organizations. 

The Tax Collector, as established by Article Vlll of the Constitution of the State of Florida, is an elected 
official of the County. Although the Tax Collector's Office is operationally autonomous from the Board of 
County Commissioners, it does not hold sufficient corporate powers of its own to be considered a legally 
separate entity for financial reporting purposes. Therefore, the Tax Collector is reported as a part of the 
primary government of Taylor County, Florida. The Tax Collector's financial statements do not purport to 
reflect the financial position or the results of operations of Taylor County, Florida, taken as a whole. 

These special purpose financial statements of the Tax Collector are issued separately to comply with 
Section 10.557(4), Rules of the Auditor General for Local Governmental Entity Audits, pursuant to Section 
1 1.45(3), Florida Statutes. 

B. Fund Accounting - Accounts are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of 
which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a 
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund entity, revenues, and 
expenditures. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon 
the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. 
The funds utilized by the Tax Collector are as follows: 

(0 Governmental Fund 
General Fund - The General Fund of the Tax Collector is used to account for all financial 
resources, which are generated from operations of the office or any other resources not 
required to be accounted for in another fund. 

(ii) Fiduciary Funds 
Agency Funds - Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the Tax Collector 
as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds. 
Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve 
measurement of results of operations. The following Agency Funds are maintained by 
the Tax Collector: 

Tax Fund Account 
Tag Agency 



C. Basis of Accounting - The "Basis of Accounting" refers to when revenues and expenditures and 
the related assets and liabilities are recognized in the accounting records and reported in the financial 
statements. The Tax Collector currently maintains its accounting records for all funds on the cash basis. 
However, for financial statement purposes appropriate adjustments are made to report governmental and 
fiduciary fund types using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis, 
revenues are generally recognized when they become measurable and available as net current assets. 
Expenditures are reported when incurred with the exception of prepaid expenses and principal and 
interest on general long-term obligations. Encumbrance accounting is not utilized by the Tax Collector. 

D. Budget - Chapter 129, Florida Statutes, requires that budgets be adopted for all funds as may be 
required by law, sound financial practices, and generally accepted accounting principles and that budgets 
be adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Pursuant to this 
requirement, the County adopts an annual comprehensive appropriated budget, which includes its 
funding of the operations of the Tax Collector. The operating budget of the Tax Collector is approved by 
the Florida Department of Revenue. 

In the budget comparisons included in these financial statements, both the amounts budgeted and the 
actual amounts reported are presented on the GAAP basis. Budgetary comparisons present the 
appropriated budget of the Tax Collector, as amended during the year. 

E. Cash and Investments - Cash deposits are held by a bank qualified as a public depository 
under Florida law. All deposits are insured by Federal depository insurance and collateralized with 
securities held in Florida's multiple financial institution collateral pool as required by Chapter 280, Florida 
Statutes. 

lnvestments consist of amounts placed with the State Board of Administration for participation in the Local 
Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund and the Fund B Surplus Fund Trust Fund investment pools 
created by Sections 218.405 and 218.417, Florida Statutes, and those made locally. On December 4, 
2007, the State Board of Administration restructured the Local Government surplus funds Trust Fund 
(Pool) to also establish the Fund B Surplus Funds Trust fund. The local investments operate under the 
guidelines established by Section 218.415, Florida Statutes. The County's investments in the Pool, which 
the State Board of Administration indicates is a Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 2a7-like 
external investment pool, as of September 30, 201 1, are similar to money market funds in which shares 
are owned in the fund rather than the underlying investments. These investments are reported at fair 
value, which is amortized cost. 

The County's investments in the Fund B Surplus Trust Fund are accounted for as a fluctuating net asset 
value pool, with a fair value factor of 0.78965331 at September 30, 201 1. The Fund B is not subject to 
participant withdrawal requests. Distributions from the Fund B, as determined by the State Board of 
Administration, are effected by transferring eligible cash or securities to the Local Government Surplus 
Funds Trust Fund, consistent with the pro rata allocation of Pool shareholders of record at the creation of 
Fund B. One hundred percent of such distributions from Fund B are available as a liquid balance within 
the Local Government Surplus funds Trust Fund. 

lnvestments made locally consist of certificates of deposit and are reported at fair value. Types and 
amounts of investments held at fiscal year end are described in a subsequent note on investments. 

The Tax Collector also has petty cash reserves in the amount of $1,835. 



F. Inventories - It is the policy of the Tax Collector to record the acquisition of supplies as 
expenditures at the time of purchase. The amount of supplies on hand at any one time would be a 
nominal amount and considered to be immaterial. 
G. Fixed Assets - Fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations are accounted for in the 
Capital Asset Accounts, except for its infrastructure fixed assets which the County has elected not to 
report. All fixed assets acquired by purchase are recorded at historical cost. Donated assets are 
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date donated. No depreciation has been provided on the 
County's capital assets. Assets purchased by the Tax Collector are reported in the Board of County 
Commissioners' Capital Assets Accounts. 

H. Compensated Absences - Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be 
paid, such as vacation and sick leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to 
services already rendered and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the 
government and its employees is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated 
absences that relate to future services or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control 
of the government and its employees are accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered 
or such events take place. 

In the governmental funds, compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated with expendable 
available financial resources are reported as an expenditure and fund liability in the fund of the Board of 
County Commissioners that will pay for them. The remainder of the compensated absences liability 
totaling $27,957 is reported in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group of Taylor County, Florida. 

1. Total Column on the Combined Statements - The total column on the combined statements is 
captioned "Memorandum Only" to indicate that it is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in 
this column does not present financial position or results of operations in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles, nor is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations 
have not been made in the aggregation of this data. 

J. Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

K. Risk Management - The Tax Collector is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, 
damage to and destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees and the public; or 
damage to property of others. The Tax Collector directly purchases insurance and participates in the risk 
management program through the Taylor County Board of County Commissioners which uses 
commercial insurance and a public entity risk pool to cover certain risks from loss. 

NOTE 2. PENSION PLAN 

Plan Description - The Tax Collector contributes to the Florida Retirement System ("System"), a cost- 
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan administered by the State of Florida, Department of 
Administration, Division of Retirement. The System provides retirement, disability or death benefits to 
retirees or their designated beneficiaries. Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, establishes the authority for 
benefit provisions. Changes to the law can only occur through an act of the Florida Legislature. The 
System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 



supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the Florida 
Retirement System, 2639 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida, or by calling (850) 488-5706. 

Funding Policy - The System was employee noncontributory through June 30, 201 1. Subsequently, 
employees are required to contribute 3% to the System. The Tax Collector is required to contribute at an 
actuarially determined rate. The rates at September 30, 2011, were as follows: Regular Employees 
4.91 %; Senior Management 6.27%; Elected Officials 1 1.14% and employees electing the DROP Program 
4.42%. The contribution requirements of plan members and the Tax Collector are established and may 
be amended by the Florida Legislature. The Tax Collector's contributions to the System for the years 
ending September 30, 201 1, 2010 and 2009 were $41,536 $42,176, and $42,130, respectively, equal to 
the required, contributions for each year. 

NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

1. Deposits 

At September 30, 201 1, the carrying amount of the Tax Collector's bank deposits was $ 181,232. All 
deposits with financial institutions were 100% insured by federal depository insurance or by collateral 
provided by qualified public depositories to the State Treasurer pursuant to the Public Depository Security 
Act of the State of Florida. The Act established a Trust Fund, maintained by the State Treasurer, which is 
a multiple financial institution pool with the ability to assess its member financial institutions for collateral 
shortfalls if a member fails. 

2. Investments 
As of September 30, 201 1, the Tax Collector had the following investments and maturities: 

lnvestment 
State Board of Administration Local Government 
Surplus Funds Trust Fund lnvestment Pool 
Fund B Surplus Funds Trust Fund 

Money Market 
Total Investments 

Maturities Fair Value 

38 Day Average $ 10 
4.82 Year Average 83 

Daily 428,433 
$428,526 

Interest Rate Risk 

Section 218.415(17), Florida Statutes, limits investment maturities to provide sufficient liquidity to 
pay obligations as they come due. 

The maturity of the State Board of Administration Local Government lnvestment Pool is based on 
the weighted average of days to maturity (WAM). A portfolio's WAM reflects the average maturity 
in days based on final maturity or reset date, in the case of floating rate instruments. WAM 
measures the sensitivity of the portfolio to interest rate changes. The maturity of the State Board 
of Administration Fund B Surplus Funds Trust Fund is based on the weighted average life (WAL). 
A portfolio's WAL is the dollar weighted average length of time until securities held reach maturity. 
WAL is based on legal final maturity dates as of September 30, 201 1. 



Credit Risk 

Section 21 8.41 5(17), Florida Statutes, limits investments to the State Board of Administration Local 
Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund Investment Pool, or any intergovernmental investment pool 
authorized pursuant to the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act as provided in Section 163.01, Florida 
Statutes, Securities and Exchange commission (SEC) registered money market funds with the highest 
credit quality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency, interest-bearing time deposits in qualified 
public depositories, as defined in Section 280.02, Florida Statutes, and direct obligations to the United 
States Treasury. The Tax Collector's investment policy limits investments to these types of securities. 

As of September 30, 201 1, the Tax Collector's investment in the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust 
Fund investment pool is AAAm by Standard & Poors. The Fund B Surplus Trust Fund is unrated. 

The Tax Collector's investments in money market funds are in a qualified public depository. Section 
218.415(18), Florida Statutes, requires the Tax Collector to earmark all investments and 1) if registered 
with the issuer or its agents, the investment must be immediately placed for safekeeping in a location that 
protects the governing body's interest in the security; 2) if in book entry form, the investment must be held 
for the credit of the governing body by a depository chartered by the federal Government, the State, or 
any other state or territory of the United States which has a branch or principal place of business in this 
State, or by a national association organized and existing under the laws of the United States which is 
authorized to accept and execute trusts and which is doing business in this State, and must be kept by 
the depository in an account separate and apart from the assets of the financial institution; or 3) if 
physically issued to the holder but not registered with the issuer or its agents, must be immediately placed 
for safekeeping in a secured vault. All Tax Collector investments complied with this provision of law. 







TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

REVENUES 

TAX COLLECTOR 
GENERAL FUND 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
ANDCHANGESINFUNDBALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Charges for services 
County Officer fees 
Tax roll commissions 

Board of County Commissioners 
SRWMD 

Advertising 
Advertising delinquent 
Fees FWCC 
Board of County Commissioners 
postage 

DMV fees 
Fees sales tax 
Fees miscellaneous 
Fees drivers licenses 
Tax certificate fees 
E Comm fees 

Total charges for services 

Miscellaneous 
Interest earnings 
Other 

Total miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 
Personal services 
Executive salaries 
Regular salaries 
Special pay 
Temporary salaries 
FICA 
Retirement 
Life and health insurance 

Total personal services 
(Continued) 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Or~glnal hnal Amounts (Negative) 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

TAX COLLECTOR 
GENERAL FUND 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDI'I'URES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2011 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Operating expenses 
Education 
Legal ads 
Professional services 
Other contractual services 
Travel and per diem 
Communications 
Transportation 
Rentals and leases 
Insurance 
Repairs and maintenance 
Office supplies 
Books, publications and 
subscriptions 

Other current charges 
Total operating expenses 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers from Board of County 
Commissioners 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
Net change in fund balance 
Fund balance at beginning of 
year 

Fund balance at end of year 

Budgeted Amounts Actual ~ositiv; 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

See notes to financial statements. 





TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

TAX COLLECTOR 
AGENCY FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILl1-IES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Balance Balance 
October 1,2010 Additions Deductions September 30,2011 

TAX WND ACCOUNT 
Assets 
Cash 
Due from individuals 1,657 276,038 276,314 1,381 
Investments 

Total assets 

Liabilities 
Advalorem taxes payable $ - $ 20,234,548 $ 20,234,548 $ 
Delinquent taxes and fees payable 17,165 346,147 363,312 
Installments payable 426,959 833,359 847,301 41 3,017 
Other current liabilities 52.022 17,372,101 17,407,323 16,800 

Total liabilities $ 496,146 $ 38,786,155 $ 38,852,484 $ 429,817 

TAG AGENCY 
Assets 
Cash 
Due from individuals 
Investments 

Total assets 

Liabilities 
Due to other governmental units $ 10,382 $ 1,318,461 $ 1,328,570 $ 273 

Title escrow 599 94,838 94,894 543 
Fees payable 3,682 30,510 34,192 
Other current liabilities 15,921 15,921 

Total liabilities $ 14,663 $ 1,459,730 $ 1,457,656 $ 16,737 

(Continued) 



TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

TAX COLLECTOR 
AGENCY FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,201 1 

Balance Balance 

October I. 2009 Additions ~eductions Se~tem ber 30.2010 

TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
Assets 
Cash $ 78,894 $ 30,759.155 $ 30,838,046 $ 3 

Due from individuals 11,503 1,689,793 1,683,271 18,025 

Investments 
Total assets 

Liabilities 
Wvalorem taxes payable $ 

Due to other governmental units 10,382 
Delinquent taxes and fees payable 17,165 
Installments payable 426,959 

Title escrow 599 

Fees payable 3,682 

Other current liabilities 52,022 

Total liabilities $ 510,809 

See notes to financial statements. 





INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Tax Collector 
Taylor County, Florida 

We have audited the special purpose fund financial statements of the Taylor County Tax Collector (Tax 
Collector), as of and for the year ended September 30, 201 1, and have issued our report thereon dated 
February 5, 2012. Our report included a paragraph stating that the Tax Collector is an integral part of 
Taylor County, the primary government for financial reporting purposes. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reportinq -- In planning and performing our audit, we considered the 
Taylor County Tax Collector's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Taylor County Tax Collector's internal control over 
financial reporting. Accordingly we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Taylor County 
Tax Collector's internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 

Compliance and Other Matters - As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Tax 
Collector's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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MANAGEMENT LETTER 

Honorable Tax Collector 
Taylor County, Florida 

We have audited the financial statements of the Taylor County Tax Collector, as of and for the year 
ended September 30, 201 1, and have issued our report thereon dated February 5, 2012. We have also 
issued our report on compliance and on internal control over financial reporting. That report should be 
considered in conjunction with this management letter. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Additionally our audit was conducted in 
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, which govern the 
conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in the State of Florida and require that certain items 
be addressed in this letter. 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the prior year. 

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS 

There were no reportable findings in the current year. 

AUDITOR GENERAL COMPLIANCE MATTERS 

Annual Local Government Financial Report - The Financial Report filed with the Department of Financial 
Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the accompanying 
financial statements of Taylor County, Florida, for the year ended September 30, 201 1. The financial 
statements of the Tax Collector are combined with other County agencies in that report. 

Investment of Public Funds - The Tax Collector complied with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, 
regarding the investment of public funds during the fiscal year. 

Financial Emerqencv Status - Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Tax 
Collector had met any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, that might 
result in a financial emergency. 

Financial Condition Assessment - As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Sections 
10.554(g)(6)c. and 10.556), we applied financial condition assessment procedures. It is management's 
responsibility to monitor the entity's financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based 
in part on representations made by management and the review of financial information they provided. 



Our audit did not disclose any further items that would be required to be reported under the Rules of the 
Auditor General, Chapter 10.554(1)(f). 

CONCLUSION 

We have reviewed information regarding our audit with the Tax Collector and have provided him with 
appropriate documentation as requested. We very much enjoyed the challenges and experiences 
associated with this audit of the Office. We appreciate the overall high quality of the financial records and 
personnel in the Tax Collector's Office. We also appreciate the helpful assistance and courtesy afforded 
us by these employees. 

t a u , !  
POWELL & JONES 
Certified Public Accountants 
February 5,201 2 
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TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

County Commission Agenda Item 
SUBJECTITITEE: / The Board to consider approval of a Resolution proclaiming the Month 1 

of May as Civility Month in Taylor County. 

- 

( MEETING DATE REQUESTED: I ~ a y 1 , 2 m 2  

Statement of Issue: See the attached resolution 

Recommended Action: Motion to approve the resolution 

Fiscal Impact: NIA 

Budgeted Item: No 

Submitted By: Jack R. Brown, County Administrator 

Con tact: (850) 838-3500, Ext. 7 

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL / ISSUE ANALYSIS 

History, Facts & Issues: 

Options: 

Attachments: 1. Proposed resolution 



RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA, PROCLAIMING THE MONTH OF MAY AS 
CIVILITY MONTH. 

WHEREAS, the Taylor County Board of County Commissioners recognizes that civil discourse 
is a cornerstone of American democracy and is a vital ingredient to successful local governance; and 

WHEREAS, civility derives fiom the Latin word "civis" meaning citizen, and is defined as 
behavior worthy of citizens living in a community or in common with others, claiming and caring for 
one's identity, needs, and beliefs without degrading someone else's in the process; and 

WHEREAS, displays of anger, rudeness, ridicule, impatience, and a lack of respect and personal 
attacks detract from the open exchange of ideas, prevent fair discussion of the issues, and can discourage 
individuals from participation in government; and 

WHEREAS, civility can assist in reaching consensus on issues and allow for mutually respectful 
discourse and consideration of ideas and opinions; and 

WHEREAS, civility can uplift our daily life and make it more pleasant to live in an organized 
society; and 

WHEREAS, we, the Taylor County Board of County Commissioners, wish to renew our pledge 
to our citizens that we will civilly conduct the public's business, and urge all citizens of Taylor County to 
exercise civility as they participate in the democratic process. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of County Commissioners of Taylor 
County, Florida, that we hereby proclaim the Month of May as Civility Month. 

THIS RESOLUTION IS PASSED AND ADOPTED in regular session this 1st day of May 
2012. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BY: 
Patricia "Pat" Patterson, Chair 

ATTEST: 

ANNIE MAE MURPHY, Clerk 

jrb 



CITY, COUNTY AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT LAW SECTION 
mnrw.locgov.org 

CHAIR: 
Kenneth A. Tinkler 

4221 W. Boy Scout Blvd.. Ste. 1000 
Tampa, FL 33607-5780 

(81 3) 229-4245 
ktinkler@carltomields.com 

CHAIR-ELECT: 
Jewel White 

315 Court St. - ~ - -  ~ -~ 

Cleawater, FL 33756-51 65 
(727) 464-3354 

mjwhite@pinellas.fl.us 

April 13,2012 

SECRETARYflREASURER: 
Hans Ottinot, Sr. 

18070 Collins Ave. Re: Proclamation and Pledge of Civility for the Month of May 
Sunny Isles Beach, FL 33160-2723 

(305) 957-1 302 
hottinot@sibfl.net Dear Madadsir: 

IMMEDIATE PAST CHAIR: 
Vivien The attorneys of the City, County and Local Government Law Section of The Florida 

201 S. Rosallnd Ave., FI. 3 
Orlando, n 32801-3527 Bar ask your local government to join with other cities and counties throughout the 

(407) 836-7320 
vivien.monaco@od.net State of Florida in proclaiming May as "Civility Month." 

BOARD LIAISON: 
Edwin A. Scales, Ill 

201 Front St., Ste. 333 
Key West. FL 33040-8347 

(305) 292-8950 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL: 
Terms Expiring 2012: 

District 2 
Jeannine Smith Williams 

St. Petersburg 
(727) 893-7401 

District 4 
Robert L. TeiUer 

Ft. Lauderdale 
(954) 357-7600 

Terms Expiring 2013: 
District 1 

Glenn E. Thomas 
Tallahassee 

(850) 222-5702 
Terms Expiring 2014: 

Distrlct 3 
David C. Miller 

Miami 
(305) 374-7349 

Dlstrict 5 
Dana L. Cmsby-Collier 

Orlando 
(407) 836-7320 

Terms Expiring 20 12 
~ t - ~ a r g e  ~embers:  

Paul Bangel 
Fort Lauderdale 
(954) 828-5940 

Virginia (Ginger) Saunden Delegal 
Tallahassee 

(850) 922-4300 
Michele Lieberman 

Lecanto 
(352) 527-2534 

Maggie Mooney-Portale 
Bradenton 

(941) 708-4040 
Mark CS Moriarty 

F t  Myers 
(239) 321-7056 

Nancy Stuparich 
Tampa 

(786) 246-0635 
Ex-Oficio Members: 

All Past Chairs 

PROGRAM ADMINISTRATOR: 
Ricky D. Libbert 
The Florida Bar 

rlibbert@flabar.or 

Civil discourse is a cornerstone of American democracy and is a vital ingredient to 
successful local governance. The attorneys of the City, County and Local 
Government Law Section of The Florida Bar ask you to renew the pledge of public 
conduct that your local government may have adopted in prior years. 

A sample proclamation is enclosed for your use. We are asking all local 
governments in Florida to adopt such a proclamation to help to uplift the tone and 
conduct in public meetings throughout the State. We join with our public officials in 
urging all citizens to exercise civility toward each other throughout the year as they 
participate in Florida's democratic process. 

If you choose to adopt the proclamation, please send us a copy to: Ricky Libbert, The 
Florida Bar, 651, E. Jefferson St., Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2300, 
rlibbert@floridabar.org 

Thank you for your attention to this important matter and for your dedicated public 
service. 

Sincerely, 

Chair 

Enclosure 

THE FLORIDA BAR1651 EAST JEFFERSON STREETITALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-2300/(850)561-56311FAX: (850)561-5825 



Whereas, the open exchange of public discourse is essential to the democratic system of 
government; and 

Whereas, as a cornerstone of democracy Americans have observed certain rules of behavior 
generally known as civility; 

Whereas, civility, derived from the Latin words "civitas" meaning city and "civis" meaning 

citizen, is behavior worthy of citizens living in a community or in common with others; and 

Whe?'eas, displays of anger, rudeness, ridicule, impatience, and a lack of respect and 
personal attacks detract from the open exchange of ideas, prevent fair discussion of the issues, and can 
discourage individuals from participation in government; and 

CM/'herLXZS, civility can assist in reaching consensus on diverse issues and allow for mutually 
respectful ongoing relationships; and 

WheTl?as, civility can uplift our daily life and make it more pleasant to live in an organized 
society; and 

Whereas, the City, County and Local Government Law Section of The Florida Bar urges 
the adoption of a pledge of civility by all citizens in the State of Florida. 

WOW, therefore, 6e it resolveved; by the Mayor of the City of 
that the month of May is proclaimed as Civility Month, and calls upon all citizens to exercise civility 
toward each other. 

Passed andadopt ed th i s  day of ,2010. 

ATTEST: 

CLERK 



I TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERSI 

I MEETING DATE REQUESTED: I May 1,2012 

County Commission Agenda Item 

Statement of Issue: Board to approve Certificate of Participation to enable the County to 
be eligible to submit a grant application for the 201 2-201 3 
funding cycle of the FDLE JAG grant program. The County 
has been the lead administrator of this grant for several years 
on behalf of the Sheriffs Department. The funds must be used 
to prevent and control crime. 

SUBJECTITITLE: 

Recommended Action: Approve Certificate of Participation 

Board to approve the Certificate of Participation to submit grant 
application for the 2012-201 3 FDLE Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 
Assistance Grant (JAG) Program. 

Fiscal Impact: The County is eligible to receive up to $45,641. No cash match is 
required. 

Budgeted Expense: YIN Not applicable. No match required. 

Submitted By: Melody Cox 

Contact: Melody Cox 

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL 1 ISSUE ANALYSIS 

History, Facts & Issues: To be eligible to submit grant applicatior~ to FDLE for the 2012- 
2013 JAG grant, the County must first submit a Certification of 
Participation. The Board of Commissioners has been the lead 
agent for this grant for several years working closely with the 
Sherlffs Department. The County is eligible to receive up to 
$45,641 in grant funds with no match required. The grant 
funds will be used by the Sheriis Department for activities that 
prevent and control crime. FY 201 1-201 2 the County received 
$67,999 in grant funds through this program. In the past, the 
grants funds have been used for the Drug Eradication Task 
Force for equipment and salaries. Danny Parker from the 
Sheriffs Department assists with the administration of this 
grant. 

Options: 1. Approve Certificate of Participation. 





CERTIFICATE OF PARTICIPATION 

Edward Byrne Memorial 
Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program 

Date: x a y  I 2012  

Mr. Clayton H. Wilder 
Administrator 
Office of Criminal Justice Grants 
Florida Department of Law Enforcement 
2331 Phillips Road 
Tallahassee, Florida 32308 

Dear Mr. Wilder: 

This is to inform you that the Board of County Commissioners Accepts x 
Declines - the invitation to serve as the coordinating unit of government in the Florida 
Department of Law Enforcement's Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 
(JAG) Program. 

For purposes of coordinating the preparation of our application(s) for grant funds with 
the Office of Criminal Justice Grants, we have designated the following person: 

Title: Grants Director 

E-mail address: melody. cox@taylorcountygov. corn 

Agency: Taylor County Board of Commissioners 

Address:- 201 E. Green Street, Perry, FL 32347  

Telephone:850-838-3553 County: Taylor 

Date: May 1 I 201 2 

Sincerely, 

Patricia Patterson 

Chair, Board of County Cornrnissioners 

OCJG-024 (Rev. May 201 1) 



FDLE 
Florida Department of Business Support Program Rick Scott, Governor 
Law Enforcement Post Office Box 1489 Pam Bondi, Attorney General 

Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1489 Jeff Atwater, Chief Financial Officer 
Gerald M. Bailey (850) 41 0-7000 Adam Putnam, Commissioner of Agriculture 
Commissioner www.fdle.state.fl.us 

April 6, 2012 

The Honorable Lonnie Houck, Jr. 
Chairman, Taylor County 

Board of Commissioners 
201 East Green Street 
Perry, FL 32347 

Re: Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2012 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance 
Grant (JAG) Program - JAG Countywide - State Solicitation 

Dear Chairman Houck: 

The Florida Department of Law Enforcement (FDLE) anticipates an award from the 
United States Department of Justice for FFY 2012 JAG funds. FDLE will distribute these 
funds in accordance with the JAG Countywide distribution provisions of Chapter 1 I D-9, 
Florida Administrative Code. 

FDLE has set aside $45,641 funds for use by all units of government within Taylor 
County. The enclosed Program Announcement provides an overview of these funds 
which can be used by local units of government to support a broad range of activities to 
prevent and control crime and to improve the criminal justice system. Please note that 
the Program Announcement includes information from the U.S. Department of Justice 
relating several areas of national focus and Its priorities to help maximize the 
effectiveness of the ByrneIJAG funding. 

As a condition of participation in this program, the units of government in each county 
must reach a consensus concerning the expenditure of these funds. This consensus 
must include the projects to be implemented as well as the agency responsible for such 
implementation. 

Developing such consensus will require someone to exercise leadership and assume a 
coordinating role in the development of applications for these funds. FDLE 
recommends that the Board of County Commissioners assume this responsibility. In 
the event the county declines to serve in this capacity, the Department will request the 
governing body of each municipality in the county, in descending order of population, to 
serve as the coordinating unit of government. 

Service Integrity Respecf Quality 



The Honorable Lonnie Houck, Jr 
April 6, 2012 
Page Two 

The enclosed Certificate of Participation form requests the identification of an individual 
coordinator. We will send this individual further information regarding the application 
process in FDLE's on-line grant management system. Please complete the enclosed 
Certificate of Participation and return it as soon as possible to: 

Florida Department of Law Enforcement 
Office of Criminal Justice Grants 
2331 Phillips Road 
Tallahassee, Florida 32308 
Attention: Clayton H. Wilder, Administrator 

We look forward to working with you. If you have any questions or if we can provide 
you with any assistance regarding the JAG Program, please contact me at 
(850) 61 7-1 250. 

Sincerely, 

M .CLkP& &b Wilder 

CH WIJ Plst 

Enclosures 

cc: Mayors in Taylor County 
Law Enforcement Agencies in Taylor County 
Project Directors in Taylor County 



PROGRAMANNOUNCEMENT 
FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 201 2 

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) program 
Countywide State Solicitation 

The State of Florida, Department of Law Enforcement (FDLE), anticipates an award 
from the United States Department of Justice (USDOJ) for $7,386,640 in Justice 
Assistar~ce Grant (JAG) funds. FDLE will distribute these funds in accordance with the 
JAG Countywide distribution provisions of Chapter 11 D-9, Florida Administrative Code. 
This announcement is to notify eligible applicants of program requirements. Please 
note this Program Announcement includes information from the USDOJ relating several 
areas of national focus and its priorities to help maximize the effectiveness of the 
ByrneIJAG funding. 

Eliqible A~plicants 
Units of local government are eligible to receive subgrants from FDLE. "Units of local 
government" means any city, county, town, township, borough, parish, village, or other 
general-purpose political subdivision of a State and includes Native American Tribes 
that perform law enforcement functions as determined by the Secretary of the Interior. 

Program Stratenv and Purposes 
JAG blends the previous Byrne Formula and Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 
(LLEBG) programs to provide agencies with the flexibility to prioritize and to support a 
broad range of activities to prevent and control crime based on their own local needs 
and conditions. JAG funds can be used for state and local irritiatives, technical 
assistance, training, personnel, equipment, supplies, contractual support, and 
information systems for criminal justice. Local units of government receiving JAG 
funding have the flexibility to implement projects in any of the seven federally approved 
purpose areas, listed below. 

1 ) Law enforcement programs 
2) Prosecution and court programs 
3) Prevention and education programs 
4) Corrections and community corrections programs 
5) Drug treatment and enforcement programs 
6) Planning, evaluation, and technology improvement programs 
7) Crime victim and witness programs 

Any law enforcement or justice initiative previously eligible for funding under Byrne or 
LLEBG is eligible for JAG funding. 

Coordination Efforts 
Each county is allocated a sum of rnoney for use by all local governments within the 
county. This amount is determined through a funding algorithm established in the 
administrative rule. 

Page 1 



Chapter 11 D-9.005, Florida Administrative Code, requires that uni,ts of governmer~t in 
each county reach consensus concerning the expenditure of these funds, including the 
projects to be implemented and the agency responsible for such implementation. 
Maximum coordination is required to meet this program requirement, and the 
Department requests the county board of commissioners to serve as the coordinating 
unit for all local governments within the county. The Chairman, Board of County 
Commissioners, in each county so notified is requested to return to the Department a 
statement of certification indicating the county's willingness to serve. This certification 
must be returned within 30 days from the date of receipt of notification. In the event the 
county declines to serve in this capacity, the Department will request the governing 
body of each municipality in the county, in descending order of populatior~, to serve as 
the coordinatirlg unit of government. 

Each county or coordinating unit of government is encouraged to form a criminal justice 
coordinatinglplanning group to identify and implement criminal justice priorities for the 
county, to plan strategies to address those priorities, to identify areas of greatest need, 
and to review all possible sources of revenue to make sure that funds go to the 
programs or issues that need them most. 

Furthermore, FDLE requires that units of government in each county reach consensus 
concerning the expenditure of the JAG funds, including the projects to be implemented 
and the agency responsible for such implernentation. Each courlty must document this 
conserlsus by subrnitting letters from at least 51 percent of the units of government 
which also represent at least 51 percent of the population located in said county. 

Match Requirements 
There is no match requirement under the guidelines of the JAG program. 

DOJlBureau of Justice Assistance (BJA) Priorities 

BJA wishes to ensure that recipients are aware of several areas of national focus and 
priority and to encourage recipients to maximize the effective use of JAG funds. The 
following is a brief list of key priorities: 

1) Funding Evidence-Based Programs 
2) Statewide Criminal Justice Planning 
3) Recidivism Reduction and Comm~~nity Corrections 
4) Indigent Defense 
5) Evidence-Based "Smart Policing" Programs 
6) Officer Safety and Wellness 

For more information on BJA1s priorities, recipients may access: 
https://www, bja.gov/Funding/l2JAG LocalSol. pdf (see pages 1 1 - 14). This is for 
informational PurDoses only; do not applv for any funds throuah this solicitation. 
Recipient must still submit application for fundina through SIMON. 

Page 2 



Application Requirements and Deadlines 
Once the Certificate of Participation form designating the coordir~ator for your county is 
received, the Office of Criminal Justice Grants will send this individual further 
information regarding the application process. 

Applicants must apply on-line using FDLE's grant management system. The deadline 
for the on-line submission is 5:00 P.M., Fridav, July 13, 2012. In addition, applicants 
must print out the completed application and submit two (2) hard copies (both with 
original signatures) no later than 5:00 P.M., Fridav, Julv 20, 2012. A separate 
application must be submitted for each proposed project. Applications should be 
mailed or hand delivered to the Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Office of 
Criminal Justice Grants, 2331 Phillips Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, Attention: 
Clayton H. Wilder, Administrator. 

Applications must be accompanied by letters of approval representing agreement 
among at least 51 percent of all units of local government representing at least 51 
percent of the county population as to the allocation of dollars to each project in the 
county. 

Questions regarding this Program Announcement should be directed to 
Clayton H. Wilder, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, at (850) 617-1250. 

Page 3 
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TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
County Commission Agenda Item 

Request to ratify County Administrator signature on subcontract to 
D&L Contracting, LLC, for FWC-11225 Reef Construction Grant 

MEETING DATE REQUESTED: I May 1,2012 

Statement of Issue: Board to consider ratifying County Administrator signature on 
contract executed April 2 0 ~ ,  2012 to construct artificial 
reefs under FWC Contract FWC-11225. 

Recommended Action: Ratify Jack Brown's signature on contract to D&L 
contracting, LLC in the amount of $150,826.1 5. 

Fiscal Impact: The County was awarded a FWC artificial reef construction 
grant for a maximum total project cost of $172,083. The 
County will be required to provide a $3,000 cash match. 
The match was submitted with the FY 2012-2013 budget 
requests. 

Budgeted Expense: YIN 
Yes, a budget was submitted for FY 2012-2013 and will be 
expended before the end of this fiscal year due to the 
contract deadlines. 

Submitted By: Fred Vose, Taylor County Marine Agent 

Contact: Fred Vose or Melody Cox 

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL I ISSUE ANALYSIS 

History, Facts & Issues: The County was awarded a grant contract to build and 
deploy concrete reef modules each weighing 
approximately 1 ton. Patch reefs will be constructed by 
deploying 4 modules simultaneously at 90 separate 
locations within a I00 mi2 area permitted to the University 
of Florida (managed by Dr. Bill Lindberg, Fisheries & 
Aquatic Sciences). This area is named the Steinhatchee 
Fisheries Management Area and has a dual role in 
enhancing fishing opportunities at a public fishing area (5 
mi2), while also constructing conservation reefs to 
enhance juvenile gag grouper populations. University of 



Florida will provide logistical support during deployments, 
and work closely with the Taylor County Reef Research 
Team (TCRRT). The TCRRT is a volunteer organization 
registered with the State Division of Corporations as a 
501 (c)3. A sealed bid process awarded the contract to D8L 
Contracting, LLC on April 2,2012 and approved Jack 
Brown, County Administrator to sign the contract with the 
selected vendor. 

Options: 1. Ratify County Administrator's signature. 
2. Not ratify County Administrator's signature. 

Attachments: Executed contract with D8L Contracting, LLC. 



CONTRACT FORM 

This contract made this 2012 between, Taylor County, Florida, hereinafter 
called the COUNTY, and LLC , hereinafter called the CONTRACTOR 

WITNESSETH, that the County and the Contractor for the consideration stated herein agree as follows: 

1 .  SCOPE OF WORK - See Attachment A - Scope of Work - 

2. THE CONTRACT PRICE. The County shall pay to the Contractor for the performance of 
this contract the sum as specified in the agreed upon bid for said work not to exceed $ 150,826.15 . 

3. DURATION OF CONTRACT. The contract shall take effect upon final execution and 
terminate August 21,2012. 

4. ASSIGNMENTS. This contract shall not be sublet, transferred, assigned or otherwise 
conveyed by the Contractor without prior written approval of the County. 

5. TERMINATION OF THIS CONTRACT. The County reserves the right to terminate or 
suspend the contract in whole or in part at any time the interest of the County requires such termination or 
suspension. The County shall notify the Contractor in writing of such action with instructions as to the 
effective date of termination or suspension or specify the stage of work at which the action is to be taken. 

If the County determines that the performance of the Contractor is not satisfactory, the County 
shall have the option of: (a) immediately terminating the contract, or (b) notifying the Contractor of the 
deficiency with a requirement that the deficiency be corrected within a specified time. Failure to correct 
such deficiencies in the specified time will result in the Contractor being declared in default and the 
contract may be terminated. 

If the contract is terminated for cause before the performance is completed, the Contractor shall be 
paid for the work units satisfactorily accomplished and accepted at the contract unit price. 

6. DEFAULT OF CONTRACT. If the Contractor fails to begin the work under the Contract the 
County shall have full power or authority, without violating the contract, to take the work out of the hands 
of the Contractor and to declare the contract in default. 

7. PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY. The Contractor shall preserve from damage all property 
associated with, or which is in the vicinity of, or is in any way affected by the work. This applies to 
public and private property andlor utilities. Any damage occurring to such properties shall be 
immediately repaired at the expense of the Contractor. 



8. HOLD HARMLESS AND INSURANCE. To the extent allowed by law, the Contractor shall 
indemnifl, defend, and save and hold harmless, the County, all of its officers, agents, or employees from 
all suits, actions, claims, demands, and liabilities of any nature whatsoever arising out oE, because 0% or 
due to breach of this agreement by the Contractor, its sub-contractors, agents, or employees or due to any 
negligent act or employees. Neither Contractor nor any of its subcontractors will be liable under this 
section for damages arising out of injury or damage to persons or property directly caused or resulting 
from the sole negligence of the County or any of its officers, agents, or employees. 

9. GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE. The Contractor shall maintain general liability 
insurance of at least $1,000,000.00 per person and property damage insurance of at least $500,000.00 
each occurrence, holding the County harmless for the contractor's negligence. The Contractor must 
provide Worker's Compensation Insurance on all employees working unless otherwise exempt. 
Certificates of such insurance shall be filed with the County prior to beginning work under this 
contract and shall be subject to approval for adequacy of protection. 

10. WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE. The Contractor shall provide Worker's 
Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida and in amounts sufficient to 
secure the benefits of the Florida Worker's Compensation Law of all of its employees. The Contractor 
shall insure that the employees of a subcontractor are covered by similar insurance. Worker's 
Compensation exemptions will be accepted upon providing a current certificate, Articles of Incorporation, 
and a signed Taylor County Worker's Compensation Hold Harmless Agreement. 

1 1. PERMITS, RULES, & REGULATIONS. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to 
secure all permits necessary to conduct the work in accordance with required regulations and to noti@ all 
applicable utilities or parties affected by the Contractor's operations. The Contractor shall m h e r  be 
responsible for all fees associated with the performance of this contract. The Contractor agrees to abide 
by all applicable State and Federal Laws, rules, and regulations. The contractor is not responsible for the 
artificial reef permit from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers for the Steinhatchee Fisheries Management 
Area (to University of Florida). This permit is already in hand and valid until December 22,2013 (SAJ- 
2002-4178(IP-S WA)). 

12. ACCESS TO RECORDS. The Contractor agrees to provide access to those records, books, 
and documentations that pertain to this project during the project period and for a three (3) year period 
thereafter. 

13. COMPONENT PARTS OF THIS CONTRACT. This contract consists of the following 
component parts, all of which are as fblly a part of this contract as if set out verbatim or, if not attached, as 
if hereto attached. 

(a) The Advertisement for bids 
(b) Instructions to bidders (Invitation to Bid document, TTB) 
(c) The Contractors proposal 
(d) This instrument 

In the event that any provision in any of the above component parts of this contract conflicts with any 
provision in any other component parts, the provision of the component list enumerated above shall 
govern over any other component part which follows it numerically, except as may be otherwise 
specifically stated. 

14. AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL. The Contractor is to contact the following for any questions 



regarding this project: Dr. Fred Vose, Marine Extension Agent, 203 Forest Park Drive, Perry, FL 32348, 
(850)838-3508, e-mail: fiose(ii,ufl.edu. 

14. LITIGATION. If any litigation arises out of this Contract, venue of all such cases shall be 
Taylor County, Florida, and the prevailing party is entitled to a reasonable attorney fee and costs. 

In WITNESS WHEROF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument, as of the 20* day of 
. a ~ t a  

TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 

/")& Brown, County Administrator 

ATTEST: 

Annie Mae Murphy, clerk 
4/ao //aJ 

i/ JACK 8.  BROWN 
COUNTY ADMZNISTRATOR 

TAYLOR COUNTY, FL 
201 E. GREEN Sf .  
PERRY, FL 32347 

Contractor 

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF TAYLOR 

LLGLDL~ NOTARY PUBLlC DNKWr)ODS 

.,,\ Jc\ , 20 ( 5  * MY COMMISSKM I EE 063617 My Commission Expires: 'khn ,ir EXPIRES: February 24,2015 
B O n d s d h e u g r c ~ d p u ~  

Attachment A 



SCOPE OF WORK 
The Taylor County Board of County Commissioners seeks bids for the fabrication, transport, and 
deployment of designed concrete artificial reef modular units. Each modular unit is a concrete cube, 88.9 
centimeters (cm) (35 inches) on a side with one 61 cm (24 inch) diameter hole formed by a clean 55 
gallon steel drum or equivalent insert through the center of the cube. Cubes will be built in accordance 
with an un-patented existing design currently in use on in the Steinhatchee FMA. These structures will be 
lowered to the seafl oor four at a time to create identical patch reefs with an approximate footprint of 2m x 
2m (2.2 yds. x 2.2 yds.) at each of the designated locations with a minimum of 90 sites. In 48 of the 90 
locations, sites are will be no closer than 250 meters from adjacent sites. The selected sites are at water 
depths of 10-16 m (33-54 ft or 5.5-9 fathoms). In the remaining 42 remaining locations, patch reefs will 
be clustered in groups of six identical patch reefs at seven locations within a subarea developed for fishing 
reefs in an earlier phase of the project (2007). These placements will occur within a federally permitted 
triangular area (University of Florida is the permit holder). The permitted area is approximately 260 km2 
(100 mi2) off the coast of the Florida Big Bend (northeastern Gulf of Mexico), centered about 29 km (18 
mi.) offshore from Steinhatchee, Florida (Figure 1 in ITB document). 

PROJECT BACKGROUND 

Construction of 500 "conservation" reefs within the Steinhatchee FMA will provide shelter for juvenile 
grouper moving out of the extensive sea grass beds of the Florida Big Bend. Of the 500 planned reefs in 
452 reefs were constructed in spring 201 1. The exact location of these conservation reefs are not beiig 
released to the public. A total of 48 more conservation reefs will be constructed bringing the total to 500 
patch reefs. Public fishing reefs in the northeast corner of the Steinhatchee FMA were constructed in 
2007, with an additional of 42 reefs to be deployed in this construction phase, for a minimum total of 90 
new deployments (360 reef modules in four module patches) by August 15,2012. 

This Invitation to Bid addresses the initial artificial reef construction in Phase I1 of the Steinhatchee FMA 
gag grouper conservation reef project. The selected Contractor will engage in three tasks: (I) fabrication 
or procurement of concrete cube modules of specific dimensions, (2) the transportation and loading of 
those cubes onto the Contractor's barge or appropriate vessel at a staging area arranged by the Contractor, 
and (3) transit to the Steinhatchee FMA and deployment of 4-cube patch reefs at locations specified by 
Taylor County and the University of Florida within the Steinhatchee FMA. 

Artificial Reef Unit Construction Design Requirement 

This project has a requirement for the construction of specific non-patented concrete cube artificial reef 
modules, all of the same standard design. There are several reasons for this. This cube unit has been used 
since 1991 in ongoing artificial reef research in the Suwannee Regional Reef System, a 23-site reef 
artificial reef system constructed with these units south of the proposed project area Since current 
research associated with Phase 1 and Phase 11 construction of the Steinhatchee FMA gag grouper project is 
building on that prior research along the Florida Big Bend, the University of Florida has a research 
requirement to utilize the same standardized unit in the current Steinhatchee FMA project. In more than 
18 years of field testing in Gulf of Mexico waters off the Florida Big Bend, the concrete cube unit has 
demonstrated its effectiveness as habitat for juvenile, sub-adult, and adult gag grouper as well as scores of 
other reef associated and reef obligate fish species. The unit is simple and durable, has been mass 
produced in the past, and has resisted significant movement in hurricane force storm events in water as 



shallow as 40 feet. 

Design Specifications 

1. The concrete cubes must be composed of concrete with a minimum strength of 3,000 pounds per 
square inch (psi). No end-of-day waste concrete may be used in the fabrication process. 

2. The concrete cube units shall be 88.9 cm (35 inches) on a side and constructed around a clean steel 
55 gallon drum, or insert equivalent, open at both ends, thus creating an interior opening between 
two sides of the cube with a diameter of approximately 61 cm (24 inches) (Figure 2). A public 
education DVD highlighting past research with this cube module is available to potential 
Contractors upon request. 

3. The cubes shall have a minimum of two weeks curing time after the concrete is poured, prior to 
deployment 

General Artificial Reef Deployment and Staging Requirements 

4. All bids must be of a "tum-key" nature covering fabrication or procurement, staging, 
transportation and deployment of concrete cubes deployed as four cubes per patch reef. As many 
four cube patch reef& as possible, with a minimum of 90 four cube patch reefs, are to be 
constructed with the available funding of $172,083. Each patch reef shall be spaced 
approximately with more than 250 m (273 yds) fiom its nearest neighbor at random locations to be 
selected by Taylor County and the University of Florida who will be physically on site and 
directing the contractor to the specific patch reef locations. These patch reefs will be placed at 
depths of 10-16 m (33-54 ft) within the triangular large-area artificial reef site (LAARS) permitted 
by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (#200204178 (IP-KCF). This is an active artificial reef 
permit held by the University of Florida and authorizing the use of materials described below to be 
placed in the LAARS. Coordinates for the center and comer points of this LAARS are given in 
Figure 3. A portion of the reefs deployed will be in the public fishing area, and grouped as arrays 
of patches, with the specific configurations supplied by the Project Manager prior to field 
operations. 

5. The four concrete cube units (Figure 221 in ITB document) comprising each of the conservation 
patch reefs will be lowered simultaneously to the sea floor in a controlled manner by a crane and 
cable system in such a manner that the four cubes are lowered upright together and each cube is 
separated fiom its nearest neighbor by a standard space of 15-22 cm (6-9 in). The four cubes must 
be placed in an upright position on the bottom (not leaning against one another) and the circular 61 
cm (24 in) diameter openings in each block shall be aligned horizontally with the 61 cm opening 
of one of the blocks adjacent to it (Figure 2b & 2c in ITB document). There must be a quick 
release mechanism that rapidly detaches the crane cable from the four cube patch reef unit once it 
reaches the bottom so that in-water diver assistance is not necessary. A fabricated frame (Figure 
2c) capable of simultaneously positioning four cubes as they are lowered into the water is 
available for use through the University of Florida Deployment capability must be possible in a 
maximum water depth of 18 m (60 feet). The deploying vessel must be able to maintain an 
accurate position, less than 15 m or 50 ft, within each deployment location. Two point anchoring 
may be required depending on the wind and sea conditions. 

Confidentiality of Reef Placement Information and Reef Location Coordinates 
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Statement of Issue: The County must submit a quarterly expenditure report and 
reimbursement request the Florida Division of Emergency 
Management (FDEM). 

TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
County Commission Agenda Item 

Recommended Action: Approve 

SUBJECTITITLE: 

Fiscal Impact: Reimbursement of $19,675.99 

THE BOARD TO CONSIDER RATIFICATION OF THE COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATOR'S SIGNATURE ON QUARTERLY GRANT REPORTS 
FOR THE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE GRANT 
PROGRAM, EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PREPAREDNESS AND 
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, FY 2009 STATE HOMELAND SECURITY 
GRANT PROGRAM, AND FY 2010 STATE HOMELAND SECURITY 
GRANT PROGRAM, AS AGENDAED BY DUSTIN HINKEL, EM 
DIRECTOR.. 

Budgeted Expense: Yes 

MEETING DATE REQUESTED: 1 51111 2 

Submitted By: Dustin Hinkel, EM Director 

Contact: 838-3500 ext 7 

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL I ISSUE ANALYSIS 

History, Facts & Issues: The EMPA and EMPG grants fund 85% of the Department of 
Emergency Management. EMPA expenses are 100% 
reimbursable and the EMPG is a 50150 grant. 

Options: 

Attachments: EMPA, EMPG, SHSGP 3RD Quarter Reimbursement 
Requests 



Claim # - 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE GRANT PROGRAM - BASE GRANT 
FORM 1 

FINANCIAL REPORTIREIMBURSEMENT REQUEST 

County T a y l o r  Date of Claim 

Address 2 0 1  E Green St 

Perry, FL 32347 

Point of Contact D u s t i n  Hinkel Telephone Number ( 8 5 0 )  838-3500 ext 7 

EMPG Base Grant Agreement No. 12-FG-R3-03-72-01-129 

Period of: 1/1/2012 through 3/31/2012 

CURRENT CLAIM CUMULATIVE CLAIMS 

1. Organizational Expenditures 

2. Planning Expenditures 

3. Training Expenditures 

4. Exercise Expenditures 

5. Equipment Expenditures 

6. Management and Administration Costs - 
limited to 3% of the total award 

7. TOTAL FOR THlS PERIOD 

NOTE: FINANCIAL REPORTS MUST BE SUBMITTED O N  A QUARTERLY BASIS EVEN IF YOU ARE NOT CLAIMING ANY EXPENDITURES. 

ON THlS INVOICE 

THIS SECTION BELOW IS TO BE COMPLETED BY DEM WITH EACH QUARTERLY PAYMENT 

Total EMPG (Federal) Amount 
Prior Payrnent(s) 
This Payment 
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EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE GRANT PROGRAM - BASE GRANT 
Form 2 (if applicable) 

DETAIL OF CLAIMS 

ORGANIZATIONAL / SALARIES AND BENEFITS COSTS 

SALARY DEFINITION: The cash compensation for services rendered by a regular employee in an established position for a specific period of time. 

County Taylor Costs Incurred During the Period of: 1 1 1 1 12 to 3 1 31 I 12 Claim Number: 3 -- 

Name of Employees 

Dustin Hinkel 

Steve Spradley 

Job Title 

EM Director 

EM Coordinator 

TOTALS 

Total Salaries and Benefits 

% of Time 
Charged to 
this Grant 

33% 

100% 

"",399.6'? 
,, --A 

$4,356.98 

Charged to this Grant 

$2,042.92 

Salary $ Charged to 
this Grant 

$1,179.38 

$3,177.60 

Fringe Benefits $ 

Charged to this 
Grant 

$367.99 

$1,674.93 



SUNGARD PENTAMATION, INC 
DATE: 04/23/2012 
TIME: 13:39:44 

TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
EXPENDITURE AUDIT TRAIL 

SELECTION CRITERIA: 1=1 expledgr.key-orgn='0224' 
ACCOUNTING PERIODS: 4/12 THRU 6/12 

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND 
FD/DEPT - 0224 - EMPG GRANT 10/1-6/30 

ACCOUNT 
DATE T/C ENCUMBRANC REFERENCE VENDOR 

001-520-525-0224-0224 - EMPG GRANT 10/1-6/30 

51200 REGULARSALARIES&WAGES 
01/11/12 22-4 
01/17/12 25-4 20120047 
01/25/12 22-4 
02/21/12 13-5 
02/23/12 22-5 
03/07/12 22-6 
03/21/12 22-6 

TOTAL REGULAR SALARIES & WAGES 

51400 OVERTIME 
TOTAL OVERTIME 

52110 FICA/MEDICARE TAXES 
01/11/12 22-4 
01/11/12 22-4 
01/17/12 25-4 20120047 
01/25/12 22-4 
01/25/12 22-4 
02/21/12 13-5 
02/23/12 22-5 
02/23/12 22-5 
03/07/12 22-6 
03/07/12 22-6 
03/21/12 22-6 
03/21/12 22-6 

TOTAL FICA/MEDICARE TAXES 

52200 RETIREMENTCONTRIBUTIONS 
01/11/12 22-4 
01/17/12 25-4 20120047 
01/25/12 22-4 
01/30/12 25-4 20120054 

PAGE NUMBER: 1 
AUDIT21 

CUMULATIVE 
BUDGET EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION BALANCE 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 
PAYROLL CHARGES 
EM COORD ADJSUTMENT 
PAYROLL CHARGES 
BONUSES 
PAYROLL CHARGES 
PAYROLL CHARGES 
PAYROLL CHARGES 

.oo 16.008.93 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo .oo 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
EM COORD ADJSUTMENT 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
BONUSES 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 

00 BEGINNING BALANCE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
EM COORD ADJSUTMENT 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
WORK COMP CORRECTION 

THERE IS A NOTE ASSOCIATED WITH THIS TRANSACTION 



SUNGARD PENTAMATION, INC 
DATE: 04/23/2012 
TIME: 13:39:44 

TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
EXPENDITURE AUDIT TRAIL 

PAGE NUMBER: 2 
AUDIT21 

SELECTION CRITERIA: 1=1 expledgr.key-orgn='0224' 
ACCOUNTING PERIODS: 4/12 THRU 6/12 

TOTALED ON: FUND,TOTL/DEPT 

PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND,TOTL/DEPT 

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND 
FD/DEPT - 0224 - EMPG GRANT 10/1-6/30 

ACCOUNT 
DATE T/C ENCUMBRANC REFERENCE VENDOR BUDGET EXPENDITURES 

CUMULATIVE 
ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION BALANCE 

52200 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS (cont'd) 
03/30/12 25-6 20120089 
03/30/12 19-6 20120231 
03/30/12 19-6 20120231 
03/30/12 19-6 20120231 

TOTAL RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 

RETIREMENT ADJ 
BCC INV 179587 
EMP INV#179587 
FOR 3/12 

.OO 249.94 

52300 HEALTH INSURANCE 
01/17/12 25-4 20120047 
01/25/12 22-4 
03/21/12 22-6 

TOTAL HEALTH INSURANCE 

00 BEGINNING BALANCE 
EM COORD ADJSUTMENT 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 

0 0 9,553.85 

52320 LIFE INSURANCE 
01/17/12 25-4 
01/25/12 22-4 
03/21/12 22-6 

TOTAL LIFE INSURANCE 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 
EM COORD ADJSUTMENT 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 

.OO 41.90 

52400 WORKERS' COMPENSATION 
01/17/12 25-4 20120047 
01/30/12 25-4 20120054 
03/30/12 25-6 20120089 
03/31/12 19-6 20120252 

TOTAL WORKERS' COMPENSATION 

00 BEGINNING BALANCE 
EM COORD ADJSUTMENT 
WORK COMP CORRECTION 
RETIREMENT ADJ 
W/COMP QTR 3/31/12 

00 312.84 

52500 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 
TOTAL UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo .oo 

534 01 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 
TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 

00 BEGINNING BALANCE 
0 0 .oo 

54000 TRAVEL & PER DIEM 
TOTAL TRAVEL & PER DIEM 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo .oo 

* THERE IS A NOTE ASSOCIATED WITH THIS TRANSACTION 



SUNGARD PENTAMATION, INC. 
DATE: 04/23/2012 
TIME: 13:39:44 

TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
EXPENDITURE AUDIT TRAIL 

PAGE NUMBER: 3 
AUDIT21 

SELECTION CRITERIA: 1=1 expledgr.key-orgn='0224' 
ACCOUNTING PERIODS: 4/12 THRU 6/12 

TOTALED ON: FUND,TOTL/DEPT 

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND 
FD/DEPT - 0224 - EMPG GRANT 10/1-6/30 

CUMULATIVE 
ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION BALANCE 

ACCOUNT 
DATE T/C ENCUMBRANC REFERENCE VENDOR BUDGET EXPENDITURES 

54100 COMMUNICATIONS 
TOTAL COMMUNICATIONS 

00 BEGINNING BALANCE 
00 

54 115 POSTAGE 
TOTAL POSTAGE 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo 

54300 UTILITY SERVICES 
TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES 

00 BEGINNING BALANCE 
0 0 

54402 RENT/LEASE-EQUIPMENT 
TOTAL RENT/LEASE-EQUIPMENT 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo 

54500 INSURANCE 
TOTAL INSURANCE 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo 

54610 R&M BUILDINGS & GROUNDS 
TOTAL R&M BUILDINGS & GROUNDS 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo 

54620 R&M EQUIPMENT 
TOTAL R&M EQUIPMENT 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo 

54630 R&M OFFICE MACHINES/EQUIP 
TOTAL R&M OFFICE MACHINES/EQUIP 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo 

54640 R&M AUTOMOBILE 
TOTAL R&M AUTOMOBILE 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo 

54645 R&M AUTO - COUNTY LABOR 
TOTAL R&M AUTO - COUNTY LABOR 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo 

* THERE IS A NOTE ASSOCIATED WITH THIS TRANSACTION 



SUNGARD PENTAMATION, 
DATE: 04/23/2012 
TIME: 13:39:44 

INC. 
TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

EXPENDITURE AUDIT TRAIL 

PAGE NUMBER: 4 
AUDIT21 

SELECTION CRITERIA: 1=1 expledgr.key-0rgn='0224' 
ACCOUNTING PERIODS: 4/12 THRU 6/12 

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND 
FD/DEPT - 0224 - EMPG GRANT 10/1-6/30 

ACCOUNT 
DATE T/C ENCUMBRANC REFERENCE VENDOR EXPENDITURES 

CUMULATIVE 
ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION BALANCE BUDGET 

54901 OTHER CURRENT CHGS (MISC) 
TOTAL OTHER CURRENT CHGS (MISC) 

00 BEGINNING BALANCE 
0 0 .oo 

54902 LEGALADVERTISING 
TOTAL LEGAL ADVERTISING 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo .oo 

54907 LICENSE/PERMIT/REGISTRAT 
TOTAL LICENSE/PERMIT/REGISTRAT 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo .oo 

54910 DRUG TESTING 
TOTAL DRUG TESTING 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo .oo 

55101 OFFICE SUPPLIES 
TOTAL OFFICE SUPPLIES 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo .oo 

55102 OFFC.EQUIP/FURN.<$l,OOO 
01/17/12 25-4 20120047 

TOTAL OFFC.EQUIP/FURN.<$~,~~~ 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 
EM COORD ADJSUTMENT 

.oo .oo 

55103 EQUIPMENT< $1,000 
01/17/12 25-4 20120047 

TOTAL EQUIPMENT < $1,000 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 
EM COORD ADJSUTMENT 

.oo .oo 

55110 OFFICE COPIER EXPENSE 
TOTAL OFFICE COPIER EXPENSE 

00 BEGINNING BALANCE 
0 0 .oo 

55201 GEN. OPERATING SUPPLIES 
TOTAL GEN. OPERATING SUPPLIES 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo .oo 

55202 SAFETY PRODUCTS/SUPPLIES .OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

* THERE IS A NOTE ASSOCIATED WITH THIS TRANSACTION 



































GRANTEE: Tavlor Countv BCC 
20i  E. ~ r e e i ~ t r e e t  

Perrv. FL 32347 

AGREEMENT # 10-DS-39-03-72-01-422 

(Select the quarter of subrniss~on along with year) 

QUARTERLY REPORTING DUE DATES 

E JANUARY i - MARCH 31 - ~ u e  no later man ~ p n ~  30. 201 1 

E APRIL 1 -JUNE 30 - DUB no later man ~ u l y  31, 201 1 

E JULY 1 -SEPTEMBER 30 - Due no later man October 31, 201 1 

TOTAL REIMBURSEMENTS RECEIVED $0.00 

CUMULATIVE 
1. Planning Costs 
2. Training Costs 
3. Exercise Costs 
4. Manament and Administration 
Costs - limited to 3% of the total 

TOTAL 

I hereby certify that the above costs are true and valid costs incurred in accordance with the project agreement. 

?ACK R. BROWN 
ADMINISTRAmR 

TAYLOR COUNTY. FL 

TOTAL 
ALLOCATED 

$33,300.00 
$0.00 

$25,000.00 

$0.00 
$58,300.00 

- - ~  ~. -, - - 
201 E. GREEN  ST^ 

This information must be clearly linked to the project TIMELINE, DELIVERABLES AND THE SCOPE OF WORK. 
Report events, progress, delays, etc. that pertain to this project. 

QUARTERLY 
FUNDS EXPENDED 

$32,300.00 
$0.00 

$24,250.00 

$0.00 
$56,550.00 

TCEM completed deliverables in 10/1/11 - 12/31/1 1 quarter. 

TCEM received permission to obtain disaster assessment software license on 4/17/12 (next quarter) 

CUM. FUNDS 
EXPENDED 

$32,300.00 
$0.00 

$24,250.00 

$0.00 
$56,550.00 

TO BE COMPLETED BY FDEM STAFF 

DATE SUBMllTED TO FDEM 

REMAINING BALANCE 

$1,000.00 
$0.00 

$750.00 

$0.00 
$1,750.00 

2012 Quarter 2 ReporVlnstructions, Forms 1,2 & 3 



COSTS INCURRED DURING THE PERIOD OF: 01/01/12 through 03/31 11 2 

Grantee Taylor County BCC 

Address 201 E. Green St. Perry, FL 32347 

Phone # 850-838-3575 

Planning Expenditures $ 

Payment Date 

Agreement # 10-DS-39-03-72-01-422 

Payment # 

Amount 

2. Training Expenditures 

3. Exercise Expenditures 
Management and Administration Expenditures 

4. (limited to 3% of the total award) 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 

dance with the project agreement. 
3ACK R. BROWN 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
TAYLOR COUNTY, FL 
201 E. GREEN ST. 
PERRY. FL 32347 

TO BE COMPLETED BY DEM STAFF 

AGREEMENT AMOUNT $0.00 

PREVIOUS PAYMENT(S) $0.00 

THIS PAYMENT $0.00 

REMAINING BALANCE $0.00 

TOTAL AMOUNT TO BE PAID 

ON THlS INVOICE 

$0.00 

DATE SUBMIlTED TO FDEM 

2012 Quarter 2 ReporVlnstructions, Forms 1, 2 & 3 



SUNGARD PENTAMATION, INC 
DATE: 04/20/2012 
TIME: 15:52:57 

TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
EXPENDITURE AUDIT TRAIL 

SELECTION CRITERIA: 1=1 expledgr.key-orgn='0249' 
ACCOUNTING PERIGDS: 4/12 THRU 6/12 

SORTED BY: FUND,FUNCTION,ACTIVITY,TOTL/DEPT,ACCOUNT 

TOTALED ON: FUND,TOTL/DEPT 

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND 
FD/DEPT - 0249 - HOMELAND SEC GRANT 

ACCOUNT 
DATE T/C ENCUMBRANC REFERENCE VENDOR 

001-520-525-0249-0249 - HOMELAND SEC GRANT 

53401 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 
03/30/12 25-6 20120088 

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 

55202 SAFETY PRODUCTS/SUPPLIES 
03/27/12 11-6 
03/30/12 25-6 20120088 

TOTAL SAFETY PRODUCTS/SUPPLIES 

55230 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 
TOTAL COMPUTER SOFTWARE 

TOTAL TOTL/DEPT - HOMELAND SEC GRANT 

TOTAL FUND - GENERAL FUND 

TOTAL REPORT 

BUDGET EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION 

PAGE NUMBER: 1 
AUDIT21 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 
AED 

.oo 

CUMULATIVE 
BALANCE 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

AED 
.oo 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo .oo 

* TIIEXE IS A NOTZ ASSOCIATED WITH THIS TRANSACTION 



Claim # 

STATE O F  FLORIDA 
DIVISION O F  EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PREPAREDNESS AND ASSISTANCE BASE GRANT PROGRAM 

FINANCIAL REPORTIREIMBURSEMENT REQUEST 

County T a y l o r  Date of Claim 

Address 2 0 1  E Green St 

Perry, FL 32347 

Point of Contact D u s t i n  Hinkel Telephone Number ( 8 5 0 )  838-3500 ext 7 

EMPA Base Grant Agreement No. -12-BG-05-03-72-01-062 

Period of: 01/01/12 through 03 131 112 

CURRENT CLAIM CUMULATIVE CLAIMS 

1. SALARY AND BENEFITS $ 3,660.20 

2. OTHER PERSONALICONTRACTUAL $ 

SERVICES (OPS) 

3. EXPENSES $ 9,483.66 $ 20,210.35 

4. OPERATING CAPITAL OUTLAY (OCO) $ $ 

5. FIXED CAPITAL OUTLAY (FCO) 

6. TOTAL FOR THIS PERIOD $ 13,143.86 $ 29,659.25 

NOTE: FINANCIAL REPORTS MUST BE SUBMITTED O N  A QUARTERLY BASIS EVEN IF YOU ARE NOT CLAIMING ANY EXPENDITURES. 

(SEE INSTRUCTIONS O N  PREVIOUS PAGE.) FOR DEFINITION O F  EXPENDITURE CATEGORIES #1-5, SEE ATTACHMENT A OF THIS PACKAGE. 

that the above repre nts t d valid costs incurred in acco ce with the grant agreement. *-)R w 
ON THIS INVOICE 

THIS SECTION BELOW IS TO BE COMPLETED BY DEM WITH EACH QUARTERLY PAYMENT 1 
Total EMPA (State) Amount 
Prior Payrnent(s) 
This Payment 
Unexpended Funds 



EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PREPAREDNESS AND ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
DETAIL OF CLAIMS 

SALARIES AND BENEFITS COSTS 

SALARY DEFINITION: The cash compensation for services rendered by a regular employee in an established position for a specific period of time. 

County Tavlor Costs Incurred During the Period of: 1 1 1 1 12 to 3 I 3 I 12 Claim Number: 3 -- 

Name of Employees 

Dustin Hinkel 

Stephen Spradley 

Job Title 

EM Director 

EM Coordinator 

TOTALS 

Total Salaries and Benefits 

% of Time 
Charged to 
this Grant 

33% 

100% 

$3,660.20 

$2,864.99 

Charged to this Grant 

$795.21 

Salary $ Charged to 
this Grant 

$2,335.39 

$529.60 

Fringe Benefits $ 

Charged to this 
Grant 

$697.50 

$97.71 



- 
Comcast 

Comcast 

Fairpoint 

Progress Energy 

City of Perry 

Progress Energy 

City of Perry 

City of Perry 

Progress Energy 

Florida Municipa 

Florida Municipa 

Florida Municipa 

Live Oak Pest Control 

Live Oak Pest Control 

Live Oak Pest Control 

Live Oak Pest Control 

Toshba America 

County Inventory Billing 

County Inventory Billing 

County Inventory Billing 

County Inventory Billing 

County Inventory Billing 
* 

EOC Cable Service 

EOC Cable Service 

EOC Phone Service 

EOC Electrical Service 

EOC Water Service 

EOC Electrical Service 

EOC Water Service 

EOC Water Service 

EOC Electrical Service 

EM Insurancev (1 st Qtr) 

EM Insurancev (2nd Qtr) 

EM Insurancev (1 st Qtr) 

EOC Pest Control Service 

EOC Pest Control Service 

EOC Pest Control Service 

EOC Pest Control Service 

EOC Copier Expense 

EOC General Operating Supplies 

EOC General Operating Supplies 

EOC General Operating Supplies 

EOC General Operating Supplies 

Petroleum Products EM Vehicles 

3/5/20 12 

3/8/20 12 

3/8/20 12 

1/1212012 

1/12/2012 

2/6/20 12 

2/9/20 12 

3181201 2 

3/8/20 1 2 

1/19/2012 

1/19/2012 

3/20/20 12 

1/3/20 12 

1/17/2012 

2/21/2012 

3/20/20 12 

1/17/2012 

111 112012 

1/25/2012 

2/9/20 12 

2/23/20 12 

2/2/20 12 

44 108 

44 174 

44 1 70 

43837 

43826 

43979 

43999 

441 73 

44185 

20120137 

20120139 

442 16 

43788 

43887 

44049 

44228 

4391 1 

I01 11001 

I0125001 

I020900 1 

I0223001 

I0202001 

$4.26 

$4.26 

$4 14.77 

$254.74 

$357.47 

$257.76 

$26.67 

$25.52 

$258.5 1 

$1,135.25 

$1,135.25 

$1,135.25 

$30.00 

$30.00 

$30.00 

$30.00 

$108.49 

$6.66 

$7.20 

$36.09 

$2 1.55 

$50.66 



County Inventory Billing 

Chevron & Texaco 

County Inventory Billing 

FEPA, Inc 

FEPA, Inc 

Labor Law Center 

Governor's Hurricane 

County Billing 

Petroleum Products EM Vehicles 

Petroleum Products EM Vehicles 

Petroleum Products EM Vehicles 

EM Director Dues 

EM Coordinator Dues 

Conference Fee (EM Director) 

EM Hurricane Converence Fee (EM Coordinator) 

Workers' Compensation Allocation 

Total Expenses Costs Charged to this Grant 

2/29/20 12 

3/5/20 12 

313 112012 

1/17/2012 

2/6/20 12 

2/6/20 12 

3/20/20 12 

313 112012 

$9,483.66 

I0308001 

44 106 

I040500 1 

43870 

43952 

43963 

442 19 

20120252 

$176.85 

$4 1.46 

$111.86 

$75.00 

$75.00 

$29.95 

$195.00 

$92.83 



EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PREPAREDNESS AND ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
DETAIL OF CLAIMS 

EXPENSES 

EXPENSES DEFINITION: The usual, ordinary, and incidental expenditures by an agency, including, but not limited to, commodities and 
supplies of a consumable nature, current obligations, and fixed charges, and excluding expenditures classified as operating capital outlay. 
Payments to other hnds  or local, state, or federal agencies are included in this budget classification of expenditures. 

County Taylor Costs Incurred During the Period of: 1 I 1 I 12 to 3 I 31 I 12 Claim Number: 3 -- 

Vendor 

Tyco International 

County Billing 

Hilton Daytona 

Dustin Hinkel 

Hilton Ft. Lauderdale 

Fairpoint 

Comcast 

Lightsquared LP 

Verizon Wireless 

Lightsquared LP 

Fairpoint 

Verizon Wireless 

Verizon Wireless 

Verizon Wireless 

Lightsquared LP 

Briefly Describe Item and its EM Purpose 

EOC Security Services 

Spradley background check 

FEPA Conference (EM Director) 

Reimburse T&A 216 219 

Governors Conference Lodging (EM Coordinator) 

EOC Phone Service 

EOC Cable Service 

Satellite Phone Service 

Staff Cell Phone 

Satellite Phone Service 

EOC Phone Service 

Staff Cell Phone 

Staff Cell Phone 

Staff Cell Phone 

Satellite Phone Service 

Date Paid 

1/3/2012 

2/20/20 12 

1/17/2012 

3/5/2012 

3/20/20 12 

1/12/2012 

1/12/2012 

1/12/2012 

1/12/2012 

2/6/20 12 

2/9/20 12 

1/17/2012 

1/21/2012 

1/21/2012 

3/5/20 12 

Check 
Number 

43808 

20 120202 

43876 

441 19 

44222 

43819 

43827 

43833 

43847 

43964 

43995 

66894 
- 

66894 

44070 

44136 

Amount 

$671.12 

$24.00 

$556.00 

$192.00 

$695.00 

$413.42 

$4.26 

$63.66 

$86.25 

$64.20 

$412.73 

$40.01 
- 

-$40.0 1 

$78.5 1 

$64.20 



PAGE NUMBER: 1 
AUDIT21 

SUNGARD PEEITAMATION, INC. 
DATE: 04/20/2012 
TIME: 14:05:33 

TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
EXPENDITURE AUDIT TRAIL 

SELECTION CRITERIA: 1-1 expledgr.key-orgn='0226' 
ACCOLWINQ PERIODS: 4/12 THRU 6/12 

TOTALED ON: FUND,TOTL/DEPT 

PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND, TOTL/DEPT 

PUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND 
FD/DEPT - 0226 - EMPA/BASE GRANT10/1-6/30 
ACCOUNT 

DATE T/C ENCUMBRANC REFERENCE VENDOR 

001-520-525-0226-0226 - EMPA/BASE C3RANT10/1-6/30 

CUMULATIVE 
BUDGET EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION BALANCE 

.OO BEGINNING EWANCE 
SALARY ADJUSTMENT 
PAYROLL CHARGES 
PAYROLL CHARGES 
PAYROLL CHAROES 
PAYROLL CHARGES 

.oo 8,345.01 

51200 REGULAR SALARIES & WAGES 
01/17/12 25-4 20120044 
02/08/12 22-5 
02/23/12 22-5 
03/07/12 22-6 
03/21/12 22-6 

TOTAL REGULAR SALARIES & WAGES 

51400 OVERTIME 
TOTAL OVERTIME 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo .oo 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 
SALARY ADJUSTMENT 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINQE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINQE 

.oO 654.82 

03/07/12 22-6 
03/21/12 22-6 
03/21/12 22-6 

TOTAL FICA/MEDICARE TAXES 

52200 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 
01/17/12 25-4 20120044 
oz/oe/lz 22-5 
02/23/12 22-5 
03/07/12 22-6 
03/21/12 22-6 

TOTAL RETIREMGNT CONTRIBUTIONS 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 
SALARY ADJUSTMENT 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 

.00 429.33 

52300 HEALTH INSURANCE .OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

THERE IS A NOTE ASSOCIATED WITH THIS TRANSACTION 



SUNGARD PENTAMATION, INC. 
DATE: 04/20/2012 
TIME: 14:05:33 

SELBCTION CRITERIA: 1=1 expledgr.key-orgtl='0226' 
ACCOUNTING PERIODS: 4/12 THRU 6/12 

SORTED BY: FLTND,FUNCTION,ACTIVITY,TOTL/DEPT,ACCOUNT 

TOTALED ON: FUND,MTL/DEPT 

FUND - 001 - OENERAL FUND 
FD/DEPT - 0226 - EMPA/BASE GRANT10/1-6/30 

TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
EXPWDITURB AUDIT TRAIL 

ACCOUNT 
DATE T/C ENCUMBRANC REFERENCE VENWR 

52300 HEATATH INSURANCE (c0nt' d )  
01/17/12 25-4 20120044 
02/23/12 22-5 
03/21/12 22-6 

TOTAL HEALTH INSURANCE 

52320 LIFE INSURANCE 
01/17/12 25-4 
02/23/12 22-5 
03/21/12 22-6 

TOTAL LIFE INSURANCE 

52400 WORKERS' COMPENSATION 
03/31/12 19-6 20120252 

TOT= WORKERS' COMPENSATION 

- 
BUDGBT 

52500 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION . 00 
TOTAL UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION .OO 

53401 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 2,329.00 
01/03/12 21-4 5684 TYCO INTERNATION 
02/20/12 19-5 - 

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 2.329.00 

PAGE NUMBER: 2 
AUDIT21 

CUMULATIVE 
EXPENDITURES' ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION BALANCE 

SALARY ADJUSTMENT 
216.39 PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINOE 
216.39 PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
4 3 2 . 7 ~ ~  .OO 1,767.22 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 
SALARY ADJUSTMENT 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 
PAYROLL CHARGES-FRINGE 

.OO 10.42 

-00 .OO BEGINNING BALANCE 
92.83 W/COMP QTR 3/31/12 
92.83/ .OD 10.17 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo 

. 00 BEGINNING BALANCE 

.OO EMERGENCY MRNAGEMENT 
BG CK SPRADLEY 12/20 

.OO 962.76 

54000 TRAVEL & PER DIEM 1,155.00 .OO .OO BEGINNING BALANCE 
01/17/12 21-4 45876- 5793 HILTON DAYTONA B 556.00s .OO DUSTIN HINKEL 2/6-2/9 
03/05/12 21-6 44119 ' 6419 DUSTIN HINKEL 192.000 .OO REIMB.T&A EXP.2/6-10 
03/20/12 21-6 SPRADLEY/6NI 6027 HILTON FORT LAUD -834.00 .00 STEPH.SPRADLEY5/12-17 
03/20/12 21-6 44222 6027 HILTON FORT LAm 695.00C .OO STEPH.SPRADLEY5/13-17 
03/20/12 21-6 SPRADLcEY/6NI 6027 HILTON FORT LAUD 834.00 .OO STEPH.SPRADLEY5/12-17 
03/30/12 25-6 20120094 1,000.00 PER DIE?4 FIX 

T O T a  TRAVEL & PER DIEM 2,155.00 1,443.00 .OO 712.00 

54100 COMMUNICATIONS 6,750.00 1,629.45 .OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

THERE IS A NOTE ASSOCIATED WITH THIS TRANSACTION 



SUNGARD PENTAMATION, INC . 
DATE: 04/20/2012 
TIME: 14:05:33 

SELECTION CRITERIA: 1-1 expledgr.key-orgn='0226' 
ACCOUNTING PERIODS: 4/12 THRU 6/12 

TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
EXPENDITURE AUDIT TRAIL 

SORTED BY: FUND,FUNCTION,ACTIVITY,TOTL/DEPT,ACCOUNT 

TOTALED ON: FUND,TOTL/DEPT 

PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND,TOTL/DEPT 

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND 
FD/DEPT - 0226 - EMPA/BASE GRANT10/1-6/30 
ACCOUNT 

DATE T/C ENCUMBRANC REFERENCE VENDOR BUDGET 

54100 COMMUNICATIONS Icont'd) 
01/12/12 21-4 43819 000112 660 - PAIRPOINT 
01/12/12 21-4 43819 000112 660 - PAIRPOINT 
01/12/12 21-4 43827 5643 COMCAST OF TALLA 
01/12/12 21-4 43833 003534 LIQHTSQUARED LP 
01/12/12 21-4 43847 6281 VERIZON WIRELESS 
01/12/12 21-4 43847 6281 WRIZON WIRELESS 
02/06/12 21-5 43964 003534 LIGHTSQUARED LP 
02/09/12 21-5 43995 000112 660 - FAIRPOINT 
02/09/12 21-5 43995 000112 660 - PAIRPOINT 
02/17/12 21-5 6689488447 6281 VERIZON WIRELESS 
02/21/12 21-5 44070 6281 VERIZON WIRELESS 
02/21/12 21-5 44070 6281 VERIZON WIRELESS 
02/21/12 21-5 6689488447 6281 VERIZON YYIRFLESS 
02/21/12 21-5 6689488447 6281 VERIZON WIRELESS 
03/05/12 21-6 44136 003534 LIGHTSQUARED LP 
03/05/12 21-6 44108 5643 COMCAST OF TALLA 
03/08/12 21-6 44174 5643 COMCAST OF TALLA 
03/08/12 21-6 44170 000112 660 - FAIRPOINT 
03/08/12 21-6 44170 000112 660 - FAIRPOINT 

TOTAL COMMUNICATIONS 6,750.00 

54 11 5 POSTAGE 
TOTAL POSTAGE 

54300 UTILITY SERVICES 
01/12/12 21-4 43837 
01/12/12 21-4 43826 
02/06/12 21-5 43979 
02/09/12 21-5 43 9 99 
03/08/12 21-6 44173 
03/08/12 21-6 44185 

TOTAL UTILITY SERVICES 

54401 RENT/LEASE-LAND/BLDGS 
TOTAL RENT~LEASE-LAND/BLD~S 

5,638.00 
000110 PROGRESS ENERGY 
000063 CITY OF PERRY 
000110 PROGRESS ENERGY 
000063 CITY OF PERRY 
000063 CITY OF PERRY 
000110 PROGRESS ENERGY 

5,638.00 

EXPENDITURES 

PAGE NUMBER: 3 
AUDIT21 

CUMULATIVE 
ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION BALANCE 

.OO EHERGENCY .WAGWENT 

.OO EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT - - - - - - - -- 

.0 0 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

.OO EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

.OO EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

.OO EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

.OO EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

.OO EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

..00 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

.0 0 EMPA 

.OO EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

.OO EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

. 00 EMPA 

.OO EMPA . - - - - . - - - 

.0 0 EMERGENCY MRUGEMENT 

.OO EXERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

.OO EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT ~~ -- - -  - ~- 

.00 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

.OO EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

.OO 3.510.03 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

. 00 .oo 

BEGINNING BALANCE 
591 E US HWY 27+EOC 
581 HWY 27 EAST 
591 E US HWY 27'EOC 
591 HWY 27 EAST 
591HWY 27 EAST 
591 E US HWY 27'EOC 

3.685.00 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo .oo 

THERE IS A NOTE ASSOCIATED WITH THIS TRANSACTION 



SUNGARD PENTAMATION, INC. 
DATE: 04/20/2012 
TIME: 14:05:33 

TAYLOR c o m n  BOARD OF CO~ISSIONERS 
EXPENDITURE AUDIT TRAIL 

PAGE NUMBER: 4 
AUDIT21 

SELECTION CRITERIA: 1=1 e~pledgr.key-orgn-'0226' 
ACCOUNTING PERIODS: 4/12 THRU 6/12 

SORTEII BY: FUND,FUNCTION,ACTIVITY,TOTL/DEPT,ACCOUNT 

TOTALED ON: FUND,TOTL/DEPT 

PAGE BREAKS ON: FUND,TOTL/DEPT 

mTND - 001 - GENERAL FUND 
FD/DEPT - 0226 - EMPA/BASE GRANT10/1-6/30 

ACCOUNT 
DATE T/C ENCUMBRANC FC3FERENCE VENDOR BUDGET EXPENDITURES 

CUMULATIVE 
ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION BALANCE 

54402 RENT/LEASE-EQUIPMENT (cont'd) 
54402 RENT/LEASE-EQUIPMENT 
TOTAL RENT/LEASE-EQUIPMENT 

00 BEGINNING BALANCE 
0 0 .oo 

54500 INSURANCE 3,205.00 
01/19/12 19-4 20120137 
01/19/12 19-4 20120139 
03/20/12 21-6 44216 000288 FLORIDA MUNICIPA 

TOTAL INSURANCE 3,205.00 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 
1ST QTR PROPERTY INS. 
2ND QTR PROPERTY INS. 

.OO EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

.OO -996.75 

54610 R&N BUILDINGS & GROUNDS 1,695.00 
03/21/12 17-6 20120666-03 004532 RUSSELL C. I(NIQH 
03/23/12 17-6 20120677-01 000112 660 - FAIRPOINT 

TOTAL R&M BUILDINGS & GROUNDS 1,695.00 

.OO BEGINNING BAtANCE 
60.00 BACK FLOW ASSEMBLY TESTIN 
150.00 REPAIRS TO EOC FIBER MND 
210 .oo 1,485.00 

54614 EXTERMINATION/PEST MNTRL 
01/03/12 21-4 43786 
01/17/12 21-4 43887 
02/21/12 21-5 44049 
03/20/lZ 21-6 44228 

MTAL EXTERMINATION/PEST CONTRL 

270.00 
003309 LIVE OAK PEST CO 
003309 LIVE OAK PEST CO 
003309 LIVE OAK PEST CO 
003309 LIVE OAK PEST CO 

270.00 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.OO GMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

.OO EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

.OO EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

.OO EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

.oo 120.00 

54620 RhM EQUIPMENT 
MTRt RhM EQUIPMENT 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.OO 3,104.00 

54630 RW OFFICE MACHINES/EQUIP .oo 
TOTAL RLM OFFICE MACHINES/EQUIP .oo 

.OO BEGINNING J3AIANCE 

.oo .oo 

54640 RLMAUTOMOBILE 
03/16/12 17-6 20120655-01 

TOTAL RLM AUTOMOBILE 

1,000.00 
000082 PERRY AUTO GUPPL 

1,000.00 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 
18.98 60020 WIPER BLADES FOR #5 
18.98 981.02 

54645 R&M AUTO - COUNTY LABOR 
MTAL R&M AUTO - COUNTY LABOR .OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo .oo 

* THERE IS A NOTE ASSOCIATED WITH THIS TRANSACTION 



SUNGARD PENTAMATION, INC . 
DATE : 04/20/2012 
TIME: 14:05:33 

TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
BXPENDITURE AUDIT TRAIL 

PAGE NUMBER: . 5 
AUDIT21 

SELECTION CRITERIA: 1=1 e~pledgr.key-orgn=~0226~ 
ACCOUNTING PERIODS: 4/12 THRU 6/12 

SORTED BY: FUND,FCINCTION,ACTIVITY,TOTL/DEPT,ACMW 

TOTALED ON : FUND, TOTL/DEPP 

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND 
FD/DEPT - 0226 - EMPA/BASE GRANT10/1-6/30 
ACCOUNT 

DATE T/C ENCUMBRANC REFERENCE VENDOR BUDGET . CUMULATIVE 
EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION BALANCE 

54901 OTHER NRREfJT CHGS (MISC) 
TOTAL OTHER CURRENT CHGS (MISC) 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo .oo 

54902 LEGAL ADVERTISING 
TOTAL LEG& ADVERTISING 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo 1,323.00 

54907 LICENSE/PERMIT/REGISTRAT 
TOTAL LICENSE/PERMIT/REOISTRAT 

.OO BEGINNING BRLANCE 

.oo .oo 

54910 DRUG TESTING 
TOTAL DRUG TESTING 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.OO 75.00 

55101 OFFICE SUPPLIES 
TOTAL OFFICE SUPPLIES 

.OO BEGINNING B W C E  

.OO 217 .OO 

55102 OFFC.EQUIP/FUKN.<$l,OOO 
TOTAL OFFC.EQUIP/FURN.c$l,OOO 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 
-00 5,649.00 

55103 EQUIPMENT c $1,000 
TOTAL EQUIPMENT c $1,000 

.OO BEGINNING BALdNCE 

.OO 4,100.00 

55110 OFFICE COPIER EXPENSE 1,075.00 
01/17/12 21-4 20120273-01 43911- 6509 TOSHIBA AMERICA 
01/17/12 21-4 20120273-01 43911- 6509 TOSHIBA AMERICA 
01/17/12 21-4 20120273-01 43911s 6509 TOSHIBA AMERICA 
01/17/12 21-4 20120273-01 43911. 650'9 MSHIBA AMERICA 

TOTAL OFFICE COPIER EXPENSE 1,075.00 

.OO 1,050.00 BEGINNING B W C E  
168.32" -168.32 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
275.94- -275.94 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
- 3 3 3 . 0 4 ~  333.04 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

-2.73 r 2 .73 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
108.49. 941.51 25 .OO 

55201 GEN. OPERATING SUPPLIES 433.00 

THERE IS A NOTE ASSOCIATED WITH THIS TRANSACTION 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 



SUNGARD PENTAMATION, INC . 
DATE: 04/20/2012 TAYLOR COUNTY BOOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TIEIE: 14 : 05 : 33 EXPENDITURE AUDIT TRAIL 

PAGE NUMBER: 6 
AUDIT21 

SELBLTION CRITERIA: 1=1 e~pledgr.;tey-orgn=~0226~ 
ACCOUNTING PERIODS: 4/12 THRU 6/12 

FUM) - 001 - GENERAL FUND 
FD/DEPT - 0226 - EMPA/BASE GRANT10/1-6/30 

ACCOUNT 
DATE T/C BNCUMBRANC REFERENCE VENDOR BUDGET 

CUMULATIVE 
ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION BALANCE EXPENDITURES 

55201 GEN. OPERATING SUPPLIES (cont'd) 
01/11/12 19-4 IOlllOOl 
01/25/12 19-4 10125001 
02/09/12 19-5 10209001 
02/23/12 19-5 10223001 . 

TOTAL GEN. OPERATING SUPPLIES 

- INVENTORY BILLING 
INVENTORY BILLING 
I NVENTORY BILLING 
INVENTORY BILLING 

.OO 330.16 

55202 SAFETYPRODU~S/SUPPLIES 
TOTAL SAFETY PRODUCTS/SUPPLIES 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.OO 375.00 

55210 PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 3,175.00 
02/02/12 19-5 I0202001 
02/29/12 19-5 I0308001 
03/05/12 21-6 44106 000065 CHEVXON AND TEXA 
03/31/12 19-6 I0405001 

TOTAL PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 3,175.00 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 
INVENTORY BILLING 
INVENTORY BILLING 

.OO TAY.C0.#789-869-795-3 
INVENTORY BILLING 

.OO 2,794.17 

55220 TOOLS & IMPLEMFNTS 
TOTAL TOOLS & IMPLEMENTS 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo 500 .oo 

5 5 23 0 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 
TOTAL COMPUTER SOFTWARE 

.OO BEGINNING BRLANCE 
-00 .OD 

55250 UNIFORMS 
TOTAL UNIFORMS 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo 500.00 

55401 BOOK/PUBL/SUB/MEMB/TRAIN. 1,000.00 
01/09/12 17-4 20120378-01 5689 LABOR LAW C ~ T E R  
01/17/12 21-4 43870 002144 FEPA, INC. 
02/06/12 21-5 2012MEM.DUES 002144 FEPA, INC. 
02/06/12 21-5 2012MEM.DUF.S 002144 FEPA, INC. 
02/06/12 21-5 2012MEM.DUES 002144 FEPA, INC. 
02/06/12 21-5 43952 002144 FEPA, INC. 
02/06/12 21-5 2012MEM.DUES 002144 PEPA, INC. 

.OO BEGINNING B A W C E  
29.95 LABOR LAW POSTER 

.OO '12DUES/DUSTIN HINKEL 

.oo ' 

.OO 'lZDUES/STEP.SPRADLEY 

.OO '12DUES/STEP.SPRADLEY 

.OO '12DUES/STEP.SPRADLEY 

.oo ' 

* THERE IS A NOTE ASSOCIATED WITH THIS TRANSACTION 



SUNGARD PENTANATION, INC. 
DATE: 04/20/2012 
TIME: 14:05:33 

TAYWR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
EXPENDITURE AUDIT TFAIL 

PAGE NUMBER: 7 
AUDIT21 

SELECTION CRITERIA: 1=1 expledgr.key_orgn='0226' 
ACCOUNTING PERIODS: 4/12 THRU 6/12 

FUND - 001 - GENBRAL FUND 
FD/DEPT - 0226 - EMPA/BASE GRANT10/1-6/30 
ACCOUNT 

DATE T/C ENCEUBRRNC REFERENCE VENDOR BUDGET 
CUMUIATIVE 

ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION BALANCE 

55401 BoOK/PUBL/SUB/MGHB/TRAIN. (cont'd) 
02/06/12 21-5 20120378-01 43963 5689 LABOR LAW CENTER 
03/20/12 21-6 44219 002479 GOVERNOR'S W I  

TOTAL BOOK/PUBL/SUB/MEMB/TRnIN. 1,000.00 

-29.95 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
.oo REGI/STEPHEN SPRADLEY 
.OO 230.05 

55900 DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 
TOTAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 
-00 , .oo 

56200 CAPITAL OUTLAY-BUILDINGS 
01/17/12 25-4 20120044 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY-BUILDINGS 

56300 CAPITAL/INFRASTRUCTURE 
01/20/12 25-4 20120050 
01/26/12 17-4 20120448-01 
01/26/12 17-4 20120448-02 
01/26/12 17-4 20120448-03 
01/26/12 17-4 20120448-04 
01/26/12 17-4 20120448-05 
01/26/12 17-4 20120448-06 
01/26/12 17-4 20120448-07 
01/26/12 17-4 20120448-08 
01/26/12 17-4 20120448-09 

TOTAL CAPITAL/INF~STRUCTURE 

-00 BEGINNING BALANCE 
SALARY ADJUSTMENT 

-00 3,771.00 

2,250 .OO 
13,000.00 

000112 660 - FAIRPOINT 
000112 660 - FAIRPOINT 
000112 660 - FAIRWINT 
000112 660 - FAIRPOINT 
000112 660 - FAIRWINT 
000112 660 - FAIRWINT 
000112 660 - FAIRWINT 
000112 660 - FAIRWINT 
000112 660 - FAIRPOINT 

15.250.00 

-00 BEGINNING BALANCE 
FIBER 

830.77 
1,615.38 JUNCTION BOX 

769.23 SPLICE BOX WM-O4P 
5,243.08 HOl 
1,653.85 24 STRAND S.M. CABLE UP T 
3,249.23 SINGLE MODE CONNECTORS 

692.31 PULL STRINGS 
346.15 2" CONDUIT 
548.62 6 PAIR BLOCKS CCH-CPO6-3C 

14,948.62 301.38 

56400 CAPITAL OUTLAY-EQUIPMENT 
01/20/12 25-4 20120050 
03/30/12 25-6 20120094 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY-EQUIPMENT 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 
FIBER 
PER DIEM FIX 

.oo 15,975.00 

56401 CAPITAL OUTLAY-VEHICLES 
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY-VEHICLES 

.OO BEGINNING BALANCE 

.oo .oo 

56402 CAPITAL OUTLRY/SOFTWARE 9,000 -00 00 BEGINNING BALANCE 

* THERE IS A NOTE ASSOCIATED WITH THIS TRANSACTION 



SUNGARD PENTAMATION, 
DATE: 04/20/2012 
TIME: 14:05:33 

INC. 
TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

EXPEM)ITLTRE AUDIT TRAIL 

SELECTION CRITERIA: 1=1 expledgr.key-orgn='0226' 
ACCOUNTING PERIODS: 4/12 TKRU 6/12 

PAGE BPEAKS ON: FUND,TOTL/DEPT 

FUND - 0 0 1  - GENERAL FUND 
FD/DEPT - 0226 - EMPA/BASE GRRNT10/1-6/30 
ACCOUNT 

DATE T/c ENCUMBRANC REFERENCE VENDOR 

56402 CAPITAL OUTLAY/SOFTWARE (cont'dl 
01/17/12 25-4 20120044 

"TAL CAPITAL OUTLAY/SOFTWARE 

TOTAL ToTL/DEPT - EMPA BASE GRANT 10/1-6/30 

TOTAL FUND - GENERAL PLTND 

TOTAL REPORT 

PAGE NUMBER: 8 
AUDIT21 

CUMULATIVE 
BUDGET EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION BALANCE 

SALARY ADJUSTMENT 
0 0 .oo 

* THERE IS A NOTE ASSOCIATED WITH THIS TRANSACTION 



- 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS VENDOR NO. 002144 

1 
CHECK NO. 43 952 

CHECK DATE CHECK NO. 

AccowU 
0226 55401 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 02/06/12 43952 
TAYLOR COUNTY, FL 
P.O. BOX 620 
PERRY. FL 32348 
GENERAL FUND WACHOVLA BANK, N.A. 

PERRY, m- 32347 ~yz,!? ,, AMOUNT I $ * * * * * * * ? ~ . o o *  I 
VOID AFTER 180 DAYS 

f i ~  THE SUM OF * * **  * * * *75* DOLLARS AND *NO* CENTS GENERAL FIJND 

TO THE 
FEPA, INC. 
400 CAPITAL CIRCLE SE, SUITE 18-263 

QIXl44 FEPA. INC. 

Purchose Order 

- . . - - . . 
OF TALLAHASSEE FL 32301 

** NON-NEGOTIABLE ** 

Invoice Number 
2012MEM.DUES 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
TAYLOR COUNTY, FL 
PO BOX 620 
PERRY, FL 32348 

CHAIR 

-w** 

Amuunr 
75.00 

- 

m1YasEP3Hdn66iy 
CLERK 

Descriprion 
'~ZDUES/STEP.SPRADLEY 

FEPA, INC. 
400 CAPITAL CIRCLE SE, SUITE 18-263 
TALLAHASSEE FL 32301 
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b d 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS VENDOR NO. 6509 CHECK N O .  43911 

W TOSHlRA AMERICA B U 3 l N E S  SOLUTIONS 

Account 
0226 55110 
0226 55110 
0226 55110 
0226 55110 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
TAYLOR COUNTY, FL 
P.O. BOX 620 

CHECK DATE CHECK NO. 

01/17/12 43911 

Purchase Order 
20120273 
20120273 
20120273 
20120273 

TO THE 
TOSHIBA AMERICA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

ORDER 
DBA ELECTRONIC IMAGING DIVISION 

OF 2 MUSICK 
IRVINE CA 92618 

Invoice Number 
1986522 CR. 
1986523 C R .  
1986524AU-SE 
1987126/1ST 

PERRY, FL 32348 
GENERAL FUND WACHOVJA BANK, N.A. 

** NON-NEGOTIABLE ** 

PERRY, FL 32347 63.26% AMOUNT 
-- 
W783 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
TAYLOR COUNTY, PL 
PO BOX 620 
PERRY, FL 32348 

Amount 
-2.73 

-333.04 
168.32 
275.94 

$ ******108.49* 

J\ ., - 

'weh- CLERK 

Description 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
EMERGENCY MANAGWENT 
MERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

VOID AETER 1 8 0  DAYS 

h Y  THE SUM OF *** ***108* DOLLARS AND * 4 9 *  CENTS GENERAL FUND 

TOSHIBA AMERICA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 
DBA ELECTRONIC IMAGING DIVISION 
2 MUSICK 
IRVINE CA 92618 



I u a n r m n  - 
KI,EC'TRO~NIC IMAGING DlVISION 
2 ~ u s i c k  
h i n c  CA 9261 8 SERVICE BLLLMC 

-. - - DOCUMENT DATE 12/20/11 
DOCUMENT NO. 1986524 

MASTER FSM 249941111L22 FT, SPCL CONT; 36M I.lCJ 
SlATE 01' TT,ORIDA IHI, - FSM EX C'IJST PO: 20 120273 
P 0 BOX 620 
'I'AYLOR COUNTY C:UST PO tXP 0713 3 (20 14 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS BILI.MG PERIOI) 08~01120 1 I - 09130120 1 1 
PERRY. PI. 32348 
This month's details 

Allowed Begin End Base/CPC Excess 1 
- Model Serlal Number Copies ~ G e r  Meter Usape Excess Charge Cbarce Tox Total 

ESllJDI025SSt SCNEI 61069 0 55 305 250 0 I.RO 0.00 0.00 1.80 
301 IXDUSTRIAL PARK DRIVF., TAYLORCOUNTY ECC. EMERGESCY MAUAGEHEKT, PERK\',FL,3234 CONTHnC'I'# 150151 
BW RENT 09.00/201 I - Cost oer cum: 0,00721 Exccss cost ~a coov: 0 LOCt: 

ES1'UD10255SE SCNE161069 Sewice Ltcm 1 66.52 0.00 0.00 166.52 
301 INDIJS'JTUAL PARK 1)KIVE. TAYLOR COUNTY ECC, tMERGEYCY MANAGEMEN'I: PERRY,F.'L,3234 CON'ITZACW 150 15 1 

08/01/11 LOC# 
-.--------------------.-----.--------.------------..---------*---..---------------. .---------.. ....*-.----..-..-.-------...----.----.---- 
TOTALS $168.32 SO.OO $0.00 
PEW 33-0865305-005 Billing Questions all (HO0)RM-436 1 Opt.5 P a y m t  Questions rs l l  (ROO)R66d3GI cxt.6424 

APPROVED FOR PAYMENT 

. . * .  
INCLUDES PARTS, I.Al3OR AND SZPP 

.. . , 

I _  ' I ' 

. . 

> .  ' / 
I R  !say he cm~tn,llcd under Ihe I l  S. Gxpurl Adm~nralrnl~ou He@hfinn% nnd may be nuhjec(m tk awrnrml o f  the US 
uu. directly 01 i t~di~ecuy.  In conlravcnlim ofthe ILS. Lxporl Admnislraliun Hepulnf~ons Isprol:lhltcd. . . . . ,  j 



i u a n r c r r r  
Ei.EC1'KONIC IMAGINCi DIVISION 

- 
2 Musick 
lrvine C A  926 1 8 SERVICE BILI,rN(; 

.7 
DOCUMENT DATE 12/29/11 
DOCTJMENJ' NO. 1987 126 

MASTER FSM 249Y4lIHL22 FL SPCL, CONF 36M LIC 
STAT'E OF FL0RIT)A I 1  iL - FSM EX CXYI' 1'0: 20 120273 
P 0 BOX 620 
TAYLOR COUNTY CUS'1' PO EXP 07/3 1/20] 4 
BOARD OF COUN'I'Y COMMISSIONERS SlLJ,lN(i PEKIOD 10!01!20 1 1 - 1213 11201 I 
PERRY. FL 32348 
This month's details 

Mowed Beein End B d C P C  Excess 1 
Model Serial Number Copies ~ e t e r  Meter Usage Excess Charge Charge Tax Total 
ESllJDlO255SE SCNt 16 1060 Sewicc Item 249.78 0.00 O.Ofl 24Y.7R 

301 lNDIJSTKIAL PARK DRIVE, TAYLOR COUNTY ECX:, EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT. PEKRY,F1..3234 CONI~[blCT# 150 15 1 
i?/3 1/20 l 1 LWP 

ESTUD10255SE SCNE16 1069 0 305 3933 3628 0 26. l fi 0.00 0.00 26.16 
301 INDUS'I'KI AL PARK DRIVE, TAYLOR COIhrY ECC, EMtKGENCY MANAGEMENT. PEKKY,FL,3234 CONTRAC'I'# 1 SO1 5 1 
BWRENT I li30/2011 Cost LRX oow: 0.0072 1 Excess cost ~ e r  c o ~ v :  0 LOC# 

TOTALS $275.94 .!iO.OO S0.00 
VEIN 33-0865305-01)s rill in^ Questions call (SOO)Rb6-4361 Opt.5 Pajmcnt Questions call (800)866-4361 ~ 1 , 6 4 2 4  

'l'ax : 

PAY THIS AMOUNT 
f 

* Denotes estimated meter reads. 

I prior 10 CrFOrt Any cxpon or rr-cxpon by Ihe putdrdscr. directly ur ~ndircctly. i n  conlmvrnlinn of )he U S. lxporl Adrnin~bhalion Rcwkt~ors  is prohih~tcd. 1 

Ad1 wtmcnls: $0.00 
Billcd This Month: 5275.94 

Commcnts 
Contract Durtition 08iOI12011 to 0713 li2014 
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ELECTRONIC IMAGING OIVI SION- 
2 Musick 
Irvine CA 92618 

- 
PAGE 1 o f  1 
DOCUMENT D A T E  12 /28 /11  
DOCUMENT NO. 1986522 

SERVICE B I L L I N G  

- - 
MASTER FSM: 24994/ IHL22 F L  SPCL CONF 36M L I C  

~ ~ , ~ ~ ~ I I ~ I ~ I ~ ~ ~ I ~ ~ I I I ~ I I I I ~ I I I I I I I I I I I ~ , ~ ~ ! I B ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ I I ~ ~ ~ I ~ ~ ~  CUST P O .  . :  20111460 - 
STATE OF FLORIDA I H L  - FSM EX 
P 0 BOX 6 2 0  GUST PO E X P  07/31/2014 
TAYLOR COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS B I L L I N G  PERIOD: - 

PERRY. F L  32348-0620 
03000m9 7 309 

This month's details 

A l l w e d  Begin End Bass/CPC Excess 
WUel Serial HunSer Coples Meter Meter Usage Excess Char* C h a r s  Tax Tot el 
E S T l J n I 0 2 5 5 S E  SCNE161069 9 0 0 - 0 . 9 2  0 . 0 0  0 0 0  - 0 . 9 2  

301 I N D U S T R I A L  PARK D R I V E .  TAYLOR COUNTY ECC. EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT. P E R R Y . F L . 3 2 3 4 7  
CPC: 0 Excess CPC 0 Con#: 1 5 0 1 5 1  L o c P .  

ESTUDI0255SE SCNE161069 0 0 0 -0 .89 0.00 0.00 -0.89 
301 I N D U S T R I A L  PARK D R I V E .  TAYLOR COUNTY ECC, EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT. P E R R Y , F L , 3 2 3 4 7  

CPC: 0 Excess CPC: 0 con#: 150151 ~ o c # .  
ESTUDIO255SE S C N E t 6 1 0 6 9  0 0 0 - 0 . 9 2  0 . 0 0  0 00 - 0 . 9 2  

3 0 1  I N D U S T R I A L  PARK D R I V E ,  TAYLOR COUNTY ECC. EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT, P E R R Y . F L . 3 2 3 4 7  
CPC 0 Excess CPC: 0 c o n e :  1 5 0 f 5 1  LOCU:  

- - - - - - - - - * - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - " - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - + - - - - " - - - - - - - " - - - - - - - - - - - - " - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

TOTALS f - 2 . 7 3  $0.00 '60.00 
FEIN 3 3 - 0 8 6 5 3 0 5 - 0 0 5  E i t l l n g  Questions call ( 8 0 0 ) 8 6 6 - 4 3 6 t  O p t . 5  Payment Questions cat3 (8 

J 
* Denotes estimated meter reads. 

I Comments 1 Adjustments: 
B i l l e a  T h i s  M o n t h :  

Tax  : 

CREDIT AMOUNT 

Contrac t  D u r a t ~ o n  08/01/2011 t o  07/31/2014 
INCLUDES PARTS.  LABOR w SUFPLIES.. 
PAPER. FOR 5 - 5 STANDARD WORK WEEK 

- 
This sale concerns producls, andfor technicsl dala that may w conlrolkd under the U.S. Export Adminlslration Reeulalions and may be dsbjecl tolheapprovu! 01 Uy US, '" '" 

CQmmerce prior lo export. Any wporl or reexporl by purchaser, direclly or indlrrclly, in co#,lreverrlion o l  the V.S. Export Admbblrolionae~ulation Is p a h f l m e n r  O' 

90. 00 
8-2.73 
90.00 , 

5-2.73 

I J . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  DETACH HERF - - - - - - - - - - 



BOARD OF COURITY COMMlSSlONERS 
PO BOX 620 

PUi?Ct+E ORDER NO. 2 ~ 1 2 ~ 2 . :  ; 

PAGZ KO. 1 

Silbmit original invoice to  the above address 

v r 6 5 0 9  FLY : 8 5 0 - 2 2 2 - 3 6 8;-i r EMERGZNCY M ~ ~ - G E M E N T  
E TOSHIBA .WIERICTL BUSINESS SOLU'TIONS 1 301 INDUSTRZAL PARK E X I V E  

1 
C3A ELECTRONIC IYAGING DIVISION .. P 

J TL 
PERRY, FL. 3 2 3 4 7  

O ATTN: 



CHECK DATE CHECK NO. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 03/08/12 44170 
TAYU)R COUNTY, FL 
P.O. BOX 620 
PERRY. FL 32348 
GENERAL FUND WACHOVIA BANK. N.A. 

PERRY. a 32347 
AMOUNT /$****3,611.52* 1 

VOID AFTER 180 DAYS 

h Y  THE SUM OF ******3611* DOLLARS AND *52* CENTS GENERAL FUND 

b 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS VENDOR NO. 000112 CHECK NO. 44170 

r j  

660 - FAIRPOINT COMMUNICATIONS 
TO THE 

ORDER 
P.O. BOX 580028 

OF CHARLOTTE NC 28258-0028 

** NON-NEGOTIABLE ** 

Descriotion 
EXTENSION OFFICE 
COUNTY JUDGES FAXLINE 
GRRnTS ADMINISTRATION 
RECYCLING BUILDING 
PROJECT W A G E R  
BERNARD JOHNSON ROLL0 
HWY98 & SR14 ROLLOFF 
COURTHOUSE PAYPHONE 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
TAYLOR COUNTY, FL 
PO BOX 620 
PERRY, FL 32348 

600112 W - FAIRPOIKT COMMUNICATIONS 

Accounr 
0283 54100 
0719 54100 
0114 54100 
0261 54100 
0171 54100 
0261 54100 
0261 54100 
0160 54100 

/ - CHAIR 

Invorce Number 
838-3546 MAR 
838-3548 MAR 
838-3553 MAR 
838-3562 MAR 
838-3564 MAR 
838-3573 MAX 
838-3574 MAR 
838-3815 MAR 

Purchase Order 

acA@-qkw 
CLERK 

Amount 
27.52 
34.60 
60.89 
20.85 

124.07 
18.35 
18.35 
34.26 

660 - FAlRPOINT COMMUNICATIONS 
P.O. BOX 580028 
CHARLOTTE NC 28258-0028 



L 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS VENDOR NO. 000112  CHECK NO. 44169 

000112 bb0 - FAlRWlM COMMUNICATIONS 

Accou~  
0719 54100  
0431  54100  
0350 54100  
0431  54100  
0500 54100  
0601 54100  
0601 54100  
0192 54100  
0250 54100 
0500 54100  
0111 54100 
0118 54100 
0260 54 1 0 0  
0261 54100 
0261 54100  
0261 54100  
0261 54100 
0261 54100  
0260 54100 
0277 54100 
0431 54100 

V V 0 0  I D D 
TO THE 
ORDER 

V V 0 0  I D D  

OF V 0000 I DDD 

Purchase Order 

CHECK DATE 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 03108112 
TAYLOR COUNTY, FL 
P.O. BOX 620 
PERRY. n 32348 
GENERAL FUND WACHOVIA RANK. N.A. 

** NON-NEGOTIABLE ** 

PERRY'm.32347 
A M O W  

00783 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
TAYLOR COUNTY, FL 
PO BOX 620 
PERRY, FL 32348 

Invoire Number 
8 3 8 - 3 5 1 0  MAR 
838-3512  MAR 
8 3 8 - 3 5 1 3  MAR 
838-3514  MAR 
8 3 8 - 3 5 1 9  MAR 
8 3 8 - 3 5 2 0  MAR 
8 3 8 - 3 5 2 1  MAR 
8 3 8 - 3 5 2 2  MAR 
838-3525  MAR 
838-3526  MAR 
8 3 8 - 3 5 3 1  MAR 
030-3532  MAR 
838-3533  MAR 
8 3 8 - 3 5 3 3  MAR 
838-3534  MAR 
8 3 8 - 3 5 3 5  MAR 
8 3 6 - 3 5 3 6  MAR 
838-3537  MAR 
838-3538  MAR 
8 3 8 - 3 5 3 9  MAR 
8 3 8 - 3 5 4 4  MAR 

$ f f * * * ~ * * ~ , O O ' k  

V V 0 0  I D D  
V V 0 0  I D D  
V 0000 I DDD 

VOID AFTER 180 DAYS 

THE SUM OF *********O* DOLLARS AND *NO* CENTS GENERAL FUND 

CLERK 

Amunr 
9 2 . 1 5  

1 9 1 . 2 0  
1 2 7 . 8 7  

6 7 . 2 6  
1 2 7 . 7 0  

4 8 . 0 5  
36 85 

1 4 2 . 3 8  
1 3 4 . 0 5  

3 5 . 6 0  
1 9 . 0 1  
4 7 . 4 6  
5 6 . 4 0  
5 6 . 4 1  
3 5 . 6 0  
20 .85  
1 8 . 3 5  
1 8 . 3 5  
1 9 . 4 7  
3 5 . 6 0  
3 4 . 6 0  

Descrr~iiun 
COUNTY JUDGES O F F I C E  
PUBLIC LIBRARY 
VETERAN' S SERVICES 
PIJBLIC LIBRARY FAX 
AIRPORT MANAGER 
C I R C U I T  COURT JUDGE 
CIR.COURT JUDGE FAX 
F I R E  DEPARTMENT 
ANIMAL CONTROL 
WEATHER/ PERRY FOLEY A 
HUMAN RESOURCES 
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT 
RECYCLING FACILITY 
S O L I D  WASTE F A C I L I T Y  
CARLTON ROLLOFP SI'iT 
SHADY GROVE ROLLOFP 
SALEM ROLLOFF SITE 
HARRISON BLUE ROLLOFF 
RECYCLING BUILDING 
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICE 
PUB.LIBRARY DIRECTOR 



L 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS VENWR NO. 000112 CHECK NO. 44168 

4: 

059-2740 MAR 
059-2740 MAR 
059-3254 MAR 

Arcout# I Purchase Order I Invoice Numbrr 

059-5579 MAR 
059-5580 MAR 
578-2537 MAR 
578-2945 MAR 
584-2309 MAR 
584-3031 MAR 
584-3031 MAR 
838-1642 MAR 
838-2008 MAR 
838-2010 MAR 
838-2097 MAR 
838-3071 MAR 
838-3498 MAR 
838-3500 MAR 
838-3502 MAR 
838-3508 M A R  
838-3509 MAR 

0226 54100 1 1 059-2549 MAR 1 76.00 I EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

Amounr 

455.27 I INPORM.TECHNOLOGY/MIS 
117.74 TAYLOR CO.AOM.COMPLEX 
10.50 TAYLOR CO.ADM.COMPLEX I 

Description 

BOARD LOCAL CKT 
PURCHASING LOCAL CXT 

30.86 STEINHATCHEE ROLLOFF 
34.05 BLUE SPRINGS LAKESITE 
99.28 FIRE RESCUE FAX LINE 
52.40 SPORTS~COMPLEX/OPERAT 
52.39 SPORTS COMPLEX/CONCES 

338.77 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
34.80 COURTHOUSE ELEVATOR 
34.80 COURTHOUSE ELEVATOR 
29.36 HUMAN RESOURCES 
36.50 AIRPORT FUEL SYSTEM 
34.80 BUILDING DEPARTMENT 

257.60 TAYLOR CO.AOM.COMPLEX 
18.85 AIRPORT MANAGER/PAX 

122.84 EXTENSION OFFICE 

CHECK DATE 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 03/08/12 
TAYLOR COUNTY, FL 
P.O. BOX 620 
PERRY, n 32348 
GENERAL FUND H'ACHOVIA BANK. N.A.  

pgllPY'nuw7 
AMOUNT l $ * * * * * * * * O .  m 3  

VOID AFTER 180 DAYS 

h Y  THE SUM OF *********O* DOLLARS PdJD *NO* CENTS GENERAL FUND 

v v 0 0  I 
TO THE 

D D 

ORDER V V 0 0 I D D 
OF V 0000 I DDD 

** NON-NEGOTIABLE ** 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
TAYLOR COUNTY, FL 
PO BOX 620 
PERRY, FL 32348 

** 
CHAIR 

o*ml9-* 
CLERK 

V V  0 0  I D D 
V V 0 0 I D D  
V 0000 I DDD 



Bill Dale: March 1.2012 Page 1 
Account Number: 0020027964 

b ~ p e c i a l  circuit: 8500502549 - 0013Q6A0660 . . c;6kmunications~~~ 

660 FAIRPOINT COMMUNICATIONS 
30 E MAIN ST 
WESTFIELD NY 14787 

Visit us on the web 
www.fairpoint.com 

For Customer Service, call 1-800-400-5568 

Account Number: 0020027964 
Account Name: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
Bill Date: March 1,2012 
Due Date: March 16,2012 

Last Month 
Balance from last statement 
Payment Received 02/15/2012 

Thank You Balance 

This Month 
Special Circuit Charges 
Current Charges 

Total Amount Due 



F a ~ n  Account Bi l l  Date: Number: 

Pant * special Circuit: 
c6rnmunications~~ 

March 1. 2012 
0020027964 
8500592549 w 

Page 3 

001396 A0660 

Special circuit ID. 
1500592549 WARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Monthly Charges 03/01/12 -03131112 
Senrice ply Amount Total 

Chargfs b r  0.3..01~1.?.03 71 12 . I ,'lONTH 
Local Channel. 2435 Voice Gldde 2 58.00 :600 

Subtotal Monthly Charges $76.00 

The SpcMI Cfrcuil charps sfw~vn - ~ ~ D I F  are king bilktl on hrblfolfifi~7 
FAl.SP9IMT C O ~ ~ ~ U h ' l C . 4  TICN.9 I - 800- 4?3- 5-558 

1 Bill Charges and Payments 

, Your relephone bill may include the following service charges: 

BASIC SERVICE . Includes local telephone servlce. dial lone I~ne. 
associared services and inslallation charges. 

OPTIONAL SERVICE - Does not include BASIC SERVICE 01 TOLL, bul does 
include all olher recurring monthly charges. 

TOLL - !zcludcs IKTRASTATE or IKERSTATF long distancc xrvi:es. You 
may have one or m r e  carriers lhat provide you these wrvices. 

Past Cunent Tolal 
Due Chgs Chgr 

Bauc Sclvlcr Charges 0 00 ' 0.00 000 
Opl~onal Charges 0 00 76.00 76 00 
loll C b ~ g c r  0 00 0 00 000 

lolalr $0.00 $76.00 $76.00 

- Non-gymenl of past due BASIC SERVICE chargea may result in 
disconneclion of your local lelephone service Failure to pay the 
OPTICNALand TOLL charges will resull in cancellation of OPTlONAl 
services and the loss or access to your TOLL pioviderls~ Your local 
l ~ l ~ p h o n e  service will NOT be disconnecled for non.paymenl of 
OPTIONAL service or TOLL. 

Your paynienl was opplied in Ihe lollowing manner: 

Basic Service Paynlenl 
Optional Selvice Payment 
Toll Paymtnl 

Total Payment 



ZTOZ '91 Y2JPW :a)ea ana 
ZIOZ 'I WJQW :alga 111a 
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TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Count Commission A enda Item 

SUBJECTffITLE: Board to review and approve grant application to the Florida 
Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Division of 
Forestry (DOF), Volunteer Fire Assistance Grant Program. 

MEETING DATE REQUESTED: 


Statement of Issue: The above referenced agency has limited funds available 
through the Volunteer Fire Assistance Grant Program to 
provide communications equipment to volunteer 
firefighters in rural areas. Staff is requesting Board to 
waiver public hearings and approve grant application 
requesting funding assistance for the purchase of SLERS 
radios and equipment for the volunteer firefighters. Costs 
also include radio programming services. 

Recommended Action: 	 Board to approve grant application to the DaF Volunteer 
Fire Assistance Grant Program. 

Fiscal Impact: Each radio has a cost of $2,289.96 which includes equipment and 
programming. The grant application requests funding assistance to purchase 
ten (10) radios which has a cost of $22,899.60. The County is requesting 
funding assistance in the amount of $11,449.80. The county will be required 
to provide a match of $11,449.80. 

Budgeted Expense: See Item No. 21 on the May 1, 2012 BaCC Agenda. 

Submitted By: Melody Cox 

Contact: Melody Cox 

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL I ISSUE ANALYSIS 

History, Facts & Issues: 	DaF has indicated a limited amount of funding is currently 
available to provide assistance to purchase radio 
communications equipment for volunteer firefighters in 
rural areas. The County has been successful in the past 
obtaining funding assistance through this program. If the 
County is successful with this grant application, we will 
have time to expend the requested funds, close out the 
grant, and submit a second application for any additional 

http:11,449.80
http:11,449.80
http:22,899.60
http:2,289.96


- -

- - -

Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services 
Florida Fores! Service 

ADAM H. PUTNAM VOLUNTEER FIRE ASSISTANCE GRANT APPLICATION 
COMMISIONER 

LEGAL NAME Taylor Co. Board 

ADDRESS 
201 E. Green Street 

of Commissioners FORM OF ORGANIZATION : (Municipal, Fire District. Non-Profit, County) 

County 

CITY 

STATE 

Perry 

FL ZIP 32347 

IF COUNTY. LIST VFD'S BENEFITING FROM GRANT: 

Steinhatchee and K e aton Beach VFD's 

COUNTY Taylor COUNTY # 

EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (EIN) 

15 
19 - 16 1 0 01 0 181 7 191 

IS FIRE DEPARTMENT LOCATED IN AN INCORPORATED TOWN? 
WHAT IS THE FIRE DEPARTMENT ISO RATING? I 9 

YES 0 NO IXJ IF YES, NAME OF TOWN : I 
POPULATION OF TOWN: I 
PROTECTED AREA: EST. POPULA TION:r SIZE. (SQ. MILES) I 

8,000 600 

NUM8ER OF FIREFIGHTERS: PAID·rrr- VOLUNTEERS: [33 

NO. OF INCIDENTS PAST YEAR: WILDLAND FIRE. fl33 OTHER. [405 
NO. OF FIREFIGHTERS CERTIFIED AS: 

WILDLAND FIREFIGHTER I jiG WILDLAND FIREFIGHTER 1/ 15 

IS FIRE DEPARTMENT NIMS COMPLIANT? YES OCI NOD 

CURRENT COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH DOF? YES 1]1 NoD 

DISTANCE OF CLOSEST MUTUAL AID FIRE DEPARTMENT: r 18-4 0 

-NAME OF FIRE DEPARTMENT: I Ci t Y of Perry 

HAS APPLICANT RECEIVED GRANT FUNDS FROM ANY SOURCE IN 
THE PAST 12 MONTHS? YES [2\ NOD 

IF YES, WHERE? IFl Division of Forestry 

AMOUNT: $ I 
$3,725.00 

LIST TOTAL FUNDS RECEIVED FROM OTHER TAXING AUTHORITIES 
SUCH AS CITY, COUNTY, TAXIN~ DISTRICTS (Past 12 Months) 
AMOUNT: $ 

r 31,650 

LIST OF FIREFIGHTING VEHICLES: 

TYPE MAKEIYRMODEL PUMP CAPACITY (GPM) WATER CAPACITY (GAl.) 

Brush Truck Ford 550 2005 450 450 

Brush Truck Ford 550 2002 250 250 

t:'n~'n~ rho", rho lqR.h 
1000 1000 

Engine Ford 1967 
I~U I:JV 

ESTIMATED GRANT FUNDING REQUEST LIST OF EQUIPMENT OR SUPPLIES TO PURCHASE WITH GRANT FUNDS 

FEDERAL $ 11 ,449 .80 NUMBER DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

APPLICANT $ 11,449.80 1 0 Radios-P5500, Scan Model 2 ,28 9. 96 

COUNTY $ includes all equipment and 

TOTAL $ 22,899 .60 programmin~. 806-80 7 MHZ 

(Federal not more than 50% of total. Applicant at least 50% of See attached quote 

total in matching funds.) 

We understand that this is a 50 percent maximum cost-share program (Cooperative Forestry Assistance Act of 1978, PL 95-313), and that funds on 
deposit up to 50 percent of the actual purchase price of the items approved will be committed to our project. TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND 
BELIEF, ALL DATA IN THIS APPLICATION ARE TRUE AND CORRECT. THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE APPLICANT HAS DULY AUTHORIZED 
THIS DOCUMENT. 

Type Name of Authorized Representative 

Patricia Patterson 

Title 

Chairman 

Telephone Number: (8 5 0 ) 838-3500 

FAX: ( 850) 838 -3 501 
Signature of Authorized Representative Date Signed and Submitted Email: 

DACS-11484 REV. 3/06 

http:3,725.00


Form AD-J047 (11.92) 

u. S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other 


Responsibility Matters - PrimalY Covered Transactions 


This ccrtification is required by the rcgulations implementing Exccutive Order 12549, Dcbarment and Suspension. 
7 CrR Part 3017, Section 3017.510, Participants' responsibilities. Thc regulations werc pllbli!lhed as Part iV of the 
January 30, 1989, Federal Register (pages 4722-4733). Copies of the regulations may be obtained by COlllllcting (he 
Dcpartmcnt ofAgriculturc agency offering thc proposed covercd transaction. 

(Before completing certification, read instructions OJ) reverse.} 

(I) 	 Thc prospective primary participant certifies to thc best of its knowlcdge and belicf, that it and its principals: 

(a) 	 arc not prcscntly debarrcd, suspendcd, proposed for debarmcnt, dcclared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 

(b) 	 have not within a three-year period prcceding this proposal been convictcd of or had n civil judgment 
rcndercd against thcm for commission of fi'alld or a criminal offcnsc in conncction with obtain ing, 
attcmpting to obtain, or pcrforming a public (Fcdcral, State or Local) transaction or contract under a 
public transaction; violation of Fcdcral or State antitrust statutcs or commission of cmbczzlcmcnt, thcfl, 
forgery, bribcry, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen 
propcrty; 

(c) 	 arc not prcsently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity 
(Federal, Statc or Local) with commission of any of the offcnscs enumerated in paragraph (I )(b) of this 
ccrtilieation; and 

(d) 	 havc not within a thrce-year period prcceding this application/proposal had onc or morc public 
transactions (Federal, Statc or Local) tcrminated for cause or dcfault. 

(2) 	 Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, 
such prospcctive participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 

ORGltN/ZIt T/ON NitME 	 INUit WltRD NUM/II;'R UN I'RO}Fer NltMI:' 

Taylor County Board of Commissioners 

NIlMF ItND TIT/F W;ltU7IJORI7./i1J I<HPRI'SUNTIt TlVl; 

Patricia Patterson, Chairman 

SIGNIt TU!?!: 	 Inil TJ:' 



Fonn AD-J047 (1192) (REVI:'RSE) 

IN5TRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 

I. 	 By signing and submitting this form, the prospective primary participant is providing the certilkmion scI oul 
on the revcrse side in accordance with these instructions. 

2. 	 The inability ofa person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial or 
participation in this covered transaction. The prospcctive participant shall submit an explanation of why it 
cannot providc the certification set out on this form . The certification or explanation will bc considered iii 
connection with the department or agency's determination whether to enter into this transaction. Howevcr, 
failurc of thc prospectivc primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall di squalify such 
person from participation in this transaction. 

3. 	 Thc certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon whic]1 reliance was placed wliel1 thc 
department or agcney determined to enter into this transaction . Jfit is latcr determined that the prospective 
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedics available to 
the Federal Government, the department or agelll':y may terminate this transaction for caWiC or default.. 

4. 	 The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the department or agcncy to 
whom this proposal is submitted ifat any time the prospective primary participant learns that its ccrtification 
was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circulllstances. 

5. 	 The tcrms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction," 
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal ," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as 
used in l.his clause, have the meanings set out in the Definilions and Coverage sections of the rules 
implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the department or agency to which this proposal is 
bcing submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. 

6. 	 The prospectivc primary participant agrees by submitting this form that, should the proposed eovercd 
transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person 
who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered 
transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency entering into this transaction . 

7. 	 The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this form that it will include this clause 
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier 
Covered Transactions," provided by the department or agency entering into this covered transaction, without 
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

8. 	 A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier 
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily exeludcd from the covered 
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and 
fj'equency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, 
check the Nonproeurement List. 

9. 	 Nothing contained in thc foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order 
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information ofa 
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary 
course ofbusincss dealings. 

10. 	 Except for transactions authorizcd under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered 
transaction knowingly cnters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, 
incligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other rcmedies 
available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may terminate this transaction for causc or 
default. 

2 



OM 11 t\ PPl'lIv,1I N/). I)J~II -t Jfl~11 

'\SSlIl~ANCES -- NON-CONSTIWCTION PROGRAMS 
Note: 	 Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your prqjeet or program. If you have questions, plcasl: wntact thc awarding agcncy. 

Flirther. ccrtain Federal awarding agcneies may require applic,1nts to ccrtify 10 additional 'Issw·allces. Il'slich is the casco YO II wi l l hI: 
notificd. 

As the duly authorized repn.:sentative of the applicant I certify thatlhe applicilllt : 

I. li as Ihc legal allthority 10 apply 1'01' Federal assistance, and the 
inslitlltional. managcrial and linuncial capability (ineiliding fllncis 
surtieil:nt to pay thl: non-Fedcml sharc or project costs) to enslII'e 
proper plunning. nH1I1 agcmcnt and completion or the project 
described in this application. 

2. Will give the awurding agency, the Comptroller General of' the 
United States. and if appropriatc, the State, through allY authorized 
representativc, access to and Ihc right to examine i111 records, books, 
papers. or documents relatcd to the award; and will eSlablish a proper 
accounting syslem in accordancc with gcnerally aecepled accounting 
standnrds or agency directivcs. 

3. Will establish saJeguurds to prohibit elllployees from using 
lheir posi t ions 1'01' a purpose that constitutes or presents the 
appearance 01' personal or organiz,ltiollnl conniet of interest, or 
personal ga in . 

4. Will initiilte and eomplcte the work within the npplieable timc 
rrame alicr rcecipt oJ'approvnl ol'the awarding agency. 

5. Will comply with the IlIt..:rgovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 
(42 lJ .S.c. §§ 472!!-47(3) relating to prescribed standards lor merit 
systems lor program s funded LInder one 01' tile nineteen statu tes or 
rcgulations speeilied in Appendix A of OI'M's Standurds J()r a Merit 
Syst":lll 01' Personnel Administration (5 C.F. lt <)00, Subpart F). 

(,. Will comply with all Federal stntutes relating to 
nondiscrimination. Tilese include but are not limited to: (a)Title VI 
of' tile Civil Rights Act or 1964 (1'.1.. 88-352) wilich prohibits 
discriminution on the basis or raCl:, co lor or Ilational origin : (b) Tille 
IX of tile Education Aml:ndments oj' 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §~ 
1081-1083, und 16S5-16So), which prohibilS dbcl'iminution on the 
busis or sex; (c) Section 504 oJ'the Rehnbilitation Act of 1973, as 
amendcd (29 U.s.c. ~ 7(4). which prohibits discrimination on the 
basis oj' handicaps: (d) the Age Discrimination Act 01' 1975, as 
amcnded (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-(107), which prohibits discrimination 
on the basis oj' agc: 

(e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act oj' 1972 (1).1,, 92­
255), as ame nded, relat ing lo nondi~crill1inu tion on tile basis or drug 
aousc: ([) the Comprchensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholi sm 
Prcvenlion. Trealmenl and Rehubiliwtion Acl or 1970 (I'.L. 91-(10), 
as 1\I111:11(/I;:d. n; lating to nondiseriminalion on tile basis or alcoilol 
ubuse or alcoholism; (g) §~ 523 and 527 or the Public Health Service 
Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. 290-dd-3 and 290 el:-3). ns mnended, rcluting 
to confidcntiality oj' ai<.:ohol and drug ubuse paticnt records; (h) Title 
VIII or the Civil Rights Act or 1968 (42 U.S.c. ~ 3()01 et seq.), as 
amended. n: latillg to nondiscrimination in the snle, rental or linancing 
oj' housing: (I) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the spceilk 
stalute(s) under which applieation lor Federal ass istance is bl:ing 
nlade: and (j) thl: rcquirl:l11ellts oj' wly olhcr nondiscril11ination 
slatute(s) which lIluy apply to th..: application. 

7. Will C()mply, Of' flUS ulready complicd, w ith the rcquli·l:.nH.:Il(s (jf 

Titles rl :md rrl oJ'the I l nil(1I'I ll Relocatioll Assis tllllcC and Rcal 
Properly Acquisition Polieics Act oj' 11J70 (1' ,1" %1-(46) which 
provide {(lr lilir and cquitable treatmcnt of persons displuL:l:d or 
whose propel'ty is acquircd as a /'csult or Fed..:ral or Il:dcnilly i1ssistcd 
programs. These requircmcnts apply to all intcrests in real proJll: rty 
acquired for proicct purpo~cs r..:gardless or Federal I'HI'licipaliun ill 
purchases. 

8. Will comply wilh the provisions 01' Ihe llealth Act (5 I I.S .C. ~~ 
1501-1 50R and 7324-732!!) which limit the political activ ities of' 
employees whose principal enlployment activitics arc r'lIl1(kd in 
whole or in part with foederal runds. 

9. Will comply , as applicable, witil Ihe provi sions oj' thc Dav is­
Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§ 276a to 276n-7), the Copeland Act (40 
U.S.C. § 276e nnd IS U.S.c. §~ !!74), nnd the Contracl Work 1I0urs 
und Safety Standards Act (40 lJ.S.c. §~ 327-333), regarding labor 
standards for federally assisled construction subngrecn1l.:nts . 

10. Will comply, il' applicable, with l10ml insurancc purclwse 
requirements of Section 102 (a) or thc Flood Disasler I'rotcclion Act 
of 1973 (I'.L. 93-234) which requires recipicnts in a sp..:eial !lood 
hazmd area to participate in the 
program (lnd to purchase 1100d insurancc i I' th..: total cost or insurable 
construction and acquisition of $1 0,000 or more. 

II. Will comply with environmclltal standards which lIlay h" 
prescribed pursuant t(1 the I'ollowing: (a) inslilution oj' environnH:nt<l1 
quality control measures under the National l.~ nvironl11cnlal I'oliey 
Act or 1969 (P.L.. 91-1(0) und Executive Order (1':0) 11514: (b) 
nolilieation oj' violating lileilitics pursuant to 1::0 II73X: (c) 
protection or wetlands pursuant to F·:O 11990; (d) evaluation oj' !lood 
hazards in Iloodplains in aceordancc with ":0 I 19!!8 ; (c) assurancc 01' 
project consistency with the approved Slate managemcnl progralll 
developed undcr lile CO<1stal i':onc Management Act 01' Ion (1(1 
U.S.c. §~ 1451 ct seq.); (I) conform ity or Fedcral actions to State 
(Clc,u' Air) Implemenlation Plnns undcr Section 176(..:) or Ihl: Clear 
Air Act of 1955. as am ended (42 U.s.c. ~ 7401 ct SI:<./ .): (g) 
protection or undcrground sourccs oj' drinking water under thl: S:lk 
Drinking Wuter Acl 0(' 1974, (IS amcnded, (1'.1 .. 93-523): a11(1 (h) 
protection oj' endangered specics IInder the I':ndangcrcd Spl:cil:s Acl 
or 1973, as al11t:ndcd, (1'.1.. 93-205). 

12. Will GOlliply with the Wild <1lld Sccnic Rivers Act or 1lJ6!! (I () 
U.S.c. ~~ 1271 et seq .) related to protecting conlj1onl:nts or pOlcntial 
componcnts oj' the national wild and sccnic rivers system. 

V, 8-5 (02/05) 
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13. Will assisl Ih..: <Jwarding ag":l1l:y in assuring comflliance with 
Seclion 106 or til..: National Ilistorie I'res..:rvation Act or· 11)66, as 
;lIlwlldcd (16 U.S.c. 470), I~O 11593 (identificalion anci protcCtiOIl or 
historic proflcrli..:s), and Ihe Archcologieal amj Hisloric Prcservation 
Ad or 1CJ74 (16 usc. 46%-1 ct seq.) , 

14. Will conlflly with I'.L. Q3-34R regarding the protectioll 01' 
hlln1<l11 subjects involved in n.:scarch, development, and related 
aClivities sllpflorted by Ihis award of assistance. 

15 . Will comply with Ihe L.aboratory Animal Welrare Ael or 1')(j6 
(1'.1... 119-544, as al11ended, 7 U.S.c. 213 I el seq ,) pcrtaining to lhe 
curc, handling. and trealmcnt or warm blooded animals held ror 

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL TITLE 

Chairman 

APPLICANT ORGANIZATION 
Taylor County Board of Commissioners 

DATE 
SUBMITTED 

rcsclIn;h, Icaehing, or other acli" Hic~ ~ Hrp(jrlcd hy this /lWtii·d or 
W;~IS!iU1 (,;c: . 

l it. Will COilli)l y wlfh ihc LClId·lhr ed F: linl JI() f ~ilfji ilg IlruVthlitlll 
Mi (42 u ,s.C, ~~ 4RO I cl sc<j;) whl(;1i f5mluhf!s iho 1st ()f It nd h:lscd 
paint in constrll<;iion 01' j'c·lmbililaiiol1 nl'l'<5s,id(;ncc s!rucilJl'(;s. 

17, Will calise to be pcrfbrmcd 11m n;qllircd Iinllnci,Ji aflci 
compliance lillciib in accm <illl1t'c wllilihe })iJigk: A(fell! Ad (JI ' 19114 , 

lIt Will eOl1lply with ali .ipplicllhlc rcqllin;I1It:llls or nil Ulrll'" 
Federal IHws, execlltive ordcrs. J'egllilltioli~ alld p(! Iil:ies govcrilillg 
this program. 
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BUDGETARY REQUEST 

Williams Communications, Inc. I 5046 Tennessee Capital Blvd I Tallahassee, Florida 32303 


Julie Iron Wolf I jironwolf@wmscom.com I 0: 850.230-8889 I f: 850.575.0346 I c : 850.251 .0188 


Agency TAYLOR COUNTY 
iDate: 04/25/12 

Contact Name RENA' COURTNEY I_. •___.__..•___ •.•._ __ .w~~~...............j 

Client PO#: Phone: 850.584.2429 

589 HWY 27 EAST 

PERRY, FL 32347 
Email: TAYLOR911@FAIRPO INT.NFr 

COMPANY PROPRIETARY & CONFIDENTIAL 

I 

I 

Part No. Description QTY List Price Client Price Ext. Total 

EXSS·PBU8B PSSOO, Scan Model 806-870 MHZ 30 $ 945.00 $ 708 .75 $ 21,262.50 

MAEX-PKGPV--_. PROVOICE TRUNI<ING (INCLUDES EDACS) 
-­ .­

30 $ 1,420 .00 
. ­

$ 1,065.00 
._-'...... 

$ 31,950.00 _._­
MAEX-NNCSK 

~w.. ,. ... .... . ...._""" .............. . ........................ 

Flexible End Fed Gain Antenna 
...........................................'.................... ............... ...'......._...__................... .....­ ......... .._.­ ... 30 _....."".... 

$ 30.00 
......._........................_.... 

$ 22 .50 
..............-........­ ............ ........~.. 

$ 675 .00 
.......................u.·............. 

MAEX-NPL3R MAX SYSTEMS/ GROUPS (1024+) 30 $ 215.00 $ 161.25 $ 4,837.50 

MAEX-NPL7G EDACS SECURITY KEY (ESI<) 30 $ 110.00 $ 82.50 $ 2,475.00 

MAEX-NPA9X NIMH BATIERY, 2400 MAH 60 $ 100.00 $ 75.00 $ 4,500.00 
.. ­

MAEX·NCH9T SINGLE UNIT CHARGER DESI<- TRI-CHEMISTRY 30
f---.--.­ --.-----1'--_.--_._--.---_._._-------._._._..---_.._-_.- r------ ­

$ 120.00 
....................................... ..-...... ... 

$ 90.00 
.....­ ........................................... 

$ 2,700.00 
• ••• •••••• n .......... . .. . ....u .....'..... . 

MAE X-NHC7P METAL BELT CLIP 30 $ 20 .00 $ 15.00 $ 450.00 
_o~_....._...................
......... _ ...._ • • •• • • •• •• _ ...... . .... .. . ... . _ . ........____ _ ....._.0 0 ... . ........ . ...... - ........
~ ....-- 0 • • ___ ......... . . ..... 
 ..........................-- ..........
•••• n ................ . ..... ... 
 ..... ..... ­~-

$ 2,098.80$ 69.96 $ 69.96WCI·SVCS PROGRAMING SERVICES 30 

Freight I Shipping + Handling 
-.... .. ....-....-...­~.~ ~- - .---- ..---...... 

Client Total $ 70,948.80 

Quote prices good for sixty calendar days. Quote does not include any applicable sales tax. 


All retums are subject to a 25% restocking fee . 


Williams Communicatjons, Inc. I 5046 Tennessee Capital Blvd I Tallahassee, Florida 32303 


I 850.385-1121 I 


-'-" -'-'--'-' ...- ­ .....- ..-~--..- ..-.-...- .--­
CC Name: 

- - - --...- .- - ,--''''-'''''' ­ -_._.....__..._..._._.._......_...---_...... 
CC Type: 

Agency: CC Number: 

Bill Address: Exp Date: 

City I ST I Zip: Code IBack: 

http:70,948.80
http:2,098.80
mailto:jironwolf@wmscom.com
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